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Strategic report

Group Business Model and Strotegy

The business of Wiftington Investments Limifed and ifs
subsidiaries the 'Group’) is the management of
investments in o wide range of assets.

The Group's investments are managed in five businesses,
being Luxury Retail, Real Estate, Hotels, Private Markefs &
Other Investments and Associated British Foods ple (*ABF').
The latter refers o the Group's 56.2% shoareholding in ABF
[2022: 54.5%), whichis quoted on The London Stock
txchange.

The Group tokes o long-term approach to investment and
is cammitted to increasing shareholder value through
sound busingss decisions which will deliver sustainable
growth in earnings and dividends.

Givert the materiality of the ABF busingss and for ease of
cross-reference to e published financial statements of
ABF, the directors have elected to provide additional
information in the notes which follow setting out the
contribution of the ABF business to the consolidated
financial statements of the Graup. For ¢larity, alt
teferences to the ABF business are shown in italics in the
notes to these staterments and are consistent with the
published financial statements of ABF.

The Garfield Weston Foundation {The Foundation™ is an
English charitable trust, established in 1958 by the late W
Garfield Westan. As at 16 Sepiember 2023, the Foundation
holds 483,073 shares (2022 - 683,073) in Wittington
Investments Limited representing 79.2% (2022 - 79.2%) of
the Group'sissued share capital and is, therefore, the
Group's ultimate contrelling party

The Trustees of the Foundation made total grants of £91.1
milion {year to 5 April 2023) in suppaert of 2.147 appedls
(2022: £89.9 million in support of 1,988 appedals). The
Foundation accepts appeals rom UK registered charities.
No applications from individuals are considered and the
Trustees do not typically Tund projects oulside the UK,

Business Strategies

Luxury Retail

Luxury Retail comprises Fortnum & Mason plc and Heal &
Sons Lid, two long-established retailers. The aim for each
of these businesses is to build a sustainable and profitable
business over the long term by providing an outstanding
customer experience through alt channels and by
developing the product offer. They also gim to develop
their respective digitol businesses and, where appropriate.
international activities.

Real Estate

The Group invests in high-quality investment properfies in
the retail, office and distribution sectors across the UK. f
also takes strategic positions in selected development
opportunities, alongside local pariners or sector specialists,
where if can use its patient capital o unlock the potential
in those sites.

Hotels

As an extension of its Real Estate strategy, the Group
invests in hotels with high-quality real estate backing and
with a broad mix of customers from corporate, event and
lefsure markefts.

Privote Markets & Other investments
The Group invests both directly and via externally
managed funds in private equity and private debt

markets. This is a long-term asset class and exposures are
managed to provide a diverse portfolio by sector,
geography and age of company. It also invests selectively
in special situations.

Other investments are principally composed of liquid
investments in short-dated investment grade bonds as well
as listed equities, which provides portfolio diversification
and enables liguidity and portfolio needs to be met.

Associated British Foods plc

ABF is a diversified internationa! food. ingredients and
retait Group with revenue of £12.8bn. 133.000 employees
and operations in 55 countries gcross Eurape, southem
Africa, the Americas, Asia and Australic. Further details
can be found in ABF's Annual Report 2023 which can be
found al wwwv.abf.co.uk.

Business Review

Luxury Retail
Fortnum & Mason

Fortnum & Mason’s financial year saw a continued

recovery in sales with UK store revenue returning to pre-

Covid tevels at the start of 2023 and growing 34% an FY22,

driven by a resiient domaestic market and incracsed

international custorner footfall. Online sales saw an 11%

recluction on FY22, not dissimitar to the wider rarket as

consumers rebalanced their behaviour post-Covid.

Fortnum & Mason faced challenging operating conditions

as inflation grew rapidly, particularly in food and labour.

Total Revenue grew 12% to £208.6m {2022: £186.5m); Profit

hefore taxation grew to £7.5m {2022: £5.8m) and ERBITDA '
grew te £16.0m {2022: £14.2m). Capital invesiment in the .
year amounted to £8.2m (£2022: £4.9m] centred on the

refurbishment of the 3rd floor of the Piccadilly flagship

store, Closing cash was £21m [2022: £17m), with no debt.

Heal's

Heal's has experienced a difficult period for profitability as
inflationary pressure squeezed margin and increased the
cost base [with the exception of its new Tottenham Court
Road lease). Revenue remained materially flat at £37.4m
{2022: £37.0m), however the dudl challenges of supply
chain and wage inflalion drove a 50% reduction in
operating profit ic £0.8m {2022: £1.6m). Pernaps the
biggest challenge was in dealing with cld {returned and
cancelled) stock. which led fo a very significant write
down which supressed profif. Heals continues to generate
a positive operating profit and EBITDA and the underlying
perormance remains sound. Excluding the write-down of
stock, profit would have increased from the prior period.
The strategic focus of Yhe company going forward is to
capitalise on its new store layout on ToHenharn Court
Road and to grow its oniine presence. which now
accounts for haif of sales revenue.

Real Estate

Three properties were acquired during the year with an
aggaregate considleration of £33m; one property was sald
for £3m. Income grew to £12.3m (2022: £11.5m) while the
aperating loss in the year of £8.3m {2022: profif of £16.3m)
included an aggregate impairment charge of £13.4m
[2022: £5.6m) in respect of the camying value of some of
the office and retail praperties and a residential
development. Over the year, $9.9% of rents demanded
were collected (2022: 99%) comparing very favourably
with the sector as a whole.
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Hotels
Grand Hotel, Brighton

The Grand Hotel, Brighton was sold to the Fottal Group in
May 2023 for £61m.

Richrond Hill Hotel

Richrmond Hill Hotel continued to benefit from strong
demand in the leisure markel. Revenue for the period was
the highest in the hotel's history at £10.1m (2022: £2.2m),
whilst current and future bookings remain strong. Changes
to the market value of the property resulted in an
aperating loss of £2.7m {2022: profit of £13.4m. including o
one-off impairment reversal).

Frivate Markets & Other Investment!s

Qver the year the Group invested £200m in investment
grade credit and ¢ $130m into a global public equities
index fund. A further €40m was commitied to private
equity. The public and private equity funds held broadly
flat in GBP terms over the year, whilst the leveraged loan
portfolio, in which the underlying investments are floating-
rale, benefitted from rising interest rates globally. The
remaining direct portfolic companies posted modest
gains. There was an unrealised FX impact in the year
which supressed orofitability. Profit after tax for the year for
Private Markets & Other Investrments was £36.0m (2022:
£28.3m}.

Associated British Foods plc

ABF performed extremely well despite facing very
significant economic challenges caused in part by major
geo-political events at the start of the financial year. It is
now well positioned for the financial year ahead.

Trading at Primark was excellent under the circumstances.
At ihe beginning of the year selective price increases
were implemented partially to protect profitability, on the
grounds that the significant input cost inflation was
temporary. That careful pricing delivered as intended,.
with customers continuing to shop enthusiastically,
Profitability in ABF's food businesses moved ahead as a
result of the appeal of their products and the strength of
its brands. bath of which supported the recovery of high
levels of input cost inflation without disrupting customer
relgtionships,

Although consumer demand remains uncertain, Pimark is
as well placed as it has ever been and that its offer is very
attractive not just to existing custfomers but also fo new
customers engaged by its digital platform, new siore
openings, and word of mouth which remains as powerful
as ever. With Primark margin now moving back to its
histaric levels, the future for this business is viewed with
confidence. ABF's food businesses are also in very good
shape, and its Sugar business especially should see much
better profitability in the year ahead.

ABF posted statutory operating profit for the year of
£1,383m (2022: £1,178m} after exceptional charges of
£10%m (2022: £206m). Given the strength of ABF's balance
sheet and its confidence in the future, ABF announced a
special dividend of 12.7 pence per share and a second
share buyboack programme of up fo £500m on November
7th 2023,
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Directors’ duties

The directors are required to actin a way which they
consider, in good faith, is most likely to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit of its members as
a whole and, in doing so. have regard to the matters set
aul in seclion 172(1} {q) to {f] of the Companies Act 2006,

Stakeholder engagement

The Company engages regularly with stakeholders at
Group and/or business unit level, depending on the
parficular issue, Regardless of the legal duties, the
directors consider reguiar engagement with stakeholders
to be part and parcel of our value of progressing throuah
collaboration and to be fundamenial to the success of
the Group.

The Board has identified the following stakeholder groups
with whom engagement is fundamental to the Group's
angoing sUCCess:

1. The Garlield Weston Foundation: The largest single
shareholder of the Group is the Garfield Weston
Foundation, a charitable grant-making body which
supports a wide range of causes across the UK. The
Group engages regularly with the Foundation to
understand its grant pipeline and to ensure that itis in
o position to pay dividends to a level commensurate
with the Foundation's objectives. An additional key
concern for the Foundation is that the Group operate
with high ethical standards so as not 1o underming the
Foundation’s charitable aims and objectives.

2. Governments: The Group is imprcted hy changesin
laws and public policy. The key issues of concermn in
relation to the government are regulatory changes
{including tax legistation), climate and environmental
related matters and support of businesses and workers.
The directors of the Group engage wilh this
stakeholder group in varicus ways including meetings,
responding to requests for inputs {e.g. on sustainability
reporting guidetines) and applications fo participate in
government schemes.

3. Communities and the environment; As the Group's
controlling shareholder, the Foundation is heavily
engaged in national efforts 1o mitigate climate
change. This is primarily achieved through the award
of grants fo relevant bodies. Through the ABF business
segment, the Group is also engaged in community
relations at a national and international level and with
the design and implementation of sirategies io
promote climaie change mitigation and a circular
economy. ABF engages with these stakeholder groups
In various ways including coaching and training
programmes and community programmes and
schemes.

4. Customers / consumers: The Group depends heavily
on its reputation with customers, in the UK and globally,
across its grocery, relall and holel operations. The key
issues of concern to customers are health and safety,
products and services, value for money, availability of
products and services, impact an the environment,
store and hatel environments and customer relations.
The business engages with this stakeholder group in
various ways including custormer surveys, labelling,
social media and customer/consumer information
lines.
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5. Employees: CGur people are central to our success, The
Group employs 134,881 neople of which 133,000 are
employed by ABF. Given this, responsibility for
engagement with employees kes principally with the
ABF business segment. ABF engages with its employees
in various ways including email, heatth and safety
programmes, intranet. newsletters, surveys, town halls,
training. virfual meetings and notice boards. The key
issues of concern to employees are heaith and safety,
engagement & development and diversity & inclusion.

The Group is cornmitied 1o an aclive equol
opportuniiies policy from recruitment ond selection,
through fraining and development, performance
reviews and promaetions to retirement. It is our policy fo
promote an environment free from discrimination,
harassmeni and victimisation, where everyone
receives equal freatment regardiess of gender, colour,
ethnic or national origin, disabtlity, age, marital status,
sexual arientation or religion. All decisians relating to
empleyment practices are objective, free from bias
and based solely upon work criteria and individual
merit. 1t is our policy that people with disabilities who
fulfil the minimum criteria should have full and fair
caonsiderotion for all vacancies. We endeavour fo
retain employees in the workforce if they become
disabled during employment. It is the Group's policy to
provide conlinuing employment wherever practicable
in the same or an alternative position and to provide
appropriate fraining to achieve this aim.

4. Suppliers: Trrough the ABF business segment, the
Group s indirectly dependent on rmany cornpiex
supply cheins aperating at aninlemational level, The
key issues of concern with regards to supply chains are
payment praclices, responsivle sourcing aond suppty
chain sustginability & responsipilify. The Group engages
with 1his stakehotder group in various ways including
conversalions [face-to-face or virtual). training,
communications fora, corespondence, press releqses
and audik,

Principal decisions

An example of g principal decision taken during the year
that toak stakehalder views into account is the decision {o
pay a first interim dividend in January 2023 and a second
interim dividend in July 2023, with the primary beneficiary
of the decision being the Garfield Weston Foundation and
- indirectly - the recipients of the grants awarded by the
Foundation,

The Directors agreed a first interim dividend of £78.50 per
share, paid In January 2023 which, fogether with the
second interim dividend paid in July 2023 of £62.50 per
share, made a total of £148.00 per share for the year,
reprasenting 42% of distibutable profit,

The decision to pay boin dividends foctorad in the net
cash position before lease finabilities for the Group of £2.8
o at the 2022 veor end.

Non-Financial and Sustainahilify information
Statement

The Group Board recognises that climate change
represents g material risk throughout its supply chains and
poses challenges to some of its businesses worldwide. The
Board wholly support policies that are aligned with the
goals of the 2015 Paris Climate Agreement to imit the rise
in global tempearatures 1o well beiow 2°C above pra-
industrial level, and to pursue efforts to imit the
temperatyre increase even further ta 1.5°C.

This year the Wittingfon Group has included climate-
related financial disclosures in accordance with the
Companies (Strategic Report) [Climate-related Financial
Disclosure) Regulations 2022 (81 2022/31).

Governgnce

The Boord is responsible for overseeing climate-refated
issues acress the Group. The Board reviews eqch business
segrient in depth every year, which willinclude o review
of material E5G issues.

Risk management

The Board is accountable for effective risk management,
for agreeing the principal, including emerging. risks facing
tha Group and ensuring they are successfully managed.

The process for identifying. assessing and managing
climate-reiated risks is fne same as for otherrisks within the
Group and sits with the business where the risk resides.

These risks, including climate risks, are collated and
reviewed at both a business and divisinnal tevel, and then
reported to the Chief Financial Officer who reviews the
key risks with the Board.

Strategy and action, metrics and torgets

wittington operates o decentralised business model
because the Group Board believes in giving the teaders of
its businesses fhe scope and accountabillity to create and
run the best businesses they can. They are therefore
responsible for identifying and implementing strategies
that both create value and ensure value is protected by
taking action to mitigate or adapt to the impacts of
climate change. Enabling decision-making by the people
closest to these issues, with the closest relationships with
the stakeholders aoffected, provides resiience, agility and
flexibility in planning. allowing for guick achon onimpacts
and opportunities,

Climate risks und opporfunities
The ABF division accaunts for the mos) matertat cimate
risks and opporiurities in the Witlington Group.

ABF comprises busingsses that provide safe, nutrfious and
affordable food, and clothing that is great value for
money. There will be many volue creation opportunities
which ABF's businesses will be well positioned to take
advantage of as the world transitions to o low carbon
ecanomy. There wil also be physical and transitional
climate risks which they may be susceptible to. Many of
ABF's businesses rely on agrcultural crops with complex
supnly chains which are spread across the world, Long-
term climate change will impact agricultural crops and
workers while extreme weather events have the potenticl
o cause disruption across value chains,

Cross-functional teams within the ABF business worked
with third-party experts to understand climaterelated,
physical and transition risks and opparfunities. These were
included in the Group's scenario analysis.

Wittington (nvestments  Financal Statements 2023 ki
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Non-Financial and Sustainability Infoermation
Statement continved

The scenario analysis included the following scenarnos:

Warming Transitional scenarios! Physical
Irajectory by 2100 scenarnios’
<2°C CNet Zero Emissions by 2050 RCF2.6
Scenario 'NIE'} (1.5°C)
Sustainable Development
Scenano ["SDS)
2-3C Stafed Policies Scenario {'STEPS') RCPAS

~4°C RCP&.51

1. Thelnternational Energy Agency's scenarics have been used ta assess transition
impacts with each scenario built on a set of assumptions on how the energy
systern might evolve. Each scenario has a different temperature outcome ABF
used scenharios covenng 1.5° C, <2' Cand
<3"C.

2. ABF used the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change's Reprosentative
Concentration Pathways [RCP) to assess physical clrmate risk. RCPs are commonly
used by clinate scientists to assess physical climate risk, with each pathway
representing a different greenhouse gas concentration trajectary which can then
be translated into global warming impacts ABF used climate data from the World
Chmate Research Programmes Coupled Model Intercomparison Project — Phase 5
(CMIP 5 adjusted for spatial resolution and bias corrected) to do this translation,
RCPs feed into climate, crop and flood models There are four RCP pathways with
RCPE.5 representing the worst case scenario.

The impact of compounding means that even small
changes in assumptions can lead to a significant range of
outcomes from climate models and scenarics. ABF
therefore placed mare emphasis on projections to 2030,
using them for action planning. and used projections to
2050, where there s more uncertainty, to check our sense
of dirsction arnd cunsider (e resilience of our businesses
should certain hypothetical scenarios take place.

Risks and opportunities have been considered over the
folowing time horizons:

Years Ralionale

Short-term 2025 Mid-decade
Medium- 2030 Our most linancially material businesses,
term ABF Sugar, Primaork and Twinings hove set

2030 emission targets, which are supported
fyy emissicn reduchon plans

2050 is consistent with many naticnal and
indusiry fargets. Pimark is digned with the
UNFCCC Fashion Industry Charter goal of
net zero emissions across all three Scopes
by 2050

Long-term 2050

ABF's risk assessment process identified the foliowing
climate risks and opportunities that may have a significant
impact on ABF: these are dencted in italics below.
Additional risks and epportunities affecting Fortnum &
Mason {as the only other business materially affected by
climate change in the Wittinglon Group) are included
Delow.

Determining the potentialimpact of climate risks and the
size of climate opporunities is challenging. Climate
maodels include several fixed assurmptions and there is
significant unceriainty around the impacts of climate
change and how governmenits will respond to ifs threats.
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Impact
assessment

Cescriplion

Projected impacts from scenario andalysis arg
positive or not significant

Impacts not judgad to be significant once
miligating actions are considerad

Impacts judged fo be significant even after
mitigating actions have been considered

Note: “Significance"” refers hare to the considerad impaa of climate
rises and opportunities on “he Groug's tinancial performance and
posiion

1. Climate impact on cofton yields (Primark}

2023 assessmf

Short term:

ong-term
netrics for mitigating actions & targets:

- Proportien of cotton clothing sales {units) that
contains cotton that is organic, recycled or sourced
from Primark’s Sustainable Cotton Programme (%):
100% by 2077,

Numnber of farmers trained in Primark’s Sustainable
Caotton Programme: 275,000 by end of 2023,

2. Climate impact on ilovo's sugar yields (Eswatini,
Malawi, Mozambique, South Africa. Tanzania, Zambia)
2023 assessment

Short term: ong-term

metrics for mitigating actions & targets:

Sugar production (tonnes).

- Vnlume of water abslkractod.
AB Sugar has o target ta reduce its end-to-end
supply chain water usage by 30% vs 2017/2018

3. Impact of carbon pricing mechanisms (A8 Sugar and
Primark)
2023 assessment
mMedium term

Metrics for mitigating actions & targets:

Primark: GHG ernissions: Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions
vs target of 50% absolute reduction in emissions by
2030 vs 2018/19 baseline.

AB Sugar: GHG emissions: Scope 1 and 2 emissions vs
target of 30% absolute reduction In Scope 1 and 2
emissions by 2030 vs 2017/18 baseline

4. Impact of carbon pricing mechanisms on Fortnum &
Mason
2023 assessment
Medium term

Metrics for mitigating actions & targets:

GHG emissians: Scope 1, 2 emissions vs target of 25%
cbsolute reduction in emissions by 2025 vs 2018/19
boseline

We consider that the scenario analysis performed in
conjuncticn with the mitigating actions undertaken by our
businesses demonstrate that our business models and
strategy are resilient to climate change in each of the
tfronsition and physical scenarios outlined above.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Group's board reviews annually the matericl risks

facing the business together with the internal control
procedures and resources devoted to them,

The principal risks currently identified are:

External Risks: the conflicts in Ukraine and the Middle East
their impact on the UK and Global economy; events
impaciing consurner confidence leading fo reduced
consumer spending; movement in exchange rates: wage
and materials inflation; fluctuations in cormmodity and
ensrgy prices; operating in global markets; health and
nufrition concerns.

Operational Risks: supply chain interruptions and labour
shortages; workplace health and safety; product safety
and quality; use of natural resources and managing
environmental impaoact; ethical business practices: and
breaches of IT and informotion security,

Energy ond Global Greenhouse Gas Emisstons
The Group is committed to making year-on-year
improvements in operational energy efficiency.

The Group calculates and discloses GHG emissions based
on the WRI/WBCSD GHG Protocol Corporafe Accounting
and Reporting Standard Revised Editton. except for
alignment with the GHG Protocol's approach for
determining arganisational boundary and limitations for
Scope 3 disclosuras. The Group use carbon conversion
factors published by the UK's Depariment for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS] in June 2022, other
intermationally recnanised sourcos, and bespoke fuclors
based on laboratory calculations at selected locations,
Scope 2 market-based emissions have been calculated in
accordance with the GHG Profocol Scope 2 Guidance
on procured renewdble energy.

ABF's emissions (Scopes | and 2] reduced by 6% to 2.91
rmition Yornes CO2Ze {2022: 3.1 milion tornes CO2s8).
ABF's energy consumption increased by 1% to 21,183
Gwh (2022: 21,046 GWh]. The principal energy efficiency
measures to reduce ABF's carbon emissions include the
infroduction of energy monitoring systems; conversions o
LED lighting: and upgrades fo production machinery such
as compressors gnd boilers o improve efficiencies.

Fortnum & Mason's emissions {Scopes | and 2) were 1,859
fonnes CO2e {2022: 1,617 tonnes CO2e) ond its energy
cansumption was 8,489 GwH (2022 7,922 MWh]

Fortnum & Mason is also committed to decreasing its
reliance on the planet’s resources and is working hard fo
ensure that all packaging s either reusable, home
compostable or fully recycioble by 2024,

Corporate Responsibility

The Gioup's corporate responsibility activities centre an
those of ABF. As o diversified iInfernational food,
ingredients and retail Group with 133,000 employees and
operations in 55 countiies across Europe, southern Africa,
the Amercas, Asia and Australia, ABF takes its
responsibilities to wider society sericushy. ABF publisheas
full corporate responsibility report every three years, most
recently in 2022. Comporate responsibility 1s o central part
of how the business is run and is incorporated into the day
to day decision making processes. n the Camorate
Responsibiity Report, ABF shares information on its anti-
bribery and conuplion policy, whistleblowing palicy,
approach fo hurnarn fighis, sociol matters, environmment
policy. employees and diversity. Further information and a
copy of the 2022 ABF Corporate Responsibility Report are
avalable at www abf.co.uk/responsibility/cr. downloads.

ABF is committed to gender diversity and, across the
business overall, ine gender spiit s close 1o equal with 54%
of the workforce last year being femate. The Equality Act
2010 {Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017
were introduced in April 2017, and ABF has collected the
required data for all of its relevani employees. Further
details for each of the UK legal enthities that are required fo
report data is published online and submitted to the
Government's Gender Pay Reporting website in
accordance with the legislation. Further information can
be found inin the ABF 2023 Annual Report at

www. bt co.uk/investorrelations/reports.

Being a responsible company means respecting the
human rights of al the people who interact with the
business, whether they are direct employees, temporary
workers or those in the supply chain, ABF's approach to
human rights and the steps it takes to iry to ensure that
modern siavery, in any of 1ts forms, is not present within its
aperations or supply chains is set out in the 2023 Madern
Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement. Many of the
businesses have compiled their own statements. and all
published staterments can be found at

hitp:/iwww abf.co.uk/responsibility/responsibility _policies.

ABF is commitied to maintaining the highest standard of
ethics and compliance with all relevant laws wherever it
does business. Compliance with anfi-bribery and anti-
corruplion laws is an esseniial port of ihis and ABF
maintains G robust compliance system which is designed
to respect both the spirit and letter of the relevant laws, A
copy of the Group's Anti-Bribery and Conuption Policy is
creailaie af

http:/ farww . abaf.co.ukfresponsibility/responsibility_policies.
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Ffective and hanest cammunication s essential if
malpractice and wrongdeing are to be dealt with
effectively. ABF's Whistleblowing Policy provides guidelines
for people who feel they need to raise cerfain issues in
confidence. A copy of the Whistleblowing Policy is
available at

hitp://www.abf.co.uk/responsibility /fresponsibility_policias.

Fortmum & tason, os a business that has been around for
over 300 yeors, sees its primary responsibilily as conducting
business today in a way that fruly considers the next 300
years. Fortnurn & mason's strategy s called Future mMatters
within which are four sustainabiiity and sociat responsibility
pillars: Pecple, Product, Packaging and Planet. These
drive o commitment 1o doing maore things more often to
create long-lasting change, with the heip of suppliers,
employees and customers. More informafion s aovailghble
in the Fortnum & Mason PLC Annual Directors Report and
Consoiidated Financial Staterments which can be found af
the Companies House website (https://find-and-
update.company-information.service.gov.uk/).

Geopolitical uncertainty and Russia’s war in Ukraine

The global inflationary pressures triggered initially by
COVID-1¢ have been exacerbated by the geopolitical
uncertainty caused by Russia's war in Ukraine. For the
avoldance of doubt, the Group does not have any
operations or investments in Russia. Nevertheless, the war
has resulted in economic uncertainty in almost all the
markets in which ihe Group operates and has adversely
impacted commadity costs and supply chains as well as
wage costs, Our management teams in all business
segmeants continue o manitor cost inflation cloaaty. Whils|
there are early signs of cost inflation decreasing in many
parts of the global economy. the emergence of conflict in
the Middle East has added further risk to an already fragile
geopolitical and economic environment. ifs impacts on
the Group's frading and investing activities wil depend on
the duration of the current crises in Ukraine and the
Middle East. on geopolitical cepercussions and an central
bank responses ta inflation.

A s

Sir Guy Weston 15 Becember 2023
Chairman

Wittington Investrnents Limited
Registered office:

Weston Cenfre

10 Grosvenor Street

London

WIK 4Q0Y

Company Number 00386054
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and audited
financial stalemens for the 52 weeks ended 16
September 2023, in accordance with section 415 of the
Companies Act 2006. The Board cansiders that the
Group's Report and Accounts 2023, taken as g whole, is
fair, balanced and understandable andd provides
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's performance, business model and strategy.

Given the materiality of the ABF [Associated Brtish Foods
plc) business segment and for ease of cross-reference fo
the published financial statements of ABF, the directors
have elected to provide additional information in the
notes which follow setting out the contribbution of the ABF
business segment to the consclidated financial statements
of the Group. For clarity, all references to the ABF business
segment are shown in ifalics in the notes to thase
statements and are consistent with the published financial
statements of ABF.

Results and Dividends

The consclidated income statement is on page 13, Prohif
for the period amounted to £1.099m {2022: £783m).
Dividends paid amounted to £128m (2022: £104m).
Dividends are detailed in note 8. Profit for the financial
period attributable to equity shareholders amounted to
£618m (2022: £445m).

Future business developments

Future business developments are outlined in the Sirategic
Report in the sections concerned with Business Strategies
and Business Review,

Directors

The Directors who held office throughout the year were as
follows:

5ir Guy Weston {Chaimoan)
Emmo Adamo

Sir Harry Djanogly

Martin Hattrell

Annc Catring Hobhouse
Charles Mason

Lindsary Pecarson

Alonnah Westen (resigned 12 December 2023)
Garth Weston

George Weslon

Graham Weston

The Company Secretary was lennifer Dooley.

Directors’ Indemnities
The Group hasin place appropriate directors’ and
officers' liability insurance cover inrespect of legal action
against its executive and non-executive directors
amangst others. The directors of a subsidiary company
that acts as trustee of o pension scheme benefited from a
qualifying pension scheme indemnity provision during the
financial year and at the dale of the ABF 2023 Annual
Report. Other than these, there were no qualifying third-
party indemnity provisions provided by the Group orits
subsidiaries during the financial year and as al the date of
the ABF 2023 Report,

Controlling Shareholder Relationship Agreement
Any person who exercises or conlrols, an their own or
together with any person with whom they are acting in
caoncert, 30% or more of the votes able 1o be cast at
general meetings of a company are known as a
‘controlling shareholder' under the Listing Rules. The Listing
Rules require companies with controlling shareholders to
enter into an agreement which is intended to ensure that
the controling shareholders comply with certain
independence provisions in the Listing Rules. The Group
and, through their control of the Group, the trustees of the
Garfield Weston Foundation are confrolling shareholders
of ABF. On 14 November 2014 the Group entered into a
retationship agreement with ABF and the frustees of the
Garfield Weston Foundation containing the required
undertakings. The Relafionship Agreement was amended
and restated on 25 June 2020.

Details of a contralling interest in the shares of the Group
are given in note 32. Other than os noted, so tar s is
known, no other person holds or is beneficially interested
in a disclosable holding in the Group,

Branches
The Group, through various subsidiaries, has established

branches in a number of different countries in which the
Group operates.

Engagement with suppliers, employees,
customers and others in a business relationship
with the company

The way the Group engages with stakeholders is outlined

in the Strategic Report in the section concemned with
directors’ duties.

Political donations
During the vear, the Group did not make any politicai
donations or incur any politicatl expenditure (within the
ordinary meaning of those words) in the UK. However,
under the wider definition of those terms in Part 14 of the
Companies Act 2006, ABF paid costs totalling
approximately £3,150 during the year for attendance of
employees at the Conservative and Labour Party
Conferences which could potentially fall within that wider
definition. The Group did not make any contributions to
non-UK political parties during the year.
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Directors’ report

Research and development

Innovative use of existing and emerging technologies will
continue to be crucial to the successful development of
new products and processes for the Group.

ABF has a technical centre in the UK at the Allied
Technical Centre. R&D facilities also exist across ABF,
including at: ACH Food Companies in the USA; AB Mauri in
Australia and the Netherlands (including the Global
Technology Centre); AB Enzymes in Germany: and the
Roal joint venture pilot plant in Rajamdki. Finland. These
centres support the technical resources of the ABF
operating divisions in 1he search for new technology and
in monitoring and maintaining high standards of quality
and food safety. ABF also acquired National Milk Records
plc (see further details on page 48) which invests in an
innovative range of milk guality, herd health and genomic
testing services, generating data and building robust
insights that empower farmers to make informed decisions
on cow productivity

Financial risk management

Details of the Group's use of financial instruments,
together with information on our risk abjectives and
policies and our exposure to price, credil, liquidity. cash
flow and interest rate risks, can be found in note 28,

Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of
this Cirectors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
auditor is unaware, and each director has taken all the
reasonable steps that he/she ought to have taken as a
director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to estabiish that the auditoris
awdgare of that inforrmation. For these purposes, relevant
audit information means infarmation needed by the
auditor in connection with the preparation of ifs report on
pages 10-12,

Auditors

in accordance with section 485(4) of the Companies Act
2006, a resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
LLP as quditors of the Group will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Corporate Governance

Maintaining effective corporate governance is
fundamental to the Board's ability to discharge its duties
to shareholders.

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the system
of internal control to facilitate the identification,
assessrent and management of risk Effective controls
ensure that the Group's exposure to avoidable risk is
minimised, that proper accounting records are
maintained, that the financial information used within the
husiness is reliable and that the consolidated accounts
preparation and financial reporting processes comply
with all relevant regulatory reporting requirements. The
directors confirm that there is a process for idenfifying,
evaluating and managing the risks faced by the Group
and the operational effectiveness of the related controls.
They also confirm that they have regularly reviewed the
system of internal controls.

a2 Wittington Investments  Financial Staremenrs 2023

Going concern

The global inflationary pressures friggered inifially by
COVIR-19 have been exacerbaled by the geopolitical
uncertainty caused by Russia's war in Ukraine. For the
avoidance of doubt, the Group does nat have any
operations or investments In Russia. Nevertheless, the war
has resulted in economic uncertainty in almost all of the
markets in which the Group operates, and has adversely
impacted commodity costs and supply chains as well as
wage costs. Our management teams in all business
segments continue to monitor cost inflation closely. Whilst
there are early signs of cost inflafion descreasing in many
parts of the global economy, the emergence of conflictin
the middle East has added further risk to an already fragile
geopoltical and economic environment. Its impacts on
the Group's frading and investing activities will depend on
the duration of the current crises in Ukraine and the
mMiddle East.on geopolitical repercussions and on central
bank responses to inflation.

However, the directors believe the Group's resilience has
been evidenced by the year-on-year growth in operating
cash flows in excess of £1bn set out in these statements
and believe that the Group is well placed to frade
through the uncertain timeas with adequate resources to
continue to meel its commitments when called. As such
these financial siatements are prepared on a going
concern basis (see note 1).

P
U

Sir Guy Weston 15 December 2023

Chairman

Wittingfon Investments Limited
Registered office:

Weston Centre

10 Grosvenor Street

Londaon

WK 4QY

Company Number 00366054



Statement of directors' responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the annual report and the financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors' Report and the Grouvp and parent
company financial statements in accordance with applicable UK law and regulations.

Company law requiras the directors to prepare Group and pareni company financial statements for each financial
vear. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is
applicable law and UK Adoptled international Accounting Standards (UK Adopted IFRS'). The directors have elected to
prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting $tandards and applicable law
(UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 *Reduced Disclosure
framework' ['FRS 101').

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are safisfied that they give a
true and faoir view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of their profil or loss for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial staternents. the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies n accordance with 1AS 8 Accounting Poficies, Changes in Accounfing Estimates
and Errors and then apply them consistently;

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

prasent information, including accounting policies. in @ manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable infarmation:

provide additional disciosures when compliance with the specific requirements in UK Adopted IFRS, and in respect of
the parent company financial statements, FRS 101, is insufficient to enabile users fo understand the impact of
particular transactions. other events and conditions on the Group and company financial position and financial
performance;

- for the Group financial statements, state whether UK Adopted IFRS have been followed, subject ta any maternal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards including FRS 101
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial
statements; and

prepare the financial statements an the aning concem bacis unless it s Inapproiule o presume that the Group and
the parent company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to snow and explain the
parent company's and Group's transachons and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any fime the financial position of
the parent company and the Grouge and enable them to ensure that the parent company and the Group financial
statemeants comply with the Companies Act 2006, They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the parent company and the Group and fo prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report and Directors’
Report which comply with that law and those regulations. The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integiity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing
the preparation and disseminalion of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement of the directors in respect of the annval report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a tfrue and
fair view of the assets, liabkiliies, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whole; and

the Strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of
the Company and the undertakings included in the consclidation taken as whaole, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

On behalf of the Board

Ao wittington Invesiments
| ; Limited
MJ\V\—"-\,\; Registered offica:
Weston Centre
10 Grosvenor Street
Sir Guy Weston London
Chairman WK 4QY

15 December 2023 Company Number 003446054
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Independent Auditor's Report

to the Members of Willington Investments Limited

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Wittington Investments Limited {'the parent company'} and Hs subsidiaries
{the 'group’} for the 52 weeks ended 146 Seplember 2023 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the
Consolidated Stafement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheef, Consolidaied
Cash Flow Statement, the Consclidated and Company Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 32,
meluding a surnmary of sigrificont accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that hos been applied in the
preparation of the group financiol statements is applicable low and UK adopted intemational accouniing standards.
The financial reporting ramework that has been applied in the preparaiion of the parent company financial statements
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our apinion:
the financial statements give d frue and far view of the group's and of the parent caompany's affairs as at 14
September 2023 and of the group's profit for the year then ended;
the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards:

the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accouniing Practice: and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK] {ISAs (UK)} and applicabie law.
Cur responsibiifies under those standards are further described in the Audilor's responsibibties for the audii of the
financial statements section of ourreport. We are independent of the group in accerdance with the ethical
reguirerments that are relevant to our oudit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard.
and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accardance with these requirements.

Wwe believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concemn basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Qur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of
the group and parent company’'s abiiity to continue fo adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

Understanding the process taken by management to evaluate the operational and economic impacts of
rmacroeconomic faciors on the Group and 1o reflect these inthe group's forecasts;

Challenging the cssumptions underpinning the Group's forecasts and going concern pericd until June 2025
Confirming the opening cash and cash equivalerts 1o the financicl statements;
Testing the clerical accuracy of the model used 1o prepare the Group's going concern assessment;

- Performing G reverse stress fest to establish the reduction in cash flows that could lead to a loss of iquidity; and
Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s disclosure concerning the going concem basis of preparation.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any materal uncertainties relating to events ar
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company's ability to
continue as a going concermn until June 2025.

Our responsibililies and the responsibilities of the directors with respect fo going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statemeant is not a
guarantee cg fo the group's ability fo continue as a going concern,
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Independent Auditor's Report

to the Members of Wittingten Investments Limited

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our epinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and. except to the extent otherwise
axplicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Cur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is matenally
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audil or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the
waork we have perfarmed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the qudif:

the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obiained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or direciors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

the parent company financial stitemeants are not in agracment willi lhie uccounting records and refums: or
certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made: or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 9, the directors are responsible for the
preparalion of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparafion of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial stalements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent campany’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to gaing concern and using the going
concemn basis of accounting unless the directors either infend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative bul to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasenable assurance about whether the financial statements as o whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and toissue an auditar’s report that includes cur opinian.
Reasonable assurance is o high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs {UK] will always detect a material misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered malerigiif, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.,
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Independent Auditor's Report

to the Members of Witlinglan Investments Limited

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting iregularities, including
fraud

Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detectiregularities, including froud, The risk of not detecting o material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example. forgery orintentional misreprasentations, or through collusion. The extent to
which our pracedures are capable of detecting iregularifies, including fraud is detalled below. However, the primary
responsibility for the prevention and defection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and
managerment,

Sur aporoach was a5 follows:

we obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group and \
determined that the most significant framewaorks which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial

statements are those that relate to the reporting framework (FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Fromework”, United

Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the Companies Act 2006) and the relevant tax laws and

regulations in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. In addition, we concluded that there are certain

significant laws and regulafions which may have an effect on the determination of the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements being those laws and regulations relating to health and safety. employee matiers, food

standards and food safety.

we understgod how wittingtan trvestrments Limited is camplying with those framewaorks by making enquiries of
management and abserving the oversight of those charged with governance. the culture of honesty and ethical
behaviaur and whether a strang emphasis is placed an fraud prevention, which may reduce apportunities for fraud
to take place. and fraud deterrence, which could persuade individuals not to commit fraud because of the
likefihood of detection and punishment,

We assessed the suscepiibility ot the Group's financial statements to matenal misstatement, including how fraud
might occur by meeting with management from various parts of the business to understand where it considered
there was suscephbility to froud. We also considered performance targets and their influence on efforts made by
management to manage earnings. We considered the programmes and controls that the Group has established to
address risks identified, or that otherwise prevent, deter and detect fraud: and how management monitors those
programmes and contral Where the rick was considercd 1o e higl i, we performed auait procedures to address
each identified fraud risk. These procedures included testing manual journals and were designed to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from material froud or error.

Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-comphance with such laws and
regulations. Qur procedures involvad d focus on jeurndl eniry testing and journals indicating large or unusual
transactions or meeting our defined risk criteria based on our undersianding of the business and enquiries of
management,

A further descripfion of our responsikififies for the audit of the fingncial siatements is iocated on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at https:/fwww fre org.uk/auditorsrespansibilities. This description forms part of our aquditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, Ow audit work has been undertaken so that we might state o the company’'s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
hy law, we do not accept or assume respansibility to anyane other than the company and the company's members as
a body. for our qudit waork, for this report. or for the opinicns we have formed.

s/

Simon O'Neill (Senior statutary auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Birmingham

15 December 2023
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Consolidated income statement

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

2023 v
Confinging oeralios, ~ote £m im
Revenue 3 20,028 17.258
Operating costs before exceptional items 4 (18,698) {15,869)
Exceptiondl fems ) - - 4 (10%) [204)
o i 1,221 1,083
Share of profit after tox from joint ventures and associates 13 124 109
Profils less losses on disposal of non-current assefs o 27 16
Operaling profit 1,372 1,208
Adjusted operating profit T 3 1,503 1,456
Profits less 1osses on disposal of non-current assels 27 16
Amorhsation of non-operating ntangibles 9 (41} 147)
Acguired inventory fair value adiustments 4 (3) (5)
Transoction Costs 4 5 3]
Exceptional iterms . - 4 (1og)  [0¢)
Profits less losses on sale and closure of businesses } B 25 1 o [23)
Profit before inferest 1,373 1,185
Finance income & 1Mé 44
Finance expense & (131} 1118}
Other financial income - & 24 40
Profit befare taxation - 1,384 1153
Adjusted profit before 1c1xoﬂc->;- S ) 1.514 1,424 !
Profits less losses on disposal of non-current cssets 27 16 4
amortisation of hon-cperating inlangibles 7 (41} {47}
Acguired inventory fair value adjustments 4 (3 (5"
Transaction cosls 4 (3] i8) |
Exceptiondl ifems 4 {109) (206}
Profifs iess losses on scle und closure of businesses i 25 1 [23) |
Taxation - UK [excluding tax on exceptional items} (56) {64)
UK {on exceptionol iterms) 3 3
Overseas (excluding tax on exceptional itens) (168} {243)
Overseas (on exceptional items) e R 1) EO )
o - B o A {285} [370)
m_fg_[[\feggﬁo-d_ S L e 1.09¢ 783
Aftibutable to
Equity sharehclders 618 445
Nor-confrolinginterests o 481 338
Profit for the period 1,099 783
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

2023 2732
Nete £Em int
Profit for the period recognised in the income stafement 1,099 783
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of defined benefit schemes 14 (6) 825
Defened tox associated with defined benefit schemes S 4 {199)
ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss {2) 426
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (473) 445
Net gain/{loss) on hedge of net investment in foreign subsicianes 1 i
Net gain on other investments held at fair value through olher comprehensive income - 4
Deferrad tax associated with movements in foreign exchange (5) -
Current 1ax associated with movernents in foreign exchange é -
mMovement in cash flow hedging pasition 28C {240} 419
Daferred tax associaled with movement in cash flow hedging position 7, 28c 40 128}
Deferred tax associated with movement in other invesiments - 1}
Share of other comprehensive {lossi/income of joint ventures and associates {18) 28
Effect of hyperinflationary economies i 40 46
ftems that are or may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss (64%) 12
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the period (671 1538
Tolal comprehensive income for the period - 428 232]
Affibutable to
Ecjuity shareholders 251 1,281
Non-confroling interests N 3 177 1040
Tolal comprehensive income for the period 428 2,321
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Consolidated balance sheet

at 16 September 2023

2023 2027

Nole £m £n1
MNon-curent assets
Intangible assets g 1,880 1.879
Property, plant and eguipment 10 5,834 5727
Right-of-use assets i 2,377 2477
Investment praperty 12 274 246
Investrments in joint ventures 13 305 303
Investments in associates 13 93 89
Employee Lenadils assets 14 1,448 1,393
Investments 28 14¢ 142
Income tax 7 23 23
Deferred tax assels 15 195 160
Other recavaibles P ) 16 63 58
Tolglnon-cumentossels T T 7 T T T T T T T 2439 12497
Currenf assets
Assels classified s held for sale 17 - 45
Inventories 15 3.246 3296
Biological assets 19 99 105
Trade ond other receivables 14 1.807 1,789
Derivative assets 25 26 475
Investiments 78 1,329 1.243
Income tax 103 74
Cash and cash equivalents - o 2 1596  2.004
Tofalcurrentassets T 8276 5255
Tofal assets % NI~
Current iiobilities
Liaibilities classified as held for sate 17 - {14}
Lease liablities 1" (338) [320)
Loans and overdrafts 21 114Y) 1157
Tiae ond other payables 22 {3,000) 13.165)
Derivative liabilities 28 (69 (205}
Incorme fax {117} {170y
proviiops 23 {85y (87)
follcuwentfobiifes T 7 T T B78) (4118
Non-cuent iabilities
Lecsse hiabilties 1 {2.852) {2,955)
Loans 2] (394) (481}
Provisions 23 (48) [26)
Deferred tax licbilities 15 (642} {464}
Employee beneits icoites o o L 14 (75) (84
Total non-curent licbifties T B T e 4212
Totalliabilfies 0 T - 7.75%) 8,330}
Net assets e ————— - 13,154 13,422
Equity
Issued capital 24 - -
Share premiunm 382 382
Other reserves 24 H 97
Transiation reserve 24 (22} 235
Hedging reserve 24 1 84
Retgiredecvings e 7733 7308
Tolal equity offributable toequify sharehotders  ~~— — — — — T T 8,195 8106
Gﬁ?énhoﬂing interests e - T 4,961 - 5316
Tolal equity D - 13,156 13,422

The financial statements on pages 13 to 77 were approved by the Baard of Directors on 15 December 2023 and were

signed onits behalf by:

\

bty

St Guy Wesion
Chairman
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

2023 2077

rGle £m £
Cash flow from operating activities
erofit before taxation 1,384 1.153
Profits less losses on disposal of non-current assels (27) (16}
Profits less losses on sale and closure of businesses (1 23
Transaction cosfs 4 & &
Finance income & (116) [44)
Finance expense 4 131 114
Other financial income 6 {26) (40}
Share of profit after tax from joint ventures and associates 13 {124) {102}
Amortisation 84 71
Depreciction (including depreciation of right-of-use assets) 815 816
Imparment/[Reversal of impainment) of property. plant & equipment and right-of-use assets 5 (13)
Imparment of investment properties 14 4
Exceptional items 4 109 206
Acguired inventory fair value adjusiments 3 3
Effect of hypernflationary economies 14 16
Net change in ihe fair value of current biological assets (11} (8)
Share-bosed payrment expense % 18 19
Pension cosls less contributions (8} 7
Increase in inventories {79} [P64)
Increase in receivables (104} (288}
{Decrease}/increcse in payables (18) 514
Purchcises less sales of cument biclogical assets (%} {4)
{Decreass)/incredse in provisions o R (27) /
Cash genercted frorm operations 2014 1,479
Income taxes paid ) _ (349 0 1313
Nei cash generated fiom operdfing activies S S lees et
Cash flow from investing activities
Dividends received from joint venfures and associates 13 109 76
Purchase of property plant and equipment (1.004) (683)
Purchase of Intangibles {7%) (72}
Sale of property. plant and equipment 48 30
Purchase of Invesiment properties (45) (63}
Sale of investment properties 3 34
Purchase of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 25 (?4) (154)
Sale of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates &b 2
Purchase of non-current investments (28) {55
Redempfion of non-curent investments 19 24
Purchase of curent invesiments 27 (1.689) {1.201)
Redernplion of/decrease in curent investments 27 1,640 1.077
Interest and dividends received _ B 54 26
Net cash used in investing aclivities o o B {998) (957
Cash flow from financing activifies
Dividends paid 10 non-contralling interests {163) {180}
Dividends paid 10 equity shareholders 8 {128) {(104)
Inferest paid (119) {114)
lease incenfives received 62 44
Repayment of lease liabilities 27 (312) {325)
Decrease in short-term loons 27 (13) {58)
Increase inlong-term loans 27 - 179
Purchase of shares in subsidiary undertaking from non-controling interests 32 {448)
Moverment from changes in own shares held ~ {44) [50)
Net cash used in financing acfivities ) o B (1167)  {608)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 27 {500) (397
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the period 2,100 2,423
Effect of movements in foreign exchange L {73) 74
Cash and cash equivalenis at the end of the period 27 1,527 2,100
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for ithe 52 weeks ended 16 Sepierniper 2023

7)V/,;A MibLiokn (o HKTH Non-
Tssucd Shiare Ofner Transialion Heogin conronrg ‘oflcn
SO PRI ME50rves reserve = earnings Taren ir‘erests equi'y
Ngte £m £m Eita) m im £m LI im im

Bolance osal 18Seplember202l T T T T T T T T T am 95 (5] 24 4617 70994598 11597
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the period recognised in fhe income statement - - - - 445 445 338 783
Remeasurements of defined benefit schemes 14 - - - - - 451 451 374 825
Deferred tax associated with defined berefitschemes - - - - {0%) o9y %0y (199}
tterms that wil nol be reciassitied to profit or ioss - . - - - 342 342 284 626
Effect of movements in foreign exchonge - - - 240 - 240 205 445
Neft loss on hedge of net investment in foreign subsiciares - - - (4 - M - {1
Net gain on ather invesiments held at lair value through
other comprahensive income E - 3 - 3 ! 4
pAovement i cash flow hedging position - - - - 228 - 28 191 419
Deferred tax ossociated with movenents in cosh flow . : - - {15) - g 13 {28}
hedging postion
Defered lox associcied with movemants in other - - i - - - {1} - {1
invesiments
Share of other comprehernsive income of joint ventures - - - 1) - 15 13 2%
and associates
Effect of hvpennﬂohonary efoncmtms _ o _ .- - - - - 25 25 21 46
flerms fhat are of ray be subsecuently reciossifed 1o T 3 T asa w3y 25 494 4l 912
peoftortoss
Ofher comprehensveincome - - 2 34 N3 367 B3¢ 702 1538
Total commprehersive incorre = =2 24 A3 812 1,281 1040 232}
Inventory cash low hedge movements
Losses framsfened ro cost of invernory D A1) D A.1= <) SO L 20 B . ]
Tofalinverfiory cash flow hedge rovemens e - I T R 27 )
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid to equity shareholders 8 - - - - {104) [104) - {104
Net movement in own shares held - - - - (18} {14 {15t {31)
Deferred! tax associated with share-based paymenis - - - - [ {1) - )
Nividends s paid to noeeniroling mterests . - = - - = - s (189
Total fransachons with owners — R _ofzi)oaz1y {195 (314
Balance as of 17 Seplember 2022 "7 97 735 84 7308 8105 5316 13,422
Total comprehensive income
Profit for ihe penod recognised in the income statement - - - - - 418 418 481 1,099
Rerneasurements of defined bernefit schemes 14 - - - - - (3) (3} (3} 8)
Defered tax associated with delfined benefit schemes - - - -~ - 2 2 2 4
lterms that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - - -~ - - {n m m {2)
Effect of movements in fareign exchange - - - {255) -~ - (258} (218} (473)
Net loss an hedge of net investment in fareign subsidionss - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
Deferred tax assacialed with movemants in fareign - - - (3) - - 3 {2} (5)
exchange
Current tax gssociated with mavements in foreign - - - 3 - - 3 3 I3
exchonge
Movernent in cash iow bedging posifion - - - -~ (144) - {148) (114} (240}
Defared tax associated with mavements in cash flow - - - - 22 - 2 18 40
hedging position
Share of ather comprehensive Incoms of joint ventures - - - {10} - ~ (10 @ (18
and associates
Eftect of hyperinflationary acanomies - - - -~ - 22 22 18 40
Herms that are or may be subsequer\ﬂy rec\osswhed o profit
orloss - - -~ (284) (124) 22 (346) (303} (449)
Clher comprehensive iy income o = ~ - - {264) (124) 2V {347} {304) {&71)
Tomg comprehensive income - = - {264)  (124) 3% 2%) 177 428
IrTvén}ory cash flow hedge movements
Losses fransferred fo cost of inventory o - - - - - 38 - 38 30 68
Tofct inveniory cosh flow hedge movernents -~ - - - 38 - 30 48
Transaclions with owners T T T
Dividends paid to equity shareholders 8 - - - - - (128) (128) ~ (128}
Net moverment in own shares held - - - - - (18) (18} (12) (28)
Acauisition of nan-contoling interasts - ~ a 7 3 (71} (57) (347} (444}
Deferred lax asoooted with shave-based payonants - - - - - 1 1 - 3
Dividends paid fo ron-confroling indeseste = 0~ e = e e = el (163)
Tolo ronsactiors witnowners - - 4 T gy (200) (567 (742)
Balance os dl 16 Sepiember 2023 - 382 101 (22) 1T 7,733 8195 4,961 13,158
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies
Witlington Investments Limited is a pivate campary

limited by shares incorporated and registered in England,
United Kingdam.

The Company's consolidated financial statements for the
52 weeks ended 16 Sepfember 2023 comprise those of the
Company and its subsidianss [the "Group'} and its interests
in joint ventures and associates,

The direciors authoised the conselidoied financial
statemants far issue on 15 Decaember 2023,

Statement of compliance

The consalidated financial statements have bean
prepared and approved by the directors in accordance
with UK-adopted Intemnational Accounting Standards ("UK
Adopled IFR3').

Given the materiality of the ABF {Associated British Foods
pic) business segrment and for eose of crossreference to
the published financial stafements of ABF, the directors
have elected to provide additional infermation in the
notes which follow setting out the conitribution of the ABF
business segrnent 1o the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. For clarity, all references to the ABF busingss
segment are shown in italics in the notes to these
statements and are consistent with the published financial
statements of ABF.

The directors have elected to prepare the parent
company financigl statements in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards and applicable law [UK Generally
Acceapted Accounting Practice), including Financial
Reporting Standard 101 '‘Reduced Disclosure Framewaork',
These are presented on pages 74 to 79.

Basis of preparation

The Company presents its consolidated financial
statements in sterling. rounded o the nearest million
{except where otherwise indicated), prepared on the
historical cost basis except that current biological assets
held by ABF [Associated British Foods plc} and certain
financial imnsiruments are stated at iair value. Assets
classified o5 held for sale are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements under UK-
Adopted IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts
of assets and figbiiifies, income and expenses and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The estimaltes
and asscciated assumptions are based on experience.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Judgements made by management in the application of
UK-Adopted IFRS that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
materal adjustment next vear, are discussed in
Accounting estimates and judgements detailed in note 2,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on a regular basis, Revisions fo accounting estimates are
recognised from the period in which the estimates are
revised.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
to all periods presented, except where stated otherwise.

Details of new accounting standards which came into
force in the year arg set out of the end of 1his note.

The Group's consolidated financial statements are
prepared o the Saturday nearest to 15 September.
Accordingly, these financial sfotements have been
prepared for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023
2022 - 52 weeks ended 17 Septernber 2022).

To avoid delay in the preparation of the cansolidated
financial statements, the results of certain subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are included up 1o 31 Augus?
each year and Forinurm and Mason pleis included up to 9
July 2023, Adjustments are made as appropriate for
significant transachons or events occuring betweean 16
September and these other balance sheet dates,

The Group's business activities, together with factors likely
to affect its future development, performance and
position are set oul in the Strategic report on pages 1o 6.
The Principal risks and uncertainties on page 5 and note
28 on pages 51 to 62 provide detdils of the Group's policy
on managing its financial and commaodity risks. The Group
has considerable financial resources, good access to
debl markets, a diverse range of businesses and q wide
geographic spread. It is therefore well placed to manage
business risks successfully.

Climate change

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
management has considered the impact of cimate
change, particularly in the context of the Nan-Financial
and Sustoinability Infformation Statement sef out on pages
3o 4 and our sustainability targets. These considerations
did not have a material impact on the financial reporting
judgemenis ano astimotes, congstont with the Gssessmeant
that climate change is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group's going concern assessmeant to June
2025 nor the viability of the Group over the next three
yeaors.

management nas considered the impach of climate
change on o numbear of key estimates within the financial
staternents, including the estimates of future cash flows
used in impairment assessments of the carrying value of
goodwil and othar non-curent assets. The assessment
with respect to the inpact of climate change will be kepl
under review by management, as the future impacis
depend on factars outside of the Group's confrol, which
are not all cumenily known.

Going concern

The globat infiationary pressures iiggered intially by
CQOVID-19 have been exacerbated by the geopolitical
uncertainty caused by Russia’s war in Ukraine. For the
avoidance of doubt, the Group does not have any
operations or investrnents in Bussia. Nevertheless, the war
hais resulied in economic uncerfainty in almost oll of the
markets in which the Group operates, and has adversely
impacted commadity costs and supply chains as well as
wage costs, Our management feams in all business
segments continue Yo monitor costinflalion closely, Whilst
there are earlysigns of caost inflation descreasing in many
parts of the global economy. the emergence of conflict in
the middle East has added further risk to an already fragile
geopolitical and economic environment. lis impacts on
the Group's frading and investing activities will depend on
the duration of the current crises in Ukraine and the
Middle East,on geopolitical repercussions and on central
bank responses fo inflafion.

However, the directors belisve the Group's resilience has
been evidenced by the year-on-year growth in operating
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continved
cash flows in excess of £1bn set oul in these statements.
After making enquiries, the directors have dreasonable
expectation thot the Group has adequale resources fo
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. For this reason they contfinue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
staterments.

Having reviewed the Board's best estimate of future cash
flow to June 2025, and having applied reverse stress tests,
the possibility that the financial headroom could be
exhausted is considered to be extremely remote. The
directors understand the risks, sensitivities and judgements
included in the cash flow forecast and have a high
degree of confidence in these cash flows. There s
substantial financial headroom between this cash flow
forecast and the cash on hand and funding available 1o
the Group over the period. This is evidenced by the net
cash position before lease kabilities for the Group of
£2.36bn at 16 September 2023 [2022: £2.83 bn).

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statementsinclude the resulfs
of the Company and its subsidiaries from the date that
contral commenceas to the date that control ceases.

They also include the Group's share of the after-tax results,
other comprehensive iIncome and net assets of its joint
ventures and associates on an equity-accounted basis
from the point at which joint control or significant
influence respectively commences, to the date that it
ceases.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
Control exists when the Company has the power, directly
or indirectly, to direct the relevant activities of an entity so
as to affect significantly the returns of that entity.

Changesin the Group’s ewnership inferest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
within equity.

All the Group's joint arrangements are joint ventures,
which are entities over whose activities the Group has joint
conirol, typically established by contractual agreement
and requiring the venturers’ unanimous consent for
strategic financial and operating decisions.

Assaciates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, being the power to parficipate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the entity, but
which does not amount to control or joint control.

Where the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in o
joint venture or associate, the carrying amount is reduced
to zero and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
canstructive obligations or made paymentis on behalf of
aninvestee.

Control, joint control and significant influence are
generally assessed by reference to equity sharehaldings
and voting rights.

Business acquisitions

On acquisition of a business, the Group attributes fair
values to the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired, reflecting conditions at the date of
acquisition. These include aligning accounting policies
with those of the Group.

The Group finalises provisional tair values within 12 manths
of the date of ccquisition and, where significant, reflects
them by restatement of the comparative period in which
the acquisition occurred. The Group measures non-
controlling interests at the proportionate share of the net
identifiable assets acguired.

The Group remeasures existing equity interests in the
acquiree fo fair vaiue at the date of acguisifian, wilh any
resulting gain or loss taken fo the income statement.

Goaodwill arising on acguisition of a business is the excess
of the remeasured camying amount of any existing equity
interest plus the fair value of consideration payable for the
additional stake over the fair value of the share of net
identifiable assets and tiabilities acquired {including
seporately identified intangible assets). net of non-
conifroling interests. Total caonsideration does nof include
transaction costs, which the Group expenses as incured.

The Group measures confingent cansideration at fair
value at the date of acquisition, classified as a liability or
equity (usually as a liability}.

Cther than for the finalisation of provisional fair values, the
Group accounts for changes in contingent consideration
classified as a liability in the income statement.

Exceptionol items

Exceptional items are those items that, in the judgement
of the Directors, need to be disclosed separately by virtue
of their nature, size or incidence. ltems that may be
considered exceptional in nature include disposals of
businesses or significant assets, business restructurings,
significant onerous contract charges/releases, debt
repurchase costs, certam pension past service
credits/costs, asset impairments fwrite-backs and the tax
effects of these itermns.

The Group distinguishes between exceptlional and non-
exceplional impairments/write-backs on the basis of the
underlying driver of the impairment, as well as the
magnitude of the impairment. Drivers that are deemed to
be outside of the control of the Group give rise to
exceplional impairments. Addifionally, impairment
charges that are of a one-off nature and significant
enough value to distort the underlying resulis of the
business are considered o be exceptional.

Revenue

Revenue represents the value of sales made to customers
after deduction of discounts, sales taxes and o provision
for returns. Discounts include sales rebates, price
discounts, customer incentives, certain promational
activilies and similar items. Revenue does not include sales
between Group companies.

The Group recognises revenue when performance
obligations are satisfied, goods are delivered to customers
and control of goods is transferred to the buyer.

In the Food businesses of ABF, the Group generally
recognises revenue from the sale of goods on dispatch or
delivery to customers, dependent on shipping terms, and
provides for discounts and retums as a reduction to
revenue when sales are recorded. based on
management's best estimate of the amount required to
meet claims by customers, 1aking info account
contractual and legat obligations, historical trends and
past expenence.

In the Retail business of ABF, the Group generally
recognises revenue from the sale of goods when a
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies confinued
customer purchases goods, and provides forretums as @
reduction to revenue when sales are recorded, based an
management’s best estimate of the amount required to
meet claims by customers, taking inte account historical
frends and past experiencea.

Borrowing costs

The Group accounts for borrowing costs using the
efiective interest method. The Group copitalises
Dorowing costs directy altributoble Yo the coquisition,
construction ar production of gualifying items of property,
plant and equipment as part of their cost.

Fareign cutrencies

Individual Group companies record transactions in foreign
currencies at the exchange rate af the date of the
fransaction, and transiate monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies at the exchange rate ot the balance
shiest date, with any resulting differences ioken 1o the
income statement, unless designated in a hedging
relationship, in which case hedge accounting apples.

On consolidation, the Group translates the assets and
iabilities of operations denominated in foreign currencies
mnta sterling at the exchange rate at the balance sheet
date. The Group translates the income statements of
those operations into sterling al average exchange rates.

The Group records differences arsing from the
refranstation of cpening net assets of Group companies,
together with differences arising from the restatement of
the net resulis of Group companies from averoge
exchange rates to those at the balunce sheet date, in the
fransiation reserve in equity.

Pensions and other past-employment henefits

The Group's pension and other post-employment Henefit
arangements comprise defined benefit plans, defined
contribution plans ond ofther unfunded post-employment
plans.

For defined benefit plans, the income statement charge
comprises the cost of benefits earned by members and
penefit improvernents granted to members during the
year, as well as netinterest income/(expeanse) calculated
by applying the iability discount rate to the opening net
pension asset or liability,

The Group records the difference between the market
value of scheme assets and the present value of scheme
lighilities on a scheme-by-scheme basis as net pension
assefs {fo the extent recoverable) or fabilities.

The Group recognises remeasuremeants and movements in
irecoverable surpluses in other comprehensive income.

The Group charges contributions payable in respect of
defined contribution plans to operating profit as incurred.

The Group accounts for other unfunded post-employment
plans in the same way as defined benefit plans.

Income tax

Income tax on profit or loss for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. The Group recognises income
fax in the income statement except 1o the extent that it
relaies 1o iterms taken direcily to eguity.

Cumrent tax is the tax expected to be payable on laxable
income for the year. using tox rates enacied or
substantively enacted for the period, together with any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior perdods.
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The Group provides for deferred fax using the balance
sheet iabiity method, providing for temporary differences
between the camying amounts of asseis and liobilities for
financial reporting purpases and the amounts used for tox
purposes.

The Group does not provide for the following temporary
differences: inifial recognition of goodwili; inftial
recognition of asseis or iabilities affecting nefther
accounting nor taxable profit other than those acquired
in a bustness combination: and differences relating to
investrnents in subsidiaries 1o the extent that they wil
probably not reverse in the foresesable future.

The Group bases the amount of deterred tax provided on
the expected manner of realisation o setflement of the
canying amaunt of assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

The Group recognises deferrad tax assets anly to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be ulilised.

The Group offsets defered fax assets and fabilities . and
anly if, it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and labilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities
relale 1o income 1axes levied by the same foxation aurnornity
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable enlities
which intend either to setlle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and setile the liabifities
simuttaneaously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax iiabilities or assets are expected to
be seffied o recovered.

As required by IAS 12, we have applied the exception fo
recognising and disciosing information anout deferred fax
assets and fabilifies related 1o Pillar Two income taxes.

The Group recognises income tax arising from dividend
distributions af the same time os the fiotility o pay the
related dividend.

fingncial assels and liabifities

The Group recognises financial assets and liabiities when it
becomes a party to the conlractyal provision of the
relevant financial inskrument,

Trade and other receivables

The Group records frade and ofher receivabies initially at
fair value and subsequently at amortised cost, This
generally results in recognition af nominal value less an
expected credittoss provision. which is recognised based
on management's expectotion of losses without regard to
whether or not a specific impairment trigger has occured.

Gther non-cusrent receivables

Other non-current receivables comprise finance lease
receivables due from a joint venture and minority
sharehaldings in private companies, The Group accounts
for finance lease receivables in the same way as for frade
and cther recelvabies.

The Group records minority shareholdings in designated
private companies initialiy at fair value, including directly
attributable fransoction costs, and subsequenily at fair
value through ofher comprehensive incame (FYQCI).

On disposal of o minarity shareholding, the cumuliative
gain ar joss previously recognised in ofher comprehensive
income is included directly in retained eamings. without
recyciling it to the income statement.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued

Bank and other bhorrowings

The Group records bank and other borrowings initially at
fair value, which equals the proceeds received, nat of
direct issue costs, and subseguently at amorhsed cost. The
Group accounts for finance charges, including premiums
payable on settlement or redemplion and direct issue
costs, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade payables

The Group records trade payables initially at fair value
and subsequently al amaoriised cast. This generally results
in recognition at nominal value.

Cther financial assets

Other financial assels are classified, at Initial recognition.
as valued at amortised cost or fair value through profit
and loss (FVTPL), The classification of financial assets
depends on the financial asset’s cash flow characteristics
and the business model for managing them., Financial
assefs at amortised costs are subject to impairments with
gains and losses being recognised in the profit and loss
when ihe assels are derecognised or impaired. Financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss are typically
held for trading and are carded in the statement of
financial pesition at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit and 1oss. Equity investments
where the Company does not have significant influence,
control or joint confrol are measured at FYTPL.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash
balances. call depaosits and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Tor the purposes of the cash flow statement, the Group
includes bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integrat part of the Group's cash
management as a companent of cash and cash
equivalents.

Intangible assets other than goodwill

Non-operating intangible assets are intangible assets that
arise on business combinatiens and typically include
technology. brands, customer relationships and grower
agreements. The Group acquires operating intangible
assels in the ordinary course of businass, typically including
computer software, land use rights and emissions trading
licences.

The Group records intangible assels other than goodwill at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
charges.

Amartisation is charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the estimaled useful ives of
intangible assets from the date they are available for use.
The estimated useful lives are generally deemed fo be no
longer than:

—up o 15 years
- up o 10 yeors
—up to 10 years

up to 10 yeors

Technology and brands
Customer relationships
Grower agreements
Cperating intangibles

Goodwill

Goodwil s defined under ‘Business acguisitions' on page
19. Certain commercial assets associated with the
acquisition of a business are not capable of being
recognised in the acquisition balance sheet. In such
circumstances, goodwill is recognised, which ray include,

but is not necessarily limited to, workfarce assels and the
benefits of expected future synergies.

Goadwill is subject to an annual impairmeant raview.

Impairment

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible
assets and property, plant and eguipment at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
Group estimates the indicated asset’s recoverable
amount. For goodwill and intangibles without & finite life,
the Group does this at least annually.

The Group recognises an impairment charge in the
income statement whenever the carying amount of an
asset or its CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

The Group allocailes impaument charges recegnised n
respect of CGUs first to reduce the camying amount of
any goodwll relaling fo that CGU and then fo reduce the
carying amount of the other assets in the CGU on a pro
rata basis.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their
fair value less costs to sell and their value in use. In
assessing value in use, the Group discounts estimated
future cash flows to present value using a pre-tax discount
rate reflective of cument market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

For an asset that does not generate lorgely independent
cash inflows, the Group determines recoverable amount
for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment

The Group does not subsequently reverse impaimments of
goodwill. For other assels, the Group does reverse an
impairment charge if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, but
only to the extent that the new carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined. net of depreciation or cmortisation, if no
impairment charge had previously been recognised.

Property, plant & equipment
The Group records property, plant and equipment af cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment charges.

The Group charges depreciation 1o the income statement
on a straight-ine basis over the estimated vseful
economic lives of each item sufficient to reduce it to its
estimated residual value. Land s not depreciated.
Estimated useful economic fives are generally deemed to
be no longer than:

Freehold buildings up to 66 years
Plant and equipmeant. fikdures and fittings

sugar factories, yeast plants, mills and up o 20 years

bakeries
other operations upto 12 years
vehicles up to 10 years

Sugar cane rocts up to 10 years

Leases

Alease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to
the lessee, inreturn for a payment or g series of payments,
the right to use a specific asset for an agreed period.

Where the Group is a lessee, the following accounting
policy is applied.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 146 Sepiember 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies conlinued
Right-of-use assets

The Group records right-of-use assets af cost ai the
commencemeant date of the lease, which is the date the
underlying asset is available for use. [ess any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
sulnequent remeasuremeant of lease liabilities.

Cost includes the amount of legse llabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received.

The Group charges depreciation 1o the income statement
on o straight-ine basis over tha shorter of the esfimated
vseful e ond the lease term,

Lease {fabilities

The Group records lease habilibies at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at the commencement date
of the laegse if the inferest rate implicit in the lease is not
recdily determinabile.

Lease paymenis include fixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments, and varable lease payments
that depend on anindex or a rate, less any lease
incentives receivable.

Variable lease paymeants that do not depend on anindex
or arate are recognised as an expense in the periad in
which the event or condition that figgers the payment
QCCUrs.

The Group subsequently measures lease liabilities at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
The Group records the accretion and settlement of
interest through accruals and reduces the carmying
armount of lease liabilities for the capital element of lease
payments made.

The corrying arnount of tease liakilities is also remeasured
when there s a change in ulure lease payments due fo a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance
fixed leose payments or a change in the assessnent of
whether fo purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or lass from the commencement date and do nat cantain
a purchase optian, It alse applies the low-value asset
recagnition exemption to groups of underlying leqases
considaered uniformily low-vake,

The Group expenses lease payments on short-term leases
and legses of low-value gssets in the income statement as
incured.

Lessor accounting

wWhen sutleosing ossets, the CGroup assesses he sublease
classification with reference to ine head lease fght-of-use
asset, which considers, omong other factors, whether the
sublegse represents a majority of fhe remaining iife of the
heod lease.

The ratio of rental income to head lease rental payments
is wsed to determine how much of the right-of-use asset
shauld be derecognised, taking into account whether the
sublease/head lease are above or below market rate.
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The Group records amounts due from lessees under
finance leases as a receivable at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease, calculated using the
incremental borrowing rate at the date of recognition.
The Group recognises any difference betweaen the
derecognised dght-of-use asset and the newly recognised
amounts due from lassees under finance leases in the
income statement,

The Group recognises finance income over the lease
term. reflecting o constant periodic rate of return on the
net investment in fhe lease.

The Group recognises operating lease income as earned
on & siraight-ine basis over ihe lease ferm.

Inventories

The Group records inventories at the lower of cost and net
reahsable value. Cost includes raw materials, direct labour
and expenses and an appropriate propertion of
production and other overheads. calculated on a firskin
first-out basis,

The Group recaords refail inventories af the lower of cost
and net realisable vatue using the refall method,

caiculated on the basis of selling price less appropriate
frading margin. All retail inventories are finished goods.

On acquisition of g business, the Group records inventories
at fair value. Subseguently, the Group charges the boaok
value of the inventaries to adpsted operating profit as
they are sold or used. Any fair value uplift, if significant, is
charged below adjusted operating profit as the
inventories are sold or used.

Investment property

Investment properties are held af cost less pravision for
impairment. Impairment is determinad by reference to the
fair value of property estimated erther by independent
voiluars or by the directors, Depreciation is provided where
the directors consider that the residual value of major
components of the property is less than current book
value.

The foflowing accounting policies relafe exclusively to the
income, expenditure, assets and fiabiliies of the
Associaled British Foods plc (“ABF") segment within the
consolidated Group financial statements of Willington
investmenis Umited,

Share-hased payments

The Group recognises the fair value of share gwards at
grant date as an employee expense with a coresponding
increase in equity, spread over the period during which
the employees become unconditionally entifled to the
shares.

The Group adjusts the amount recognised 1o reflect
expecfed and actual levels of vesfing except where the
failure fo vestis as a result of not meeting a market
condition.

Derivative finencial insfruments and hedging

the Group primarily uses derivatives to manage economic
exposure to financial and commedity risks, The principot
instruments used are foreign exchange and commodity
contracts, futures, swaps or options. The Group does not
use denvatives for speculative purposes.

The Group recognises derivatives gt falr value hased on
market prices or rafes, or calculaled using discounted
cash flow or option pricing models,
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1. Significant Accounting policies continued

The Group recognises changes in the fair value of
derivatives in the income statemenf unless the derivative fs
designated in o hedging relglonship, when recognition of
the change in fair value depends on the nature of the
ftern being hedged.

The purpose of hedge accounting is fo mifigafe the
impact on the Group of changes in foreign exchange or
interest rafes and commaodify prices.

At the inception of each hedging relationship, the Group
documents the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the
sk management objectives and strategy for undertaking
the hedge and assesses hedge effectiveness,

During the fife of each hedging relationship. the Group
performs tesfing to demonstrate that the hedge remains
effective.

For derivatives used as hedges of future cash flows, the
Group recognises the change in tair value through other
cormprehensive income in ¢ither the cost of hedging
reserve (for the element of the change in fair value
relating to the currency spread) orin the hedging reserve
{for the remaining change in fair vaiue). Any ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement,

When the future cash flow results in the recognition of @
non-financiaf asset or iobilty. then at the time that asset
or ffabifity is recognised. the Group includes the
associated goins and losses previously recognised in the
hedging reserve in the inifiat measuremeant of Hal usser or
fability.

When the fulure cash flow does not result in the
recognifion of a non-financial asset or liability, the Group
includes the associated goins and losses previously
recognised in the hedging reserve in the income
statement in the same period in which the hedged fem
affecis profit or foss.

Hedges of the Group's nef invesfment in foreign
operctions principally comprise borrowings in the curency
of the invesfment's nef assefs.

For derivative or non-derivative fingncial instruments used
as hedges of the Group's netinvesiment in foreign
operations, the Group recognises the change i fair volue
fhrough other comprehensive income in the net
investment hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion is
recognised immedialely in the income statement.

The Group discontinyes hedge accounting when o
hedging inskrument expires aris sold, terminated,
exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.

At that time. the Group retains the cumulative associated
gain or loss recognised in the hedging reserve until the
forecast transgction occurs. Gains orlosses on hedging
instruments relafing fo an underlying exposure that no
longer exists are taken to the income statement.

The Group econamically hedges foreign curency
exposure on recognised monetory ossefs and fiobifities but
does not normally seek hedge accounting. The Group
records any derivaiives held fo hedge this exposure af fair
vajue through profit and loss.

Research dand development
The Group expenses research and development
expendifure as incurred. untess development exponditure

relales to products or processes which ore technically and
commercially feasible, in which case it is capitalised. The
Group records capifalised development expenditure af
cost less accumulated aomorfisafion and impairment
charges.

Currenf Biological Assets
The Group records curent biological assets of fair volue
fess costs fo sofl.

The basis of vauation for growing canc is estimated
sucrase confent valued at estimated sucrose price for the
following season. less the esfimated caosts for harvesting
and transporf.

When harvested, growing cane is fransfered fo nventory
at fair value less costs fo seff.

Grants

The Group recognises granis only when there s
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attached and that the grants will be received.
Grants receivable as compensation for expenses aiready
incurred are recognised in profit orfoss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Hypetinflation

The Argentinion economy was designated
hyperinfiationary from 1 July 2018 The Turkish economy
was designated hyperinflationary from ¥ July 2022,

The Group has applied I1AS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies 1o the Group's Argentinion
operations from the beginning of the 2019 financial vear
cnd for ifs Turkish operativie ot the peginning of the
2022 financial year, 1AS 29 requires that hyperinfiationary
adjustments are reflected from the start of the reporting
pericd in which it is applied. far the Group's Argentinian
opergtions this was I September 2018, and for the Group's
Turkish operations this was | September 2021,

The adiustments required by IAS 29 are set out below:

- adjustment of histarical cost non-monetary assets and
liabilities frem their date of initial recognition to the
balance sheet date to reflect the changes in
purchasing power of the currency caused by inflation,
according to the official indices for Argentinn
published by the Federacién Argentina de Consejos
Profesicnales de Ciencias Economicas [FACPCE} and
for Turkey published by Turkish Stafisficol Institute
{TUIK'):

- adjustment of the components of the income
statement and cash flow stafement for the inflation
inclex since their generation. with a balancing entry in
the income statement and a reconciling item in the
cash flow statement, respactivaly;

adjustment of the income statement fo refiect the
mpact of inflafion on helding monetary assets and
ficbilities in local currency;

- the financial statements of the Group's Argentinian
and Turkish operations have been franslated into
sterling at the closing exchange rate at 16 September
2023 {ARS 433,88:£1; TRL 33.45:£1); and

- the cumulaiive impact corresponding to previous
years has been reflected in other comprehensive
income in the year.

In Argentina, the FACPCE index was ¢11.1316 at 31 Augusf
2027 and 2044.2832 a1t 31 August 2023. The inflation index
for the year is therefore 2.244.
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1. Significant Accounting policies continued
in Turkey, the TUIK index was 80.21 at 31 August 2027 and

58.94 at 31 August 2023, The inflation index for the year is
therefore (0.735.

The Veneruslan cconomy has been designafed
hyperinflationory for a number of years, but fhe impact on
the Group's results remains immaterial.

New accounting policies

The following accounting standards and amendments
were adopted during the year and had no significant
impact on the Group:

Reference lo the Conceplual Framework
{Amendments to IFRS 3)

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use {Amendments to 1AS 14}

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a Contract
{Amendments to AS 37)

- Annual Improvements to IFRS 2018-2020

The Group is assessing the impact of the following
standards, interpretations and amendments thal are not
vet effective. Where dlready endorsed by the UKEB, these
changes will be adopted on the effective dates noted.
Where not yet endorsed by the UKEB, the adoption date is
less certain:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, Amendments to IFRS 17,
Imitial Appiication of IFRS 17 and IFRS 7 - Comparative
Information, effective 2024 financial year

- Disclosure of Accounting policies {Amendments 1o IAS
1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2], effective 2024
financial year

- Definition of Accounting Estimates [Amendments to
IAS 8], effective 2024 financial year

Deferred Tax related to Assels and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12],
effective 2024 financia! year

Legse Liakility in a Sale and Leaseback {Amendments
to IFRS 16}, effective 2025 financial year

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules
[Amendments to 1AS 12}, effective 2024 financial year

'Classification of Liakilities as Current or Non-current
and Non-current Ligbilities with Covenants
[Amendments to 1AS 1), effective 2025 financial year

Supplier finance Arrangements [Amendments ta 1AS 7
and IFRS 7), effective 2025 financial year

Amendments to 1AS 21 The Effects of Changesin
Foreign Exchange Rates: Lack of Exchangeabllity,
effective 2024 financial year (not yet endorsed by the
UKEB)

2. Accounting estimates and judgements

In applying the accounting policies detalled on pages 18
10 24, the directors have made estimates in  number of
areqs. The actual outcome may differ from those
estimates. Key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balonce sheet date, with the potential for material
adjustment to the carrying value of assels and liabilities
within the next financial year, dre set out below,
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Forecasts and discount rates

The carrying values of a number of items on the balance
sheet are dependent on estimates of future cash flows
arising from the Group's operations and investments
which, in some circumstances, are discounted o arive at
a net present value.

Assessmenl for impairment involves comparing the book
value of an asset with its recoverable amount {being the
higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell).
Value in use is determined with reference to projected
future cash flows discounted ot an appropriate rate. Both
the cash flows and the discount rote involve a significant
degree of estimation uncertainty,

Further details are included in note 2 for intangible assets,
note 10 for property, plant and equipment and note 12 for
investment property.

The recovery of deferred tax assets is dependent on the
generation of sufficient future taxable profits. The Group
recognises deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
considered probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available in the fulure. This involves a significant degree of
estimahon uncertainty.

When considering sources of future faxable profit, the
Group firstly considers existing deferred tax liabilities.
However, the majorilty of deferred fax assets are
recognised based on future profit forecasts. including the
defemed tax assets in ABF's most material jurisdictions of
the United Kingdom, the United States, Australia, Germany
and Spairn.

When relying on profit forecasts, the assessment of
whefther to recognise deferred tax assets is based on the
following vear's budget and expectations of the future
performance of individual businesses (or groups of
businesses in the case of national tax groups). Where
possible, this is consistent with forecasts used for
impairment assessments. Forecasts for impairment
assessments are discounted. but this is not permitted for
recognition of deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax assets are reduced when it is no longer
considered probable that the related tax benefit will be
reclised.

The widespread nature of the ARF's activities across
multiple jursdictions means that it is not practical to
provide detailed sensitivities in respect of individual
deferred tax assets.

Further details of deferred tax assets are included in note
15.

Post-retirement benefits

The Group's defined benefit pension schermes and similar
arrangements are assessed annually in accordance with
|AS 19 Employee Benefits. The accounting vatuations,
assessed vsing assumptions determined with independent
actuarial advice, resulted in a significant net surplus as af
16 September 2023, principally relaling to the UK defined
benefit scheme, which is separalely disclosed.

The net surplus is highly sensitive to the market value of
scheme assets, to discount rates used in assessing
liahilities, to actuaral assumptions (including price
inflation, rates of pension and salary increaseas, mortality
and other demographic assumptions) and to the level of
contributions.
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2. Accounting estimates and judgements
continved

Further details are included in note 14, including
associated sensitivitias.

The following other areas of accounting estimates and
judgemenis relafe exclusively to the income, expenditure,
assels and liabilities of the Assaciated British Faods plc
("ABF”) segment within the consolidated Group financial
statements of Wittington Investrments Limited.

Biclogical assets

in valuing growing cane, estimaiing sucrose content
reguires the Group fo assess expected cane and sucrose
vields for the following season considering weother
conditions and harvesting programmes. Estimaiing
sucrose price requires the Group to assess info which
markets the forthcoming crop will be sold and assess
domestic and export prices as well as related foreign
currency exchange rates. The camrying value of growing
cane and associated sensitivifies is disclosed in noie 19.

Income tax

The Group is exposed to a range of uncertain tax
positions. If provides for open fax matfors, where if
believes it is probable that payments will be required,
including those for rovtine tax audits, which gre by noture
camplex and may fake a number of years fo resolve,
Uncertainty is driven by the resolution of the jssue and
estimation process in ariving at the amount. The Group
has recognised pofential curent corporate fax fiabilities
for a number of uncertain tax positions, none of which are
inclividualiy rnateriol. The provision for these vncertain tax
positions wos 2023 - £55m (2022 - £102m). The reduction in
the provision is due to the conclusion of UK fax cudits
covering several businesses and years. The mgjority of the
remaining provisions relafe to transfer pricing risks across o
number of jurisdictions in which the Group has operafions.
Transfer pricing is a compiex area with resolution of
matters taking mony years, Given the underying nofure of
these risks, the fiming of when they will resoive s uncertain.

The Group appiies IFRIC 23 Uncerfointy over income Tox
Treatments to measure uncertain fax postions, The Group
cafculates each provision using managernent’s best
estimate of the liability based on interpretation of fax iaw
in each jursdic tion ond ongoing monitoring of tax cases
and rulings. The Group befieves if has adequate provision
for these matters. Final conclusion of each matfer may
resutt in on cutcome different to any amounis provided,
but the Group has concluded that this is unlikely fo hove a
matericl impact.
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3. Our businesses

ABF has five operating divisions, as described below, plus Cenfral ABF. These are ABF's operating divisions, based on the
management and internal reporfing structure, which combine businesses with common characteristics, primarily in
respect of the type of products offered by each business, but also the production processes involved and the manner of
the distribution and safe of goods.

Infer-division pricing is determined on an arm’'s fength basis. Division result is adjusted operating profif. as shown on the
face of the consolidated income statement. Division results include ftems directly ottribufable to a division as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. ABF is comprised of the following operafing divisions:

Grocery

The manufacture of grocery products, including hot beverages, sugar and sweeteners, vegetable olls, balsamic
vinegars, bread and baked goods, cereals, ethnic foods, and meat products. which are sold fo refail, wholesale and
foodservice businesses.

Sugar
The growing and processing of sugar beet ond sugar cane for sale to industrial users and to Siver Spoon, which fs
included in the Grocery operating division.

Agriculture
The manufacture of animal feeds and the provision of other products and services for the agriculture sector.

Ingredients
The monufacture of bakers' veast, bakery ingredients, enzymes, ipids, yeast extracts and cereal spocialiics.

Retail
Buving and merchandising value clothing and accessorics through the Primark and Penneys refail chains.

In addition to ABF, the Group presents the revenue and adjusted operating profit of *Luxury retail’ and 'Other’, The latter
includes the Group's 'Real Estate’, *Hotels' and Private Markets & Other Investments™ businesses, none of which are
individually material for separate disclosure. For more information see pages 1-2.

Adjusted operating profit

Adjusted operating profitis a key altemative perforrmance measure used in the ABF performance framework as outlined
in the Remuneration Report in the annual report and accounts of ABF on pages 100 to 115, Adjustedt oparating profit is
stated before amaortisation nf non-oporating inta wibsles, fransachon costs, amortisation of fair value adjusiments made
to acquired inventory, profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets and exceptional items.

ltermns defined above which arise in the Group's joint ventures and associates are also freated as adjusting items for the
purposes of adjusted operating profit.

A reconciliation of this measure is provided on the face of the consolidated income statement.

REVENLE A;T!TJ?I.‘;’(’{SU”&’HEJ]I -

2023 2022 2023 2022

£m im £m i
Grocery 4,198 3,735 448 399
ingrodicnts 2157 1827 214 159
Agriculture 1,840 1,722 41 47
Sugar 2.547 2016 169 162
Retail 9,008 7.697 735 756
CenfralABF o - - (94) (88
ABF Total 19,750 16,997 1.513 1,435
Luxury retail 244 224 9 7
Other o 32 0 14
Group Total S ___-W- 0 .5’-,258 ’ ‘1,503 1,456

T o Revenoe

2023 2022

£m im
Geographical information
Urited Kingdom 7.537 4,628
Eurcpe. Middle East & Africa 7,553 6292
The Americas 2,421 2,029
Asicr Pacific o 2,57 2,309
Group Total o 20028 17238
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for the 52 weeks ended 16 Septembzer 2023

4. Operating costs

AR

. Cowolomied Group

) Tumd 2023 2022
rore £m £rm £m Em
QOperating cosis
Cosls of sales (including amortisation of intangibles) 15,587 13219 15,725 13,34%
Distribution osts 1.603 1465 1.623 1.481
Adminisiration expenzes 1,220 1045 1.350 1,139
Bxceptionalitems . _ .. 4 AR . L .
TTTTigsI9 15935 18,807 16175
Operdling costs are stated after charging/(crediting}:
Ernployee benefits expense 5 3158 2812 3.222 2874
Amarfisation of non-operaling iniangibles g 38 44 a8 44
Armoitisation of operating infangibles ? 44 24 48 27
Acqured nveriory fair volue adustrnegnis 3 5 3 5
Depreciation of owned property. plant & equipment 10 531 321 538 530
Cepreciation of ight-of-use assets and non-cash lecse
adjustmeants 11 273 281 277 286
Impairment of property. plant & equipment and right-of-use
assefs - 5 {13]
Impairment of investrment property 12 - - 14 é
Transacfion costs 5 4 5 4
Effect of hypeinfialionary economies 14 i& 14 16
Other operating income {35) {25} (34) 131)
Research ond development expenditure 42 37 42 37
Fair value gains on financial assets ond liabilities held for trading 19} {23} {19) 123)
Fair value losses on financiol assets and liabifities held for 22 17 23 17
frading
Foreign exchange gains on operating activities (48} (38} (48) 137)
Foreign oxchangc 1os3es o vpsialingg activings 62 37 62 37

Amortisation of nan-operating intangibles of £41m (2022 - £47m) shown as an adjusting item in the income statement,
ncludes £3m (2022 - £3m) incured by joint ventures, in addition to the amounts shown above.

Auditor's remuneration Y __Consplidaled Growe

2023 2072 2023 2057
£m im £m £m

Fees payable to the Company’s auditer and its associates in respect of the

audit

Group audit of these fincncial staterments - - 0.2 0.2

Audit of Compony s subsidicries pursuant 1o legisialion o 10.2 9,2 104 98

Total audit remuneration B 10z 92 106 100

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates in respect of non-

awvdit related services

Audit-related assurance services 0.4 0.4 04 0.4

All other services e 66 05 04 0.5

Totol non-cudit relote remunerction e T 1.0 09 10 09
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4. Operating costs confinued
Excepflional items

2023

The income statement this yeor included a non-cash excepfional impairment charge of £109m. in the ABF Grocery
division, The Don business has been adversely affected by inflationary pressures. a surpius supply of fresh pork in the
markel, fabour consfraints and equiprment reliobilify causing production shortfalls and additional fransportation costs
faifowing the unioreseen liguidation ot ifs distibution partner. As a rosult, the Group has recognised Impairment write-
downs of £39m against property, plont opd equipment, £ against right-of-use assels and £im against intangibie
assets.

In the ABF Sugor division, north China recognised o £15m impairment wiite down ogainst properfy, plant and
cquipment. This business was classified as held for saie in the previous year, but the potential buver withdrew their offer in
the second half of the yeor. Due fo the severe flooding in Mozambigue, the reloted darnage fo the sugar crop fields
and the inability to plant for the foreseeable future, tlovo Mozambique recognised a £25m impairment write-down
against property, plant and equipment. £7m against curent biological assefs, pravided £2m for personna! costs and
wrote down inventfory by £1m,

in the ABF Retail divisian, the Group recagnised £13m of exceptional impoirment chorges refating to the German store
portfolic. This primarily refated to stores impaired in the previous year after additional right-of-use assels were recognised
due fo rent indexation adjusfments. The Group also recognised a £4m charge including a £3m exceptionalimpairment
for the write-down of property. plant and equipment for the right-sizing of four turther ABF German sfores and £1m to
write down o freehold store,

2022

The income statement included an exceptional impairment charge of £206m comprising non-cash writedowns of £72m
against property. plant and equipmenf and a write-down of £134m of righf-of-use assets relating to the copitalisation of
store leases for Pimark. Also £49m of the £63m exceptional charge included in the Group's total fax charge for fhis
financial yeor was the de-recognition of the ABF deferred tax assets relating to Germany.
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for the 52 weeks ended 14 Septembaer 2023

5. Employees and directors

ARF - Comsolidated Group
2023 2622 2022 2022
£m £m £m £m
Average number of employees
United Kingdom 42,071 41,526 43,407 43,086
Europe & Afica 73,411 73.155 73.4M 73,155
The Amencas 6,769 6,102 5,769 5,102
Asia Pacific 1,236 11450 11,294 11,552
- T 133,487 132,273 134,881 133.895
. Y- Consolidated Groap,
7023 2022 2023 07
MNole Em £m £ £m
Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries 2,657 2.350 2714 2,406
Social security contributions 355 311 340 316
Confributions to defined confribution schemes 14 95 &7 97 a9
Charge for defined benefit schemes 14 313 45 33 A4
Equity-setlled share-based payment schemes 2¢ 18 19 18 g
T 3,158 2.812 3,222 2876
T - N 2023 T
£'000 £000
Directars’ remuneredion
Aggregate directars” emoluments 4,374 5095

The aggregate amoluments of the highest paid director were £4,100,000 {2022: £2.286,000). He is a member of o Group

pension scheme and his annual accrued pension al the period end was £754,991

(2022: £719,%18).

Namoer of drectors

2023 22

Retirernent benefits are accruing ta the falowing number of drectars under:

Defined benelit schemes

4. Interest and other financial and expense

ABF Cormolidates Grots,
2023 2072 2023 20732
Paghe Em £ £m £m
Finance income
Caosh and cosh equivalents 48 % 58 z24
Fair value gains on investrments - - 57 18
Dividends receivable - - 1 2
T o 43 L e a4
Finance expense ST T T T
Bark loans and overdrafis (23) 20} (23) (20}
All other borowings an (8) (11) {8}
Fair value losses on invesiments - - {2} (4}
Lease liabilities 1) f81) (923 (82)
Other payables o @ 3) _@
(128 (111 (131} 18]
Other financial (exp;r;gé)/income T
Interest income on employee benefil scheme assets 14 185 84 185 84
Interest charge on employee benefit scheme licbilities 14 (123) (74) {123} (74)
Interest charge on recoverable surplus 14 {2) {1} [2) n
Het financialincome in respect of employee benefit schemes 40 9 &0 ?
Net foreign exchange {losses|/gains on financing activities kg 4 (34) 31
Total other financial income T T e 40 13 2% W
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7. Income fax expense

—abr  Comsolidgled Croup
2023 2072 2023 7022
£m im Em £
Cument tox expense
UK~ corporation tax at 21 8% (2022 - 19%) 26 44 40 55
Qverseqs - corporation tax 249 244 24y 244
UK - {over]/under provided in pror perods (14 12} {15) 113}
Cverseqs - undsr/(over) provided in pror periods i 18 ! 18 1
- ' T T 27% ’ 277 292 T Toe7
Deferred tax expense
UK deferred tax 54 18 51 22
Cverseas defarad tax 28 72 28 72
UK — over pravided in pnor petiads (26) {3} (23} (3]
Overseas- overprovidedinpriorpedods . (63) 8} (63) €l
. - _ Q) 79 0 8
Tofalincome fax expense in income stetement 72 3% 285 370
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit betore taxation 1,340 1.076 1,384 1.153
Loss share of profit affer tax lom jeint ventures and associates A1z 109 24y 109
Profit before taxation excluding share of profit after tax from joint ventures and
associates . tms %7 1260 1044
Nominal lax charge at UK corporation tax rate of 21.8% (2022 19%) 265 184 274 198
Effect of higher and lower tax rates on overseas earnings (16) 4 (18) 4
Effect of changes in tax rates on the ncome statement 5 2 5 3
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 66 63 66 &0
Disposal of assets covered by (ax exemptions or unrecognised capiial losses ) & 2) &
Deferred fax not recognised 39 120 40 1%
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 83) {23) {83) {23)
Othertoxadjostoents - - 1
I B T 285 370
Income tax recognised direcHy in equity
Defered tox associated with defined bhenefit schames (4) 198 (4) 199 '
Defered tax associated with share-based paymenls U] f m 1
Deferred tax associated with movements in cash flaw hedging position {40) 28 40} 28
Defered tax associated with movement in foreign exchange 5 - 5 -
Curent tax assaciated with mavement in foreign exchange (8) - (8) -
Defered tax associated with movemenis in other investments ) - o - ] 1
T T T o - ' (48} 228 {46) 229

The UK corperation tox rate of 19% increased to 25% from 1 April 2023. The legislation to effect these changes was
enacted before the balance sheet date and UK deferred tax has been calculated accordingly.

In April 201% e European Commission published i1s decision on the Group Financing Exemplion in the UK's controlied
foreign company legislation. The Commission found that the UK law did not comply with EU State Aid rules in certain
circumstances. The Group has arrangements that may be impacted by this decision as might other UK-based
multinationat groups that had financing arangements in line with the UK's legislation in force at the time. The UK
Government, The Groun and ¢ number of other UK companies appedaled against this decision to the General Court of
the European Union ('GCEU'). On 8 June 2022, the GCEU found in favour of the Commission's criginal decision. As o
result of This, In August 2022, the UK Government, the Group and various other UK companies appeated GCEU's decision
to the Court of Justice of the European Union. We have colculated our maximum potential liabllity fo be £26m (2022 -
£26m), however we do not consider that any provision is required in respect of this amount based on our current
assessment of the issue. Following receipt of charging notices from HM Revenue & Custorms {'HMRC'), we made
payments to HMRC in 2021. Our assessment remains thal no provision is required in respect of this amount, We will
continue ta consider the impact of the Commission's decision on the Group and the potential requirement fo record a
provision,

In the second half of kst year o deferred tax asset arose mainly in relation to the charge taken for the impairment of
property, plant and eqguipment and store leaseas in Primark Germany. A significant proportian of this asset was deemed
not to be recoverable and was wittten off 03 an exceptional fax charge. Since then, further work hos been underiaken
to assess the amount of the deferred tax asset that is expected to be recoverable. This work determined that the
defered fax assel of last year end was understated in error.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

7. Income tax expense continued

The directors befieve that this understafement of the detered tax asset was not material o the priar peried financial
statements. Accordingly, an exceptional tax credit of £58m has been recognised in this year.

We recognise the importance of complying fully with all applicable tax laows as well as paying and collecting the right
arncunt of tax in every country in which the Group operates. Our fax strategy, approved by the Board. is based on
seven tax principles that are embedded in the financial and non financial processes and controls of the Group. This tax
strategy is ovailable in the Policies section of the Group's website.

Deferred taxation balanceas are andlysed in note 15,

8. Dividends

2033 3027
pence pes pence per 2023 i)
share share £m £m
First inferim 78.50 7125 68 ¥
Second intarim 69.50 42,00 50 az
T T aeen | 10 128 104
9. Intangible gssets
- ___ — _-k,_ — COT;S_Q'\O;‘J“&\‘]JQ s ’4— _‘__ B 7)__7‘&7 __4‘ 7)_7 -
Nor-operalng Dperaling
o
Sooowil Technol Brgnos  relanionshing agreemen’s Otrer Orhar Tl
£ Fan im i &m im
Cost
Al 18 September 2021 1,234 214 429 271 i0% 5 606 2.870
Acquisitions  extemally purchosed - - - - - - 141 141
Acquired ihrougn business combinations B85 49 33 -] - - - 173
Other disposals - - - - {49} (49}
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale - - - - [1é) (14
Effect of hypennflationary economies ? - - - - - - 9
Effect of mavements in foreign exchange 84 2 26 13 I - 33 17%
At175eptember2022 T w4 es T ass w0 o5 A5 3307
Acquisitions - exiernally purchosed - - 4 - - 144 150
Acquired through business combinations 3@ 2 Q 21 - - 3 74
Other disposals - - {15} - (5} (69} (89)
Transfer from assets classified os held for sale - - - - - - 15 15
Effect of hyperinflafionary economies 2 - - - - - 2
Effect of movemenis in foreign exchange (7%9) {15) (15 17} {14) - {25) 1461}
A116 Seplember 2023 1,376 272 484 285 94 - 785 3,298
Ameortisation and impairment
At 18 September 2021 1Mz 195 372 200 109 5 284 1,279
Amortisation for the year - 7 22 15 - 27 71
Other clisposals - - - 12 {2}
Tronster o assets classified os held for sale - - - - - - {4 {4}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 1 e 21 11 1 - 22 84
A 17 September 2022 - T =l 45 e 1o 5 Az 14
Amortisation far the year - ? 15 14 - - 43 85
Other disposals - - - {15} - {5} - 120}
Transfer from ossets classified as held for sole - - - - - 4 4
mpaiment - - - - - - 1 1
Effect of movements in fareign exchange [12) (13} 11) [t:1] (14} - 21] {81)
AiléSeptember2023 N0 217 419 27~ T va_ -7 T 361 1418
Net book valve ) ) o ) -
At 17 Septemberz022 T imgz a4 7y aa T g g
A1 15 Seplember 2023 1,248 55 87 68 - - a2a 1,880

i. All Goodwill and Non operahing Intanaible assets are ABF assefs, Of the total Cperating Intangible assers of £424m (2022: £384m), £414m (2022

£375m) are AZF assers

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no infangitle assets (2022 - £12mi classified as assets held for sale
{see note 17). Amortisation of non-operaling infangibles of £41m 12022 - £47m) shown as ¢n adjusting item in the income
statement includes £3m {2022 - £3m) incurred by joint ventures, in addition to the armounts shown above.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplember 2023

2. Intangible assets confinved
Impairment

As al 16 Sepltember 2023, the consolidated balance sheet included goodwill of £1.2646m {2022 - £1.292m). Goodwill is
allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs). ar groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the
synargies of the business comibination that aave rise ta the goodwill, as follows;

Premary teparling

Legmant e ARF Drcoan! 2023 017

CGU or Group al CGUs bLi heg segmerl rate £m im
Acetum Grocery 13.5% 71 73
ACH Grocery 13.4% 193 208
AB Maur ingredients 12.8% 267 287
Twdnings Ovaltine Grocery 134% 19 g
llove Sugor 237% 89 105
AR World Foods Crocery 125% 78 79
Other not indvidudlly sigrificanty e Varous various A2y 399
1,266 1,292

A CGU, or group of CGUs, to which goodwill has been alocated must be assessed forimpairmen! annually, or more
fraquently if events or crcumstances indicate that the camying amount may not be recovergble. There has been no
change in CGUs or group of CGUs from the prior year.

The carrying value of goodwill is assessed by reference fo ifs value in use reflecting the projected cash flows of each of
the CGUs or group of CGUs. These projections are based on the most recent budget and reflects management's
expectations of sales growih. operating costs and margin, based on past experience and extermnal sources of
information. Long-term growth rates for pericds not covered by the annual budgef reflect the products, industries ond
countries in which the: relevant CGU. ar group of CGUs, operate.

Management expeclts 1o achieve growth over the next three to five years in excess of the long-term growth rates for the
applicable country or region. In these circumstances. budgeted cosh flows are extended, generally to befween three
and five years, using specific growth assurmptions and taking inte account the specific business risks,

The key assumptions i the mast recent annual budget on which the cash flow projections are based relate ta discournt
rates, growth rates and expected changes in volumas, seliing prices and direct costy.

The cash tlow projections have bean discounted using a pre-tax weighted average cost of capital for each business.
adjusted for country. industry and market risk. Inflation assurmptions used to calculate discount rates are aligned with
those used in the cash flow projections. The rates used were between 10.2% and 23.7% (2022 - between 9.8% and
23.4%).

The long-ierm growih roies beyond the inilict budgeted cash tows, applied in the value in use calcutations for goodhwill

allocoied to each of the CGUs or groups of CGUs nat are significant 1o the totat camying amount of goodwit, were in a
range between 0% and 6 0%, consistent with the inflation factors included in the discount raies applied [2022- between
O% cnd 6.7%).

Changes in volurnes, selfing prices and direct costs are based on past results and expectations of future changes in the
market,

Sensitivity to changes in key assumptions

Impairment testing is dependent on management’s estimates and judgements, particularly as they relate to the
forecasting of future cash flows, the discount rates selected and expected long-term growih rates. Each of the Group's
CGUs had headroom under the annual impairment review,

Indight of the supply side inflationary pressures combined with the cost of living pressures faced by our Uk Grocery
business, management performed a detoiled impairment review of Jordans Dorset Ryvito, and concluded that no
impairment was required. Key drivers of the Jorecast improvement in performance include annuahsation of price
increases, completion of o number of morgin improvement inftliatives, implerneniation of planned siralegic initiatives
und the completion of ongeing new product developrneni. Headreom was £59m on o CGU camrying value of £137m
{2022 ~ headroom of £26rm on a CGU canying value at £147m). The discount rate used was 12.2% and would have to
increase o more than 15.7% betore value in use fell below the CGU canying value. The long-term growth rate applied
into perpetuity was 2.8%, based on forecaost industry growih of 2.5% for breakfast cereals and 3.3% for biscuits.

32 Wittington tnvestments  Finonacial Siaienrenis 2023



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

10. Property, plant and equipment

Cu-w;L:Iw:j:&\egtﬂsrgﬁa_

Lamed and Sixores ano Assets urder

Sugar cane

fitings cons'tutho™ 100ty Tatal
£rm i Fail i
Cost
Al 18 Septembzer 2021 2828 4018 4,080 441 92 11.459
Acquisitions — externally purchased 40 78 204 421 11 754
Acquired through business combinations ] 4 1 - [
Other disposals 4] 13] (20) - 143 141]
Transfers from assets under consiruction 33 164 26 [293) -
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale 132) {53) 2] - 187}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 98 o223 119 37 I3 483
Al 17 Sepiember 2022 T Ros4T T T Than 4478 606 105 12,574
Accuisitions — extermnally purchosed 21 B6 434 454 Té 1,011
Acquired through business combinations - 4 - - - 4
Businessas dispossed of 152) {n 4] - - 167}
Other disposals {46) (57} %) - {1} 113}
Transfers from assets under construction 35 191 89 (315) - -
Transfer from assets classified as held for sale 37 75 2 - - 114
Effect of movements in hypernnflation - 78 19 - - 97
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {99) [257) [84) (34) {19} 1493)
Al 14 Septernber 2023 2,850 4,540 4,925 711 101 13,127
Depreciation and impairment
At 18 Septentber 2021 792 2,834 2,374 - 51 4,053
Depreciation for the year 48 176 296 - 10 530
Impairment 1&) - 72 - - &é
Impairment on sale and closure of business 11 19 - - - 30
Other disposals {1 - {1%9] - 4] [24)
Transfer to assels classified as held for sale (17 50} (2} - - 79}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange . 35 140 73 - 3 71
A1 17 Soptemioe 2022 T e 3129 2,796 - &0 6847
Depreciation for the year 52 184 293 - g 538
impairment 27 56 3 - 2 88
Businesses dispossed of {1) (8) (3) - - {12
Other disposals (34) [47) 4] - ) {91}
Trarsfer from assets classified as held for scile 20 75 2 - - 97
Effect of movements in hypetinflation - 64 17 - - 81
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (37) {158) {50) - {10) {255)
At 16 September 2023 889 3,295 3,049 - 40 7,293
Net book value
AL 17 September 2022 2.092 1.302 1.682 406 45 5727
Al 16 Seplember 2023 1.961 1,245 1.876 1 41 5,834
T T T 2023 2077
£m £m
Capital expenditure commitrments - contracted but not provided for A93 364

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, no property, plant and equipment (2022 - £18m of which £18m is freehold

land and buildings) is classified as assets held for sale (see note 17).
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Notes to the consolidated financiat statements

for the 52 weeks ended 18 Septembzer 2023

10. Property, plant and equipment continved

) VS . _
Lo andd Pl A Fretores and Sugor cane
tunizhings FROICTIn ey hitngg 2ats Fored
£m & £m £m im
Cost
At 18 Septembear 2021 2707 4.008 4019 440 74 11,266
Acgusifions — externally purchosed 37 76 203 421 i1 743
Acquired through business combinations i 4 I - - <
Cther disposals {14} {3 {17} - {4) (38}
Transfers from assets under consiruction 33 164 26 (293} - -
Transfer o assets clossified as held for sake {32} 153} {2} - - {87}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange . - 223 e 37 6 483
AF17 Septermber 2022 2835 amw 4419 05 105 12373
Acquisifions — externally purchosed 20 86 431 452 16 1.0G5
Acquired through business combinatfions - 4 - - - 4
Other disposal {34] (57} 13) - {1} {25)
Transfers from assets under consiruction 35 o7 87 {313} - -
Transfer from assets classified as held for scle 37 75 2 - 114
Fffect of movements in hyperinfialion - 78 9 - 97
Effect of movemenk in foreign exchange 99) {257} {84) (34} {19) {493)
Al 16 September 2023 2,784 4,539 4,871 710 i 13,005
Depreciafion and impairment
Al 18 September 2021 759 2827 2.343 -~ 51 5,980
Depreciaton for the year 47 174 290 ~ 10 521
Impairment - - 72 - - 72
mpairment on sale and clasure of busingss I 19 - - - 30
Other cisposals i - (171 - 4] {22}
Transfer {fo} /from assets classified as held for sale f17) {60) {2} - - 7]
Cilect o thuvernenits in forsign exchange 35 160 74 - 3 ) 272
AF 17 September 2022 834 Tz Zzen - & 4774
Depreciation for the year 52 183 287 - 2 531
fmpairment 22 56 3 - 2 83
Other disposals {22) {46} {3} - {7} {72}
Transfer from assets classified as held for sale 20 75 2 - - 97
Effect of movemenis in hypednfiation - 4 17 - - 81
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {37} {158} {50} - {10} {255}
Af16 Seplember2023 8% 3294 . 3016 - &0 7,239
Nel bookvalve 7 T o T e e
At 17 September 2022 1.991 1,209 1,659 605 45 5,599
Af 16 September 2023 1,915 1.245 1,855 710 41 5,766
Impairment

The methodology used to assess property, plant and equipment for impairment is the same as that described for
impairment assessments of goodwill. See note ¢ for further details. In addition where e farr value less costs of disposal is
higher than value in use. this methodoiogy has been used to determine the recoverable amount, This method uses
inputs that are unobservable, using the best information available in the circumstances for valuing the CGU. and
therefore falls into the Level 3 categary of fair value measurement,

In Grocery, the Australian Don business has been adversely affected by inflationary pressures, a surplus supply of fresh
pork in the market. labour constraints and eguipment reliability causing production shortalls ond additional
fransportation costs following the unforeseen iquidation of its distribution partner. Management therefare parfarmed o
detailed impairment review and conciuded that an impairment of A$72m (£39m} should be recognised, A$462m (£34m)
against plant and equipment and A$10m (£5m] against buildings. The impairment madel assumed long-term growth
rates beyond the forecast period of 2.0% (2022 - 2.0%] and a discount rate of 12.6% (2022 - 11.9%).

The sugar business in north China recognised a £15m wiite down against property. plant and equipment. This business
was classified as held for sale in the previous year, but the potential buyer withdrew their offer in the second half of the
year.

Due to severe flooding in Mozambique, the related damage to the sugar crop fields and the inability to plant for the
foreseeable future, ltovo Mozambigue recegnised a £25m write-down against property. plant and equipment. Primark
recognised a £3m write down against fixtures and fittings for the right-sizing of four German siores and £1m to write down
« freehold store.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statemenis
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

11. Legses

Most of the Group 's right-of-use assets are associated with ABF's leased property portfolic inits Retall segrment.

Right-ot-use assets

Corsahdated Group |

Land ond LN 2 Fixlures ongd Fotal
Builchngs OWI ] lithng o
im Zin £

Cost
Al 18 September 2021 3,294 63 2 3,359
Additions 161 10 - N
Ledse incantives 146} - 146)
Acauired through business comoinations 8 - - 8
Qther dispasals {1 1) {1} 3)
Other movements 12 2 - T4
Effect of movements in foreign excharge 108 2 . - 110
Al7 Septernber 2022 - 3536 76 1 3613
Addiions 193 17 - 210
Leose incentives 153) - - 53)
Acguired through business combinations 1 - - 1
Other disposals (2] {4) - (6
Other movaments 80 5 - 85
Effect of moverments in foreign exchange {72) &3] - {78}
Al 16 September 2023 3,483 85 1 3,772
Depreciaiton and impairment
Al 13 Septermber 2021 652 32 i 485
Depreciation for the year 2¢8 18 - 286
Impairment 134 - - 134
Other disposals ) 1) {n 13)
Eifect of movements in foreign exchiange . . ST 1 .- M
A1 17 September 2022 1,085 - 1135
Depreciation for the year 261 16 - 277
impairment 13 1 - 14
Other disposols i} ] - 5
Effect of mavemants in foreign exchange (23} {4} ~ {27}
At16 September2023 . _ .. _ 1,334 5? - 1395
Nef book value ‘ o B B
At 17 Seplember 2022 o o 2450 24 1 2477
AY 16 September 2023 T 2347 I 1 2377

Willington Investments Finoncial Stotements 2023 35



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

11. leases continued
Right-of-use ussets continued

Cost

At 18 September 2021 3261 63 2 3326
Additions 161 G - 171
Legse incentives {46) - {46}
Acquired through husiness combinations g - - i
Oither dispasals () {1} {1 {3
Ciher movemerits i2 2 4
Effect of movements in forcign exchange ) 107 z - 109
At 17 September 2022 T T T T T s 76" Y7
Additions 183 17 - 200
Legse incentives {53 - - (53}
Acguired through business combinations i - - i
Other disposals {2) {4) - {8}
Other movermnents 80 5 - 85
Effect of movements in foreign exchange i 1) - .
Al 16 Seplember 2023 ) T T 3439 88 i 3728
Depreciation and impairment

Al 18 September 2021 644 az i &77
Depreciation for the year 263 18 - 281
Impairment 134 - 134
Other disposals fi} i) (1) {3}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange o 33 ! - 34
Al 17 September 2072 - 1,073 s RAZE)
Depraciation for the year 257 16 - 273
impairment 13 ! - 14
Other disposals [ 4] - 5
Effect of movemenls in foreign exchange {23) {4) - {27
At 16 September 2023 1,319 5% - 1,378
Het book vaive

At 17 September 2022 ) 2429 2% I 2456
At 16 Seplember 2023 2,320 2% i 2,350
Impairment

The methodology used fo asseass right-of-use assets for impairment is the same as that described for impairment
assessmenis of goodwill. See note 9 for further details,

In the year there was a £14m (2022 - £134m) impairment of right-of-use assels related to Primark and the Don business

lincluded within exceplional iterms).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

11. Leases continued

Lease liability

_ Consaidated Groug

Planl and Fulras and tofal
macnney thngs im
£ £m
Cost
Al 18 September 2021 3.289 34 - 3323
Additions 161 9 - 170
Inlerest expense relating 1o legse liabilities a1 1 - 82
Repayment of lecse labilities {390} (18) 1408}
Acguisition of businesses e] - - 8
Other movements T4 2 14
Effect of moverments in foreign exchange 97 1 - 98
A7 September 2022 3.260 2% - 3,289
Additions 121 18 - 209
Interest expense relating 1o lease liabilities 90 2 - 92
Repayment of lease liabilities [378) [18) - 1396}
Other movements 80 5 - 85
Other disposals {5) - - {5)
Fffect of movements in foreign exchange {80) 13) - 163}
At 16 Seplember 2023 3,178 33 - 321
- T " o Consoidatea G-;gu;mw
2023 iz
£m im
Cumrent 359 334
Non-curent e ) 2,852 2955
- T 321 389
Lease liabiities comprise £3,190m (2022 - £3,275m} capital payable and £21m {2022 - £14m)) interest payabla. The
interest payable is all current and disclosed within trade and other payables, Repayments comprise £312m (2022 -
£325m) capital and £84m (2022 ~- £83m] interest.
""""""""" - ABF
Lond ancd Planr ang
iy Toron
£m M £m
Cost
Al 18 September 2021 3,262 3 - 3206
Additions 161 9 - 170
Intarest expense relafing fo lease liabifilies B0 i &1
Repayment of lease liabilifies (385) {i8) - {403}
Acquisition of busingsses 8 - - 8
Other movements T4 Z 16
Effcct of movements in foreign exchange @7 ! 98
Al 17 Septemnber 2022 3237 29 - 3,266
Additions 180 8 - 198
Interesf expense relating o lease fiabilties 89 2 - 2}
Repayment of lease kabilfies {373) {18} - {391}
Other rovements 30 5 - 85
Other disposals {5) - - {5)
Effect of movements in foreign exchonge {60} {3} - {63}
Al 16 September 2023 3,148 33 - 3,181
T e AR e
2023 2027
£m £m
Current 356 330
Non-current o 2,825 2.936
3,181 3266
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

11. Leases continved
Other information relating to leases
The Group had the following expense relating to short-term leases and low-value leases:

o am T DT T T T Copstidanen Groon. | _

2023 2002 2023 pars

£m £m im £

Ltond and buildings 2 - 2 -
Plant and machinery T 2 1 2
Fituresandbitings S J - !
3 3 3 3

The Group expensad £1m {2022 - £1m} of varable lease payments that do not form paort of the legse liabilby, Cash
outflows of £2m (2022 - £4m) that cto not form parl of the lease tability are expected 1o be made in the next 12 months.

Rental receipts of £3m {2022 - £4m) were recognised retating to operating leases. The total of future minimum rental
receipts expected 10 be recaived is £43m (2022 - £36m). £10m {2022 - £11m) is due to be received in respec) of sub-
leasing nght-of-use assets,

12. tnvesiment property
o s s T Corenldated
Graun
£m

At18 September 2021
Addifions

Disposals

Impairment losses

A7 Sepiomber %
Additions

Disposals

Impairment losses

A8 Seplember2023

impairment losses were recorded in both 2022 and 2023 to reflect where the fair value of invesfment properties was
below cost as defermined by an independent valuer. The impairments reflect prevailing market conditions,

13. Investments in joint ventures and associcates

L RBE . Gorscigoted Graug
Jowit venhves Astocares Jont vesiyres Azncinios
£ £ £ £
At 18 3eplember 2021 278 60 278 &7
Acquisifions 4 - )
Profit for the period ) 19 20 19
DCividends recewved 188) {5) {83) {8}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 7 m_ d7_ N
Al 17 September 2022 ' C T T Emr T Tes T s 8y
Acquisitions 9 - 9 -
Profit for the period 106 8 106 18
Dividends received {102} {5} {102} (7]
Eifect of movements in fareignexchenge oy @y QY 7
Al 14 September 2023 303 21 305 93

Details of joint ventures and associates are lisied in note 32.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

13. Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following items that represent the Group's share of the assets,
liakilities and profit of joint venlures and associates:

L ABR C oo Gomeidored icup
Jont veniures Associcles Joint veriures Associates
2023 2027 2023 2022 2023 2023 2022
£m L £m £m £m £m im
Non-curent cssets 222 202 47 44 222 47 48
Current assefs 541 &40 500 427 558 505 432
Current habilities {414) {475) (454} {386} (426) (456) {389)
Non-current liobilities (67} (87} {3) 13} (67} {4) [3)
Goodwill 25 20 1 ! 25 1 1
Non-confrofling interest 4 - - - (4) - -
Nal assels 303 301 91 83 305 303 93 &y
Revenue 2,53% 2,165 1,605 1.313 2,540 2,165 1,614 1,343
Profit for the period 106 “0 18 9 106 20 18 19

14. Employee entittements

The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined confribution retirement benefit schemes in the UK and
averseqs.

The defined benefit schemes expase the Group to a variety of actuarial risks including demographic assumptions such
as mortdlity and financiol assumptions such as discount rate, inflation sk and market {investment) risk. The Group is not
exposed to any unusual, entity-specific or scheme-specific risks. All schemas comply with lccal legislative requirements.

UK defined benefit scheme

The Group's principal UK defined benefit scheme is the Associated British Foods Pension Scheme (the "Scheme’). which is
a funded final salary scheme that is closed to new members. Defined contribution arangements are in place for other
employees. The UK defined benefit scheme represents 90% (2022 - 90%) of the Group’s defined benefit scheme assets
and 85% {2022 — 86%) of defined benefit scheme liabilities. The Scheme is governed by a trustae boud whictyis
independenl ol The Group and which agrees a schedule of contributions with the Company each time a formal funding
valuation is performed.

The most recent friennial funding valuation of the Scheme was canfed out as at & April 2023, using the current unit
method. and revealed a surplus of £1,.013m. The market value of the Scheme assets was £3,648m, representing 138% of
members accrued benefits after allowing for expected future salary increases.

The Scheme's assets are managed using a risk-controlied investment strategy. which includes o liability-driven
investment policy that seeks to match, where appropriate, the profile of the liabilities. This includes the use of derivative
instruments to hedge inflation, interest and foreign exchange risks. The Scheme utilises both market and solvency triggers
to develop the level of hedges in place. To dote, the Scheme is fully hedged for 75% of inflation sensitivity and 76% of
interest rate risk. It s intended to hedge 80% of total exposure.

The Scheme is forbidden by the trust deed from holding direct investments in the equity of ABF. although it is possible
that the Scheme may hold indirect interests through investments in some equity funds.

Overseas defined benefit schemes

The Group also operates defined benefit retirement schemes in a number of overseas businesses, which are primanly
funded final salary schemes, as well as a small number of unfundad post-retirement medical benefit schemes, which are
accounted for in the same way as defined benefit refirement schemes.

Defined confribution schemes
The Group operates a number of defined contribution schemes for which the charge was £49m in the UK and £48m
overseas, totalling £97m (2022 — UK £44m, overseas £45m, 1otalling £82m).

Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assurmptions for the Group's defined benefit schemes at the year end were:

2023 2023 7077 2027
UK Qverseqs UK Creesrsszas
% % % A
Discount rate 5.5 1-15.8 4.6 0.9-13.5
Inflation 27-34 0-17.4 2.6-3.4 0-550
Rate of increcse in salaries 3.7-43 0-150.0 37-43 0-40.0
Rate of increase for pensions in payment 1.9-3.1 0-49.0 1.9-3.2 0-40.0
Rate of increase for pensions in deferment [where provided) 2.5-2.8 0-3.9 2528 023

Discount rates are determined by reference to market yields aof the balance sheet date on high-quality corporate bonds
consistent with the estimated term of the obligations. This has been dene in conjunction with independent actuariesin
each jurisdiction.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

14. Employee entitliements continved
The UK Inflotion assumption includes assurmpfions on both the Retail Price Index anc Consumer Price Index measures of
inflation on the basis that the gap belween the two measures is expected to remain stable in the tong ferm.

The mortality assumptions used fo value the UK defined benefit schemes in 2023 are derved from the 83 mortality tables
with improvements in line with the 2022 projection mode! prepared by the Continuous Mortality Investigation of the UK
actuanal profession (2027 - 53 morlality tables with improvements in line with the 2020 projection model}, with o 0-year
roting movement for males and females (2022 - O-year rating movement for moles and fernales), both with a fong-term
trend of 1.75% (2022 - 1.5%). These mortality assumptions take account of experience to date, and assurmptions for
further improvements in life expectancy of scheme memibers. Examples of the resulting life expectoncies in the UK
defined banefit schemes are as follows:

oo gw T  wm
Lle expecluncy fram ags 85 [ yauis) T T mae Female e Ferrcle
Member aged 65 in 2023 {2022} s 242 221 243
rMernber aged 65 in 2043 (2047) 237 262 23.7 26.1

An dllowance has begn made for cash commutation in line with emerging scheme experience. Other demographic
assumptions for the UK defined benefit schemes are set having regard to the latest trends in scheme experience and
other relevant data.

The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the periodic funding valuation of the schemes.

For the overseas schemes. regionally appropriafe assumptions for mortality, financial and demographic factors have
been used.

A sensitivity analysis on the principal assumptions used 10 measure UK defined benefit scheme liabilities at 14 September
2023 is:

Change n gssenphon Impac! ¢ senems labil es

GCiscount rate decreqse/increase by 0.1% norease/decrecse by 1.2%
inflation increcse/decrecse by 0.1% increase by 0.6%/decaase by 0.9%
Rate of redlincrease in sclaries increcse/decraase by 0.1% increase/decrease by 0.9%
Rate of mortality mermbers assumed to be one increase/decrease by 2.9%

yRar youngor folder

A sensitivity to the rate of increase in pensions in payment and pensions in deferment is reprasented by the inflation
sersilivity, as all pensions increases and deferred revaluations are linked to infiafion.

The sensitivity anclysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes in the respective assumplions
cccuring at the end of the peried and maoy not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the
specific assumption while holding all other assumptions constant, When calculating the sensitivities, the same method
used to calculate scheme liabilities recognised in the balance sheet has been applied. The method and assumptians
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis have not changed since the pricr year.
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14, Empioyee entitiements continved

Balance sheet

2023 7
119 Cverseas Total < Onarsens Talal
£m £m £m £m £m im
Equities 1.020 172 1,192 1,135 188 1,323
Govarnmen! bonds 455 8¢9 544 308 92 400
Corporate ond olher bonds 619 55 474 77 47 AR
Property 314 34 350 398 37 435
Cashandotherassets B B - 1,145 57 1,202 1.126 58 L1179
Scheme assets T 3583 409 3982 0 3734 417 45
Scheme lcbiities — (2182)  (373) _(2555) _ [23%) (405) _ {2.802)
Aggregaie netsurpius 1371 34 1407 1337 12 1349
mecoverablesupls - (36) B - (42 (42,
Neipensonassetfifonitl  _ 33m S A O AN = I T
Analysed as
Schemes in surplus 1,397 49 1,444 1,366 27 1393
schemes in defich S S I ) WU ) O -2 RSN -/ SO
’ o - R s <] Tk vaor

Unfunded habifity ncluded in the present value of schems
lichilities above (26) (32) {58) 129} 152} (81}

¥ Tne surpluses i ‘he plans ore only recoverable ‘o tne extent that the Group can benefit from either refunds forrally carecd or from future
conitnbution reductions.

UK Scheme
Scheme assets include £64m (2022 - £50m) of derivative instfruments, £409m {2022 - £441m) of corporate debt
Instruments and £1,119m {2022 - £841m) of gavernment debt.

Corporate and other bonds assels of £619m {2022 - £767m) include £235m {2022 - £248m) of assets whose vaheation is
not derived from quoted market prices. The valuation for all other equity assets, govemment bends, and corporate and
other bonds is derived from quoted market prices. The carving value of UK property assets is based on a 30 June market
vaiuation, adjusted for purchases, disposails and price indexation between the valuation and the balonce sheet date.
Cash andg other assets includes £888m (2022 - £820m) of assets whose valuation is not denved from guoted market
nrices.,

For financiot reporting in the Group's financial statements, fobifies are assessed by actuaries usmg the projected unit
methad,

The accounting value is different from the result oblained using the funding basis, mainly due o different assumplions
used to preject scheme liabilities,

The defined benefit scheme liabilities comprise 18% (2022 — 24%) in respect of active paticipants, 21% (2022 - 20%) for
deferred participants and 415 (2022 — 56%)] tor pensioners.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit scheme liabilities at the end of the year is 12 years for both UK
and overseas schemes {2022 - 15 vears for both UK and overseas schemes).

The Group recognises the accounting surplus as it has the ability to use the surplus to meet emplaver contributions to the
UK Scheme. covering both the defined benefit and defined contribution sections. This has been agreed with the
independent Trustee Board for the new financial vear. See the Cash flow section below for further details.

Income statement
The charge fo the income statement for employee benefit schemes comprises:

2023 2021
£m im
Charged 1o operafing profif:
Defined benefii schemes
Curent service cost {31) (44)
Post service cost (2) -
Defined contfbutonschemes , {57) 87)
]o?'al__opertmwg_c_(ﬂ e - = (130) _—(133)
Rgp—oﬂaﬁh oiher financial [expensel/income: ’ S o
Met intersst income on the ne persicn asset 62 10
Interest chorge onimecoverable suots e 2 )
Nel imp)?g[pn_pro_ﬁf beforeyox . ) ) _ h ) ' B ) G )
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 Seplember 2023

14. Employee entitlements continved

Cash flow

Group cash flow in respect of employee Genefils schemes comprises contributions paid to funded schemes of £36m
(2022 — £36m) and benefits paid in respect of unfunded schemes of £5m {2022 - £2m). Contributions o funded defined
benefit schamas are subject to periodic review, Contributians to defined contribution schames amounted to £97m (2022
- £89m).

Total contributions to funded schemes and benefit payments by the Group in respect of unfunded schemes in 2024 are
curenfly expected fo be approximately £3m in the UK and £10m overseas. totaling £13m (2022 - UK £29m, oversaas
£30m, toraling £3%m).

As part of the Hennial funding valuation ot the UK Scheme as at 5 April 2023, which was finalised with the independent
frustee board in Sentember 2023, the Campany has agreed an abatement of all UK employer contrilbutions to the UK
Scheme, covering both the defined benefit and defined contribution sections from the start of the new financial year.
The employer contibutions will instead be met from the surplus in the UK Scheme, This is subject lo a solvency check,
assessed annuatty By the Scherne Actuary. This is expecied fo resull in approximately £70m cash flow benefit for the
Group in the new financial year.

Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of the net pension asset recagnised in other comprehensive income are as follows:

7 Conoldgred Groug

2023 2022
£m imr
Relurn on scheme assels excluding amounts included in net interest In the income sicatement (238} {582)
Actuarial gains afsing rom changes i finoncial assumplions 265 1,444
Actuarnal gains arising from changes in demographic assumptions 18 11
Experience losses on schermne liabilities (57) (38)
Change in unrecognised surpius [ 1g)
Remecsurements of ihe nel pension { \iObHH‘y-)?ﬂcm_eTm—ﬂrﬁ——_‘E‘_& T (&) T s

Reconciliation of change in assets and labililies

L ComoidoledGroup

T Tz s 2023 2022 uzd w022
assels asiels Mabilities hooiihes net e
£m £mi £Em £ Em £m
Al beginning of yeor 4,151 4,728 (2.802) 14,219} 1,349 509
Current service cost - - {31) (46} (34} {44}
Employes contributions 7 8 7) {8) - -
Employar contributions 34 38 - - 36 36
Benefit payments (161} {154) T66 156 5 2
Past service cost - - {2} . 2) -
Inierest incame/{expense) 185 84 {123) [74) 62 10
Loss on scheme assets less inferest income (238) 1582) - - (238) (582}
Actuarial gains orising from changes in financiol assumptions - - 245 1.444 265 1,444
Actuarial gains ansing from changes in demographic
assumptions - - 18 i 18 11
Experience losses on scheme liabilities - - (57) (38} (57} 138}
Effectof movementsin foreign exchange (18) 31 18 (28) ol 3
At end of yeor 3,962 415 (2555) {2802 1,807 1,349

Reconciliafion of ¢hange in irecoverable surplus

Conschooied G

2023
£m
At beginning of year (42}
Change recognised in other comprehensive income [3
Interest charge on irecoverable surplus {2)
Effect of movements inforeignexchonge. S S 2
Atendofyear T T ) T T T T TR

42 Wittington Investments Financial Statements 2023



Notes to the consolidated financial stafements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 Septerber 2023
15. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Z Cenoignied troop

Bremonsg
Progerty FAngnciol anel olhac
ponfard I tong.oe Fmcioyee  assels and
equiprmeant asels Leawes oenahts habiltige s Toten
£n £ im im £m £m

Af 18 Seplemiber 2021 140 20 [1a1) 125 18 (81] [36} 155
Amount credifed o the income sfatermnent 34 t5) 27 1 - 13 g 78
Amount credited 1o equity - - : 155 28 2 - 85
Acquired fnrough busness comiinations - 2 - - - 2 - 24
Effect of changes in tax rates on the income 2 - . - - - - 2
statement
Effect of changes In fax rates on equity - . - 44 . . _ 44
Effect of hypernflationary econormies taken
io operating profit 3 - - - - - K
Transter to assels/lichiifies held for sale 5 - - - - - 5
Effect of movermnents in foreign exchange 4 10 (4} - - {4} - 8
At 17 September 2022 190 117 {78} 325 44 (48] (28) 504
Arnount credited 1o the incorne stoternent 7é {3) 130) 10 {&) t2)) {51} 12
Amount credifed to equity - - - {(5) {40) 5 - {40)
Acquired fhrough business combinations - 7 - ! - {1 1) 4
Effect of changes in tax rates on ihe mcome 3 - - 2 - - - 5
staterment
Effect of hyperinfiohionary economies ioken 4 - — - - - — 4
10 operciing profil
Transfer from cssets/habilities held for sale [5) - - - ~ - - [5)
Eftect af movemenls in foreign exchange (9] 3} 3 - - 2 2 (i5)
At 14 September 2023 249 118 (1as) 333 - {70} (78) 447

Provisions and ather tempaorary differences include provisions of £{103)m {2022 - £{?3)m)], biological assets of £33m (2022
- £32m), fox credits of £{9)m {2022 - £{14im} and other temporary differences of £9m {2022 - £9m).

Prapedy
siond ond Ermpicyes ternporary
enpment Lemey benalis afferances Tatm
£ £, £m im Fags
Al 18 September 2021 137 20 (1ot} 125 {54) 145
Amount credited fo the income stofernent 34 15} 27 H - 13 78
Amount creditod to equity - - - 154 28 z - 184
Acquired through business combingitions - 22 - - - z - 24
Effect of changesin fax rafes an the income
staternent ? - - - - — - 2
Eifect of changes in lox rates on equity - - 44 - - - 44
Effect of hypernficlionary economies faken
fo operoting profit 3 - - - - - - 3
Transter to assek/Mablifies held for sale 5 - - - - - 5
Effeci of movements in forefgnexchonge 6 1 {4} - - (8 - 4
AT 17 Septemper 2022 157 17T e a4 a0 751 f#ep 4By
Amount credited to the income statement 73 {31 {30) 12 - {an (53] (12}
Amount credited fa equily - - - (5) (40} 5 ~ (Cly)
Acguired through business cormbinations ~ 7 ~ 1 - {1} 1 é
Effect of changes in fax rafes on the income
sfaterment 3 - - 2 - - - 5
Fifect of hypernfiatinnary economies taken
to aperating profif 4 - - - - - - 4
Trarsfer from ossefs/fabiifies held forsale 3) - - -~ - - - 5
Effeci of movemenisinforeign oxchonge (19 @& 3 - = 3_ .2 ]
Al 16 Seplember 2023 243 118 {105) 334 - w78 a3
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

15. Deferred tax assets and liabilities continued
Certain defered tax assets and liabilities have been offset in fhe table above. The following is the analysis of the
defered tax balances (after offset] for financial reporting purposes:

L ABF _ ___ Conselieated Groug .

2023 2022 2023 vy

£m £m £m £m

Defered 1ax assets 193 158 195 160
,Q!?LEVEC* fax liabilities L (62¢6) .nm,{é,'ﬂj (642) (654)
{433) 148%9) (447) (504)

In addition to the amaunts disclosed abaove, there are no deferred tax assets (2022 — £5m) clossified as assets held for
sale {see note 17).

Deferred tax assetfs have not been recognised in respect of tax losses of £360m {2022 - £348m). Of these laxlosses,
£186m {2022 — £188m) will expire at various dates between 2023 and 2028 (2022 - 2023 and 2027). Deferred tax assets
have also not been recognised in respect of other temporary differences of £348m (2022 ~ £520m). This includes £160m
(2022 - £378m) relating to property. plant and eguipment and leases in Germany which were derecognised following
the impairment in 2022 {see notes 10 and 11 for further details}. These deferred lax assels have nol been recognised on
the basis that their future economic benefitis uncertain.

In addition, the Group's overseas subsidiaries have net unremitted earnings of £2,527m {2022 - £2,029m), resulting in
temporary differences of £1.426m (2022 - £1.495m}. No deferred fax has been provided in respect of these differences
since the timing of the reversals can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future,

14. Trade and other receivables

ABF Corsoldated Grage
2023 7077 2023 2537
£m Im £m £
Nan-current — other receivables
Loans and recevables 31 2G n 29
Investments designated FvQC| 32 29 32 29
T o 63 58 43 58
Current - frade and other receivables )
Trade receivables 1,319 13171 1,330 1,32)
Otherreceivables 223 218 234 232
Accrued income 26 35 29 38
S o 1,568 1,564 1,593 1,591
Prepayments and ofher non-financiai receivables 210 194 4 198
T i o 1,778 1,758 1.807 1789

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no trade and other receivables (2022 - £3m) classified as assets
held for sale {see note 17),

The directars consider that the carrying amount of receivables approximates fair value,
For details of credit risk exposure on trade and otherreceivables, see nate 238,

Trade and other receivables include £32m (2022 - £29m} inrespect of finance lease receivables, with £28m in non-
current loans and receivables and £4m in current other receivables (2022 - £25m in non-current loans and receivables
and £4m in current other receivables). Minimum lease payments receivakble are £4m within one year, £11m bebween
one and five years and £17m in more than five years (2022 - £4m within one year, £16m between one and five years
and £9m in more than five years).

The finance lease recaivables relate to property, plant and equipment leased to a joint venture of the Group (see note
30).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 Seplember 2023

17. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale
The Group has no assets and hobilities ciassified o3 held for sale of yeor end, In the prior year, the Group's north Chinag
sugar business wds classified as held for sale. The proposed buyer withdrew their offer in the second half of this year and
the Group has since recognised a £15m non-cash exceptional impoirment charge 1o wiite down the property, plant
and equipment in that business.

18. Inventories

ABE . . Como'dgmaGoup
2023 7622 2023 2022
£ £m £m £m
Raw materials and consumables 599 807 605 807
Work in progress 78 70 78 70
Finished! goods ond goods held for resale - .. 2%w 2962 2563 2619
3207 3259 3.246 3.296

wiite down of inventorias (123) {115 (124) (115}

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no inventories {2022 - £7m) classified as assets held for sale [see
note 17).
19. Biological assets

Tor
It
Al 18 September 2021 85
Transfered to inventory {113} {13} {126)
Purchases - & 5
Other disposats - (1} {1
Changesin fair value 124 a 134
Effect of movemenls n foreignexchange o 7 1 s
A117 September 2022 o T T T e e T T T
Transfered to inventory 1121} (14) [135)
Purchases 3 <) 7
Impairment {7 - {7)
Changes in farr value 135 N 148
Effect of mavements in foreign exchonge o 19} - (19}
Al 16 September 2023 T 7 88 11 99
Impaitment

The methadology used to assess curent biclogical assets for impairment is the same as that described far impairment
assessments of goodwill. See note ¢ for futher details.

in tne year there was a £7m {2022 - £nil) impairment of current biological assets in Movo Mozambigue due 1o the severe
flooding and dameage to the sugar crop fields (included within exceptional items).

Growing cane

The fair value of growing cane is determined using inpuls that are unobservable, using the best information avaiable in
the circumstances for valuing the growing cane, and therefore falls into the Level 3 category of fair value measurement.
The following assumptions were used in the determination of the estimated sucrose tonnage af 14 September 2023:

South Afica Malawi iombia eMmm:JT_y
Expected drea to harvest (hectares) 5729 13.81¢ 15,700 10,580 9,578 -
Estimated yield (fonnes cane/hectare) 67.9 100.1 114.0 920 80.2 -
Average maturity of growing cone 46 A7 7.4% 65.7% 67.7% 4627 -

The following assumplions were used in the determination of the estimated sucrose tonnage at 17 September 2022

o SouthAlica — Hdlow. _ Fgmbio _ Eswaln. Tanzama  Mosrbigue
Expected area o harvest heciores) 6,028 19.207 16,163 3419 $.612 5,802
Estimcrted vield {tonnes cane/hectare) 7.9 103.7 115.9 99.5 72.6 71.0
Average malurity of growing cane 47 5% &7 4% &5.7% &7 7% 46.9% 72.4%

A% change in the unobservable inputs could increase or decrease the tair value of growing cangs os follows:

T TTamey T o
+1% A%
£m £m
Estimated sucrose content 1.4 (1.4}
Estimated sucrose price 1.9 {1.9}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

20. Cash and cash equivalents

ASF T ConsoidoledGrovp
2023 2022 2023 027
N le £m £ £m Im
Cash
Cash at bank and in hand 481 &74 532 779
Cash equivol?rlls 976 » 1,447 1,064 ~ }).{1:4“?
Cash and cash gauiva ® 1457 210 159 2206
Reconciliation 1o the cash flow statement
Bank overdrafts 2 {69] {126) (69) {124)
Cash and cash squivalents in (he cash flow slaternent T 1,388 1,993 1,527 2,100
Cash and cash equivalents on the face of the balance sheef 1457 2,721 1,594 2226
o 1457 212 1,596 27226

Cash at bank and in hand generally earns interest at rates based on the daily bank deposit rate.

Cash equivalents generally comprise deposits placed on maoney markets for periods of up to three months which eam
interest at a shart-term deposit rate; and funds invested with fund managers that have a maturity of less than or equal to
three months and are at fixed rates,

The carrying armount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair valus.

21, Loans and overdrafts

RBE Consalidated Group -
2023 7522 2023 2027
Nalg £m im £m Em
Current loans and ovesdraits
Secured loans - ! 1 1
Unsecured loans and overdralts B 1468 156 148 154
T - 148 157 169 157
Non-current loans
Securcd loans - B - ]
Unsecured loans 394 480 394 480
- o 394 480 394 481
28 562 637 543 535
- ABF Corsolidaled Grove
2023 2627 2023 2022
Nole £m £m £m m
Secured loans
- GBP floating rate - 1 1
- Olher floating rate - ) - 1
Unsecured bank loans and overdrafts
- Bank overdrafts 0 69 126 49 125
- GBP fixed rafe 392 390 392 390
- USD floating rate 8 8 8 8
- UsSD fixed rafe &1 87 31 87
- EUR floating rate 1 2 1 2
- Other floating rate 9 13 9 13
- Other fixed rate 2 10 2 10
- ! 562 437 563 638

Secured loans comprise amounts borrowed from commercial banks and are secured by floating charges over the assetfs
of subsidianes. Bank overdrafts generally bear interest at floating rates.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
tor the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

22, Trade and other payables

ABF e Consolideled Gmup_-
2023 2022 2022 2022
£m £m £m £
Tracde payables L177 1.362 .M 1,377
Aceuds R M2 LES 1286 1896
2448 2,637 2,477 2,673
Defered income and ofher non-financial payables o 55 47 53 492
2,953 3114 3,000 3165

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no frade and other payables (2022 - £14m) classified as liabilities
held for sale (see note 17).

For payables with a remaining life of less than one year, carrying amount is deemed to reflect fair value.

In a small number of busingsses, the Group utilises supplier financing arrangements to enable participating suppliers, at
each supplier's sole discretion, to sell any or all amounts due from the Group to @ third-party bank earlier than the
invoice due date, at better financing rates than the supplier alone could achieve, Payment terms for suppliers are
identical. imespactive of whether they choose to participate. The Group receives no benetit from these arrangements.
Coniractual terms and invoice due dates are unchanged and the Group considers amounts owed to the third-party
bank as akin to amounts owed to the supplier. Such amounts are therefore included within frade payables and
associated cash flows are inclyded within operating cash flows, as they continue to be part of the Group's normal
operating cycle.

At year end, the value of invoices sold by suppliers under supply chain financing arrangements was £75m (2022 - £45m).

23. Provisions

- Consalidated Srovy |

Cefered
Rastractunrg cemsiderahon Citrar Totzl
Zmn im im im
Al 17 Septemiber 2022 55 20 38 113
Created 21 2 &7 20
Utilised 139) {16) 7] (64)
Ralersed 118) - 13) (31)
Effect of moverments in foreign exchange o) - (4) 9
At 16 September 2023 o S 18 5 79 103
Current 18 3 34 55
Non-curent o - 3 435 43
13 6 79 103

Financial liabilities within provisions comprised deferred consideration in both years {see note 28).

Restructuring

Restructuring provisions include business restructure costs, Including redundancy, associated with the Group's
announced recrganisation plans, These restructuring provisions are largely expected to be utilised in the next financial
year,

Deferred consideration
Deferred consideration comprises estimates of amounts due to the previous owners of businesses acquired by the Group
which are often linked o performance or other conditions.

Other

Other provisions mainly comprise litigation claims and warranty claims arising from the sale and closure of businesses. The
extent and fiming of the utilisation of these provisions is more uncertain given the nature of the claims and the period of
the warranties.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

24, Share capital and reserves
Shoare capital

At 17 September 2027 and 14 September 2023, the Group's issued and fully paid share capilal comprised 862,027
ordinary shares of 50p. each carrying one vote per share. Total nominal value was £431,011.

Other reserves

Otherreserves are non-distibulable and materially arose from the cancellation of share premium account by ABF in
1993,

Translation reserve
The franslation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements

of foreign operations. as well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Group's nef investment in foreign
subsidiaries.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises all changes in the value of derivatives to the extent thatl they are effective cash flow
hedges. net of amounts recycled from the hedging reserve on occurrence of the hedged transaction or when the
hedged transaction is no longer expected ta occur.

25. Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisilions

2023

In the first holf, the ABF agriculture division acquired Kite Consulting. Advance Sourcing and Progres. Kite Consulting is a
specialist dairy consulfant and Advance Sourcing provides specialist products to create vailue by improving herd
performance and supports dairy farmers 1o improve herd efficiency ond build resifience across the agr-food supply
chain. Progres in Finland yses a patented additive to support good health, reduce inflammation and stimulote recovery.
which improves gut integrity and the performance of animals.

In April. the Ingredicnts ABF division acquired Vital Solutions, a German company specialising in natural science-based
ingredients for opplication in dictary supplements and functional foods.

The ABF Agricutture division ccquired IFCN AG, a dairy research and consulting company in June and in August
acquired National Mik Records plc (NMR) for £48m. NMR is the leading agri-tech supplier of management information
and testing services to the UK dairy supply chain, developing technology used fo inform farming efficiensy and animni
weltare, and quanfify food provenance.

The acguisitions had the following effect on the Group's assels and liabilities:

Fre e v quishon
acopstor anal
caryirg Records Olber Iola
walhees £ L Im
Net assets
Infangible assats 3 23 12 35
Property. plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 5 4 ] 5
Investment in joint ventures 3 9
Cash and overdrafts | ] 1
Working capital () - (n m
Loans 12) 2) - 2)
Taxation 1 {4) (2) (8)
Net identifiable assels and iabilties o 30 o 41
Goodwil 18 21 39
Total consideration 48 32 80
acguisiticn
o s £
Safisfied by: -
Cash consideration 78
Detfenred consideration . 2
o T S ii S ] ] - 80
Net cash:
Cash consideration 78
Cash and cash equivalents acquired e [
77
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

25. Acquisitions and disposals continued
Pre-acquisition carrying amounts were the same as recognised volues on acquisiion apart from £32m of non-operafing
intangibles in respect of brands, technology and custormer relalionships, a £7m related deferred tax fiability. a £6m uplift
to the investment in joinf ventures and goodwill of £39m. Cash flow on acquisition of subsidiaries, foint ventures and
associates of £94m comprised £78m cash consideration less £1m cash and overdrafts acquired, £16m of deferred
consideration relating to previous acquisitions and a £1m contribution to an existing ABF joint venture in China.

2022

In January, the Group acquired 100% of Fytexia, o B2B specialty ingredients business in france and Italy producing and
formuloting polyphenols-based active ingredients for the dietary supplements industry. In Jufy. the Group acquired
Greencoalt, a UK-bosed animal supplement and care business. During the year, the Group afse acquired a small
grocery company in New Zealand, a smail agriculture business in Finland and a small ingredients business in Australia,

Pre-acquisifion canying amounts were the same as recognised valucs on acquisifion apart from £88m of non-operating
infangibles in respect of brands, fechnology and customer relationships, an £8m upiift fo inventory, a £16m related
deferred tax liatility and goodwill of £85m. Cash flow on acquisition of subsidiories, joinf ventures and agssociates of
£154m comprised £153m cash consideration less £10m cash and overdrafts acquired, £7m of deferred consideration
rofating to previous acquisitions and a £4m confibution fo an existing joint venture in China.

Disposals

2023

The Group agreed to sell property, piant and cquipment to its Chinese joint venture partner. Profit on sale was £3m. n
March Gledhow, the Group's 30% cquity-accounted associate in llove Sauth Africa, farmally went info business rescue.
A non-cash provision of £6m was hooked on the financial guarantee heid on this business’ liabilities.

The Grand Hotel, Brighton was sold to the Fattal Group in May 2023 for £61m.

2022

The proposed sale of an ABF yeast company to the joint venture with Witmar Intermnational in China {classificd as held for
sale af the 2021 yvear end) is not going ahead. The £10m non-cash impairment reversed in 2021 through profit/floss}) on
sale and closure of business has been reinstated gt acost of £11m,

The Group's investment in north Ching Sugar is classified as held-for-sale ot year end and an associated £19m non-cash
write-down has been charged to loss on sale and closure of business

The Grouvp alio released Lm of usure provisions in Vivergo in the UK and £4m of warranty provisions no longer required
for o disposed ingredicnts business in the United States.

26. Share-based payments

Thea annual chorge in the income statement for equity-setfled share-based payments schemes was £18m {2022 - £19m).
The Group had the following principal equity-settled share-based payment plans in operalion during the period:

Associated British Foods 2016 Long-term Incentive Plan (‘the 2016 LTIP'}

The 2014 LTIP was approved and adopted by the Group at the ABF AGM held on ¢ December 2016. It takes the form of
conditional allocations of shares which are released if, and to the extent that. performance targets are satisfied,
typically over a three-year vesling peariod.

Associated British Foods 2016 Short-ferm Incentive Flan (‘the 2014 STIP')

The 2016 STIP was approved and adopted by the ABF Board on behalf of the Group on 2 November 2016. it takes the
form of conditional allocations of shares which ore released at the end of a three-year vesting period if, and to the
extent that, performance targets are satisfied, over a one-year performance pericd.

Further information regarding the aperation of the above plans can be found in the Remuneration Report in the annual
report and accounts of ABF on pages 100 to 115,

Totat conditional allocations under the Group's equity-settled share-based payment plans are as follows:

" Balancs nce

outstardirg a? outstanding

the beginnng Grared! Expled/ af the end

of the penad awiarded Yesled lapsed i the genog

2023 6,090,005 3,113,056 (607,140) (1.618,739) 46.977,182
2022 5419237  2,445814 (718185}  [1,054,841) 6,090,005

Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust

Shares subject fo aliocation under the Group's equity-settled share-based payment plans are held in a separate
Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust funded by the Group. Voting rights attached to shares held by the Trust are
exercisable by the trustee, who is entitled to consider any recommendation made by a commitiee of ABF. At 14
September 2023 the Trust held 4,734,992 {2022 -~ 3,042,132) ordinary shares of ABF. The markel value of these shares at the
year-end was £99m (2022 - £40m). The Trust has waived ifs right 1o dividends. Movements in the year were a release of
607,140 shares and the purchase of 2,300,000 shares (2022 - release of 718,185 shares and the puichase of 2,413,228
shares).
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24. Share-based payments continved

Fair values

The weighted average fair value of conditional grants made was determined by taking the market price of the shares at
the time of grant and discounting for the fact that dividends are not paid during the vesling period. The weighted
average fair value of the conditional shares allocated during the yearwas 1,544p (2022 - 1,660p) and the weighted
average share price was 1,925p (2022 - 1,975p). The dividend yield used was 2.5% {2022 - 2.5%).

27. Analysis of net debt

NMew [Boes T At

Acuistions  aod non 2ash Exchange 14 September
Cose Vo ared dispotaly ilerns agusiments 2023
£m £m £m im £m
Shor-term loans 13 {1 188) 7 (100)
Long-term loans - (1) 88 - (3%4)
Lease liablities 5 312 = {2%0) 463 (3,190)
Total iabilites from financing activilies [3.787} 325 (2) [2%0] 70 (3.684)
Cash at bank ond in hond, cash equivatents aond
averdrafts 2100 1500] - - 173} 1,527
Curent investments designated FYTPL 43 49 - 51 [14) 1,329
[444]) [128) (2) [239) {17} (828)
T T Comolckred Groan B T Wﬁiiirﬁiii
At Me e lenises A
'8 September Acqasihors  gndnon case =achonge 17 senlemier
2020 Cash low N S0sn s ey adjustrents v
£m £m £ Lir Im £
Short-term loans 1290) 58 {23) 224 - 131)
Long-term foans [76) {179] - 1e24) (2} 1481}
leaselobiies . __ . (3.308) @0 @ f1sa_ %8 B35
Totallicbiilies from financing aclivities [3.674) 204 {31) _[18g) {100} {3.787)
Caosh at bank and in hand, cash equivalents and
overdrafts 2,423 [397) - 74 2100
Cunent investments designated FYIPL 1P 122 {3 31 1,243
{158) (71 (31 {189) 5 [444)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash balances, call deposits and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less. £69m (2022 - £1246m) of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form an
integral part of the Group's cash management and are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the cash flow statement [see note 20 for a reconciliation].

Net cash excluding lease fiabilities is £2,.362m (2022 - £2,831m) comprising cash at bank and in hand, cash eqguivalents
and overdrafts of £1,527m. short-term loans of £100m, long-term loans of £394m and current investmenis designated
FYTPL of £1,329m {2022 — £2,100m, £31m, £481m and £1.243m respectively}.

£69m (2022 - £126m) of bank overdrafts plus the £100m (2022 - £31m) of short-term loans shown above comprise the
£169m (2022 - £157m) of current loans and overdrafts shown on the face of the balance sheet.

Current and non-current lease lighilities shown on the face of the balance sheet of £338m and £2.852m respeclively
(2022 - £320m and £2,955m respectively) comprise the £3,190m (2022 - £3.275m) of lease liabilities shown above.

Current investments designated FVYTPL comprise term depaosits and short-term investmeants with original maturities of
greater than three months but less than one year.

Interest paid is included within financing activities. The roll-forward of the liabilities associated with interest paid is an
opening balance of £(18)m, expense of £{12%Im, payments of £119m, effect of hyperinflationary economies of £3m and
a closing balance of £{25)m {2022 - opening balance of £{20im. expense of £{112)m. payments of £114m and a closing
balance of £{18)m). Oulstanding balances of interest payables are included In accruals in note 22.
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28. Financial instruments

financial instruments include £nil {2022 - £3m} of trade and other receivables and £nil {2022 - £14m] of frade and cther
payables which are classified as held for sale {see note 17). All disclosures in this note are given gross, before the held-

for-sale reclassification is made.

a) Camrying amount and fair values of financial assets and liabilities

e ABF [ . Corsolidated Group
2023 2022 2023 7072
£m £m £m £m

Financial assets
financial assets ot amortised cost
Cash ond cash eguivalents 1,457 2.121 1.596 2226
Investments - 4 - 4
Tracle and other receivables 1.568 o367 1,593 1.5%4
Other non-current receivables 31 29 31 29
At fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments 32 29 32 2%
Al fair value through profit and loss
Investments - 1,478 1.381
Derivative assets not designated in a cash flow hedging
relaticnship:
- currency dervatives ) 50 n 50
- commodily derivatives - 3 - 3
Designated cash flow hedging relationships
Derivative assets designated and effective as cash flow
hedging instrurments;
- currency dearivatives {excluding cross-currency swaps) 40 70 40 70
- CIOSS-CUMency Swaps 24 29 24 2%
- interest rate derivatives 4 - 4
- commodity denvatives B 17 323 17 323
Total financial assets ) 3,184 4,225 4,826 5738
financial kabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables {2.448) {2,651} (2,477) [2.687)
Secured loans - ) ) 12}
Unsecured loans and overdrafts (fair value 2023 - £470m: 2022
- £571m] (562) 636} (562) {638)
Lease liabilities (fair value 2023 - £3,208m; 2022 - £3,424m) {3.160) {3.252} (3,190} 13.275)
Defered consideration (9] {20) (&) [20)
At fair value through profit and loss
Dervative liabiities not designated in a cash flow hedging
relationship:
- currency derivatives {excluding cross-currency swaps) (&) {5) [4) 5
- commodity denvatives - f3) - (3}
Designated net investment hedging relationships
Derivative iabiiifies designated as net investment hedging
nstruments:
- CToss-CUTenCy Swaps {7} f7) {7 (7}
Desighated cash flow hedging relationships
Derivative liabilities designated and effective as cash flow
hedging instruments:
- curency derivatives [exciuding cross-currency swaps) {4 (17} {4) {17)
- imterest denvatives - 13) - (3}
- commodity derivatives (52) {170} {52) {170)
Total financial liabilities (6,245) {6, 765) (4.305) [6,825)
Net financial liabilities ) {3.061) {2.540} (1,479) (1,087]

Except where stated, carrying amount is equal to fair value,
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28, Financial instruments continued

Valuation of financial insttuments carried at fair value

Financial instruments caried ot fair value on the balance sheet comprise defivatives and investments. The Group
classifies these financial instruments using a fair value hierarchy thaf reflects the relative significance of both objective
avidence and subjective judgements on the inpuls used In making the fair value measurements:

tevel b financial instrumentds are valued using obsereable inputs that reflect unadjusted guoted market prices inan
active market for identical instruments, An example of an item in this category s a widely traded equity instrument with
a normal quoted market price.

Level 2: financial instruments are valued using techniques based on observable inputs, either directly {i.e. market prices
and rafes) or incirecity {i.e. derived from maorket prices ond rates). An example of onifernin this category is @ currency
deivative, where forward exchange rates and yield curve data, which are observable in the market, are used (o derive
fair value.

Level 3: financial instruments are valued using techniques involving significant unobservable inputs.

The table below analyses the level in the fair value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement method is
categorised for investmends held at fair value through profit and loss:

o o o o I T conwidald gl o

_ 3423 - e T e -
Level 1 Level 2 lavel 3 Tatal Lovel | Leve. 2 Leve 3 Tatal
£m £m £fm £fm £m im m im
investmenis designated FYIPL 1178 299 4 1,473 495 682 4 1.28)

Included within the level 2 investments is the Group's aggregate £145m inferest [2022; £138m) in 40 (2022: 46} separate
Partnerships, each of which held investments in unquoted investments. Such investments reprasent the Group's
aliocable share of Partnership investments and include interests in non-redeemable. closed-end private investment
funds that do net trade in an active market and represent illiquid long-term investments that genercily require future
capital commitmenls,

The fair value of such investments are determined by the General Partners of the funds invested in. Unquoted
invesiments are valued in accordance with the Infernational Prvate Equity and Ventyre Capitel Valintions Guidclines
rs endlarsed by the Brifish Venfuie Cupilal Associahon. 1he basis of valuation in these guidelines include valuing
investments at the price of recent comparative industry price earnings ratios discounted for marketability and
performance of the investment, by review of comparable M&A deals in appropriate sectors, and net asset valuations for
asset based investments.

Bacause of the inherant uncertainties of valuing unguoted investments, the avantual realisation pracesads may differ
from the estimated fair value and the difference could be significant, Appropriate provisions are made against all
individua! values where necessary to reflect unsatistactory financicl perfermance or a fall in comparable ratings. leading
ta impairment in value,

b) Derivatives
Al derivatives are classified as current on the face of the balance sheet. The table below analyses the carrying amount
of derivatives and their confractual/notional amounts, together with an analysis of dervatives by the level in the fair

value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement methed is categonsed.

~Snsoldgtod Grove

2023 _ - 2022
Contractuatf Comtraciuall
notionaf [al=1{leTy14]]
amounts Level 1 Llevel 2 Toial ooyt Leset t tevel 7 Tebon
£rm £m £m £m im £m L im
Finoncial ussets
Curency denvafives 2,402 - 51 51
{excluding cross-curency swaps) 2193 - 120 120
Cross-cumency swaps 84 - 24 24 94 - 29 2%
Interest rate dedvatives 400 - 4 4 - - -
Commodity dervatives 163 5 12 17 43 3 323 326
- 3,049 5 21 96 276 3 472 475
Financiat iabilities
Currency derivatives 626 - (10) (1)
{excluding cross-curency swaps) 921 - {22} [22)
Cross-cumency swaps &5 - 4} N 48 - 7 17)
Interest rate derivatives - - - - 400 - (3] {3l
Commodiydeivetves . _ 25 @ (O (s2) ¥ - (73 (73
94b (2) (67) (69) 1.755 - (205} {208)
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28. Financial instruments confinved

c} Cash flow hedging reserve

The following table idenfilies the movemnents in the cash flow hedging reserve during the year, and the perods in which
the cosh flows are expecied 1o ocour, The pefiods in which the cosh flows are expected 1o impact profit or loss ore
rmeternally the same.,

. Comolidajed Grap,.

2073 J -~ S
Cutrency
derivalives
{excluding Cross- I
<ross- curency inferest Commodity
cuTency) THOPY Desvativas denivatfas Tota T
£m £m £m £m £m X Ln
Opening balance (41) ~ 2 (115) (154) (14} {1 143}
Losses/{gains) recogrised in the
hedding reserve 73 5 (5) 337 112 (275} (20} 3 (234 1546)
Amaount remaved fram the hedging
reserve and included in the incormne
statement:
—revenue (&) - - (7) (13) 5 - - 14) 1
- cost of sales - - - (132) {132} - - - 1058 135
- oiher finoncial {income/expense - N - - N - bl - - 21
Amount rernoved from ihe hedging
reserve and included in o non-
financial asel
—inventory {52} - - {16} {68} 258 - - 22 280
Defered fox . (2) - - {39) {40} 5 S L 2
Closngbalance .~ {28) 2} {2) 30 (2) My -2y 154)
Cash flows arg expected to occur:
- within six months (15) - - 25 10 [38) - 2 {105] {139}
- between six months and one year (13) (2) (2) 4 {13) {6 - - {10} {18
- befween ore and fwo years - - - 1 L s L
(28} (2) 2 30 @ {4l . 2 (115 (154

Of the ciosing balance of £(2)m., £(1)m is atributable to equity shareholders and £{1)m to non-controlling interests {2022
— £{154)m, £(84}m attributable to equity shareholders and £{70)m to non-controliing interests). Of the net movement in
the vear of £152m, £83m is atiributable to equity shareholders and £69m to non-contralling interests (2022 - £(111)m,
£(60)m s attributable to ecuity shareholders and £{51]m to non-controlling interests).

The balance remaining in the commadity cash flow hedge reserve from hedging retationships for which hedge
accounting is no longer applied is £3m {2022 - £1m)

The balance in the cast of hedging resarve was nat significant at 17 Septembear 2022 or 14 September 2023,
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28. Financial instruments continved
d) Financial risk identification and management
The Group is exposed to the following financial risks fram the use of financial instruments:

- liquidity risk,
market risk; and
credit risk.

The Group's financial risk management process seeks to enable the early identification, evaluation and effective
management of key risks facing the business. Risk management policies and systems have been established and are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and chligations.

The Group sources and sells products and manufactures goods in many locations around the world. These operahans
expose the Group to potentially significant price volatility in the financial and commaodity markets, Risk management
teams have been established in the Group's major businesses to manage this exposure by entering inta a range of
products, including physical and financial forward contracts, futures, swaps, and, where appropriate, options. These
teams work closely with Group Treasury and report regularly o execulive manogement.

Treasury aperations and commodity procurement and hedging are conducted within a clearly defined framework of
Board-approved policies and guidelines to manage the Group's financial and commaodity risks. Group Treasury waorks
closely with the Group's procurement teams to manage commaodity risks, Group Treasury policy seeks to ensure that
adequate financial resources are available at all times for the management and development of the Group's
businesses, whilst effectively managing its market risk and credit risk. The Group's risk management policy explicitly
forbids the use of financial or commadity derivatives {oulside ifs risk management framework of mitigating financial and
commadity risks) for speculative purposes.

e} Foreign currency translation

The Group presents its financial statements in sterling. As a result of its worldwide operations, the Group is exposed to
foreign curency translation risk where overseas operations have a funclional currency other than sterling, Changes in
foreign curency exchange rates impact the franstation into sterding of both the income statement and net assets of
these foreign cperalions.

The Group typically finances ts operations using own funds generated in the functional currency of its operations and
where appropriate, by borrowing locally in the same functional currency. This reduces net asset values reported in
functional currencies other than sterling, thereby reducing the economic exposure fo fluctuations in fareign currency
exchange rates on translation.

The Group also finances its operations by obiaining funding at Group level through external borrowings and, where they
are not in slerding, these borrowings may be designated as net investment hedges. This enables gains and losses ansing
on retransiation of these foreign currency bomrowings to e charged to other comprehensive income, providing a partial
offset in equity against the gains and losses arising on translation of the net assets of foreign operations.

The Group also holds cross-currency interest rate swaps to hedge its fixed rate non-sterling debt. These are reported as
cash flow hedges and netinvestment hedges. The change in fair value of the hedging instrument, to the degree
effective, is retained in other comprehensive income. Under IFRS 9, the currency basis on the cross-currency swaps is
excluded from the hedge designation and recognised in other comprehensive income — cost of hedging. The value of
the currency basis is not significant. Effectiveness is measured using the hypothetical derivative approach. The
hypothetical derivative is based on the crifical termns of the debt and therefore the only ineffectiveness that might arise is
in refation to credit risk. Credit risk is monitored reguicrly and is not a significant factor in the hedge relationship.

The Group does not actively hedge the franslation impact of foreign exchange rate movements on the income
statement [other than via the partial economic hedge arising from the servicing costs an non-sterling borowings).

The Group designates certain of its intercompany loan arrangements as quasi-equity for the purposes of IAS 21. The
effect of the designation is that any foreign exchange volatility arising within the borrowing entity and/or the lending
entity is accounted for directly within other comprehensive income.

A net foreign exchange loss of £2m (2022 - £nil) on refronslation of these loans has been faken to the translation reserve
on consolidation, all of which was attributable to equity shareholders. The Group also held cross-currency swaps that
have been designated as hedges of ils netinvestments in euros. whose change in fair value of £nil to the franslation
reserve, all of which was attibutable to equity shareholders (2022 — £1m has been debited to the transiation reserve),
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28. Financial Insiruments continued

f) Market risk

Marked risk is the risk of movements in the fair velue of future cash flows of a financialinstrument or torecast ransaction
as undarlying market prices changs. The Group is exposed to changes in the market price of commodities, interest rates
and fareign exchange rates. These risks are known as 'fransaction' (or recognised) exposures and '‘economic' {or
forecast) exposures.

(i) Commuadity price risk
Commodity price risk arises from the procurement of raw materials, the sale of finished goods linked to market indices
and the consequent exposure o changes in market prices.

The Group purchases a wide range of commaodities in the ordinary course of business and has some sales contracts
which are linked to financial market indices. Exposure ta changes in the market price of certain of these commadities
inctuding sugar raws, energy. wheat, edible cils. soya beans, tea, lean hog, cocoa and rice is managed through the use
of forward physical contracts and hedging instruments, including futures, swaps and options primarily fo convert floaling
prices 1o fixed prices. The use of such contracts to hedge commodity exposures is governed by the Group's risk
management policies and is continually monitored by Group Treasury, Commaoadity dervatives also provide a way 1o
meet customers’ pricing requirements whilst achieving a price structure consistent with the Group's overall pricing
strategy.

Some of the Group's commodity forward contracts are classified as *own use’ contracts. since thay are entared into,
and continue fo be held, for the purposes of the Group's ardinary operations. In this instance the Group takes physical
delivery of the commodity concerned. Own use contracts do not require accounting entres untl ine commoadity
purchase actually crystailises. Where possible, other cormmodity derivatives are accounted for as cash flow hedges
{typically with a ane-tc-one hedge ratio), but there are some commodity derivatives for which the strict requirements of
hedge accounting cannot be satistied. Such commaodity derivatives are used only where the business believes they
provide an economic hedge of an underlying exposure. These instruments are ciassified as held for roding and are
marked to market through the incame statement.

The maiarity af the Group's forward physical confracts and commadity derivatives have maturities of tess than one year.
The Group's sensitivities in respect of commodity derivatives for a +/- 20% movement in underlying commodity prices are
£16m {2022 - £62m) ond L{13)m (2022 - £{57)m)]. respectively.

(i} Interest rafe risk

interast rate risk comprises two primary elements:

interest price risk rasults from financial instruments bearing fixed interest rates. Changes in floating interest rates
thereiore affect the fair value of these fixed rate finoncial insturments: and

interest cash flow risk results from financial instruments bearing flaating rates. Changes in flogting interast rates affect
cash flows oninterest receivable or payable.

The Group's policy fs 1o manage its mix of fixed and floating rate debt, cash and investments so that a significant \
change in interest rates does not have a materiat negative impact on the Group's cash lows.

At 16 September 2023, £475m (85%) (2022 - £487m and 76%) of total debt was subject fo fixed rales of interest, the
majority of which is the 2034 public bond f{fixed rate of 2.5%). Foating rate debt comprises olher bank pomrowings
bearing interest rates for various lime periods up 1o 12 months, by reference to the relevant market rate for the curency
and locaticn of the bomowing.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents and current asset investments are subject to floating rates of interest, typically
fixed for periods up fo 3 months by reference to the relevant market rate for the currency of the cash placing or
investment,

£400m of 12-month sterling interest rate swaps have been entered into so that the floafing interest rate received on an
equivalent bolance of the Group's cosh and cash eguivalents is fixed for the 12-month pericd fo Seplember 2024,
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28, Financial instruments continued

(iii) Foreign currency risk

The Group conducts business worldwide and conseguently in many foreign currencies. As aresult, it is exposed to
movements in fareign currency exchange rates which offect the Group's fransaction costs. The Group also publishes its
financial statements in sterling and is therefore exposed to movements in foreign exchange rates on the franslation of
the results and underlying net assets of its foreign operations info sterling.

Translation risk is discussed in section &) on page 54.

Transaction risk

Currency transaction exposure occurs where o business makes sales and purchases in a currency other thanits
functional currency. It also arises where monetary assets and liabilities of a business are not denaminated inits functional
currency, and where dividends or surplus funds are remitted from overseas. The Group's pelicy is fo match fransaction
exposures wherever possible, and 1o hedge actual expasures and firm comrmitments as soon as they occur by using
forward foreign currency contracts.

The Group uses derivatives (principally forward foreign currency confracts and time oplions) to hedge its exposure o
maovements in exchange rates onits foreign currency trade receivables and payables. The Group does not seek formal
fair value hedge accounting for such fransaction hedges. Instead, such dervatives are classified as held for rading and
marked to market through the income statement. This offsets the income statement impact of the retransiation of the
foreign currency frade receivables and payabies.

Economic (forecast) risk

The Group principally uses forward foreign currency contracts to hedge its exposure to movements in exchange rates on
its highly probable forecast foreign currency sales and purchases on arolling 12-month basis. The Group does not
formally define the proportion of highly probable forecast sales and purchases to hedge, but agrees an appropriate
percentage on an individual basis with each business by reference to the Group's risk management policies and
prevailing market conditions, The Group designates currency derivatives used to hedge its highly probable forecast
transactions as cash flow hedges. Under IFRS 9, the spot compeonent is designated in the hedging relationship and
forward points and cumency basis are excluded and recognised in other comprehensive income - cost of hedging. The
cost of hedging value during the period and at the balance sheet date was not material. The economic relationship is
based on critical terms and a one-to-one hedge ratio. To the extent that cash flow hedges are effective, gains and
losses are deferred in equity until the forecast transaction occurs, at which point the gains and losses are recycled either
to the income statement or to the non-financial asset acquired.

The majority of the Group's currency derivatives have original maturities of less than ana yenr,

The Group's most significant currency fransaction expasures are:
sourcing for Primark — costs are denominated in a number of currencies. predominantly US dollars, euros and sterling.
sugar sales in British Sugar 1o movements in the sterling/euro exchange rate.

Elsewhere, a number of businesses make sales and purchase a varety of raw matericls in foreign curencies (primarily US
dollars and euros). giving ¥ise to transaction exposures, In all other material respects, businesses tend to operate in their
functional currencies.
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28. Financial instruments continved
The table balow illustrates the effects of hedge accounting on the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated
income statement by disclosing separately by risk category. and each type of hedge, the details of the associated

hedging instrtument ond hedged item.

" Corsaidaled Group.

2023
Change in foir Change in fair
Carrying valve of hedging value of hedge
ameount furthest instrumen? used fa iterm ysed to
Contract assets/ maturity Hedge delermine hedge determine hedge
notignal  (liabiliies) dote ratia ineffecliveness elfecliveness
£m £m £m Fo £m £m

Current

Designated cash flow hedging relationships:

—currency derivatives (excluding cross-cumency swaps) 2,024 34 Sep 24 100% 34 (36)

— CrOSS-CUIMSNCY SwWaps 84 24 Mar24 100% 4 {6)

- commeodity denvatives 427 (35) Sep24 100% (35) 35

- interest rate deivatives 400 4 Sep24 100% 4 (4)

Designated net investment hedging relationships:

- curency derivatives [Cross-currency swaps) 65 {7) Mar24 100% - -

Non-current

Designated cash flow hedging relationships:

- currency derivatives (excluding Cross-cumency swaps) 21 - Apr25 100% - -

- commedity dervatives 11 - Feb 25 100% - -

e i Consoldu'ed Groun - T
e 2022
Changes i f
Carrying werae of B
amaun® Furiesl tem used to
Canlract azel. ity Hodge delermne hedge deterrine nedge
o enal [Ieatsiithes) dale 1atio ineffectireness e’feclivenass
£m £ im ) im im

Current

Designated cash flow hedging relationships:

- currency derivatives [excluding cross-curency swaps) 2102 54 Sep23 100% 54 (54)
CrOss-CUTENCY SwWaps 739 152 Aug 23 100% 152 {152)
commaodity derivatives 400 (3} Aug 23 100% {3 3

Nen-current

Designated cash flow hedging relationships:

- currency denvatives [excluding Crass-curency swaps) 32 11 Sep?4 1007 N ]

— Cross-CUrency swops 94 29 Mar 24 100% 14 (14)

- commodity derivatives 20 ] Jan 24 100% 1 {1}

Designated net invastment hedging relationships:

- cumency denvatives [Cross-currency swags) 48 (73 mar 24 100% 13} 3

Hedging relationships are typically based on a one-ta-one hedge ratfio. The economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument is analysed on an ongeing basis. Sources of possible ineffectiveness include changes in

forecast fransactions as a result of timing or value or, in certain cases, different indices linked to the hedged item and
the hedging instrurment. As at 16 September 2023, £2.045m of forward foreign currency contracts designated as cash
flow hedges were outstanding {2022 - £2.134my}, largely in relation to purchases of USD {£1.702m) and sales of EUR
{£203m) with varying maturties up to Apidl 2025, Weighted average hedge rates for these contracts are GBPUSD: 1.264,
EURUSD: 1.098 and GBPEUR: 1.145. Weighted average hedge rates for the cross-currency swaps are GEPUSD: 1.70 and
GBPEUR: 1.26. Commodity derivatives designated as cash flow hedges related to a range of underlying hedged items,
with varying maturities up to February 2025.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial insfruments confinued

The analysis of the Group's foreign currency exposure to financial assets and labilities by cumency of denomination is as

foliows:
- T T T T conciostedGrovp T
2023
Sterling us deller Euro Other Total
Em im Em im Ern
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 5 22 32 405
Trade and other receivables - 0 56 19 125
Investimenis o - - - - -
e - - 401 78 51 530
Financial liabilities
Trade and ofher paycbles 07 (381) {41) {4 {445)
Unsecured ioans and overdrafls o - (81) - 1 (80}
P i) {462) ) 5) (525)
Currency derivatives
Cross amounts receivable 67 1.8%0 112 466 2,535
Gross amounts payable S (3) (141) (299) {179) (642)
- 64 1,729 (187) 287 1,893
e 47 1,668 [150) 333 1,898
- - = “Corolidioted Glay T
[ —_— e e
Sterlnig U5 clallar Ewo Dthier ol
m im £m £m £m
Financial assels
Cash and cash eguivaients 1 84 13 38 138
Trade ond other receivables - 55 54 24 133
Investments ) - 149 - - 149
T 7 - T 20 &7 &2 20
?i]'lancial Iicﬁﬁﬁes B o o o o o o o o .
Trade and other payables 2% {512} [38) (17} {596)
Unsecuredloons and overdiafts - - _90) - - Lo
. e 29 [802) B8 7 (88
Currency derivatlives e " o
Gross amounts receivable 73 2,143 95 256 2,590
Gioss armounts payable 2) [202) {42B) {57) 689}
- T = i TR “(330) 199 1501
- T 83 V609 4[301) 244 1,635
The following major exchange rates applied during the year:
)A - - T B T Averagerale C\O&IHQ'IOIMQ - _;
2023 2022 2023 7022
US doliar 1.22 129 1.24 114
Euro 1.15 i.18 1.14 1.14

The foltowing sensitivity analysis llustrates the impact that @ 10% strenginening of the Group's fransacional curencies
against local functional currencies would have had on profit and equity. The analysis covers curency ransiation
exposures at year and on busingsses' financial assets and ligbilities that are not denominatad in the functional currencies
of those businesses, A similar but opposite impoct would be felt on koth profit and equity if the Group's main operating

curencies weakenad against local funclional currencies by o similar amount.

The exposure to foreign exchange gains and losses on translating the financial statements of subsidiaries into sterling is

notincluded in this sensitivity analysis, as there is no impact on the income statement, and the gains and losses are
recorded directly in the translation reserve in equity (see below for a separcte sensilivity). This sensitivity is presented

before taxation and non-cantrolling inferests.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial instruments ¢continuved

Sensitivity anatysis

© 2023 L 2022

impaci on impact on ropxact an Iroact on

profil for tetal prot for tootel

10% strengthening against other Currencies of he perf,.,c: eq?: " D@r;:f: m!n?
Sterling 1 [ 6
us collar n 144 19 172
Eura (2} (9 (1% (41}
Other 29 32 [1:) 27

A second sensitivity analysis calculates the impact on the Group's profit before tax if the average rates used to transiate
the results of the Group's foreign operations into sterfing were adjusted to show a 10% strengthening of sterling. A similar
but opposite impact would be felt on profit before tax if sterling weakened against the other currencies by a similar

amount.
o o 2023 7 20
impact on "mpact on
profit far proht tor
. . . the period ‘he zenod
10% strengthening of stering against £m m
US dollar (24) (18]
Euro (22) (3}
Other (27) (61
g) Credit risk

Credit risk is the sk that counterparties to financial instruments do not perform according 1o the terms of the contract or
instrument. The Group's busingsses are exposed to counterparty credit risk when dealing with customers, suppliers, and

from financial institutions.

The immediale credit exposure of financial instruments is represented by those financial instruments that have a net
positive fair value by countercarty at 14 Seplember 2023. The Group considers its maximum exposure to credit risk to be:

Corsolicated Groun

2023 022
£m L
Cash and cash equivalents 1,594 2226
Investments af amortised cost - 4
Investments at far vaue through profit and loss 1,478 1,381
Trade and other receivables 1,593 1.594
Other non-current receivables 31 2%
Investments af fair value through other comprehensive ncome 32 2%
Derivative assets at [air vaiue through profit and loss n 53
Derivative assels in designated cash flow hedging relafionships 78 415
] T 4819 573l
The significant majority of cash balanceas and short-term deposits are held with strong investment-grade banks or '
financial institutions.
The Group uses market knowledge, changes in credit ratings and other metics to identify significant changes to the
financial profile of its counterparties.
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28. financial instruments continved

Trade und other receivables

Significant concentrations of credit risk are very fimited as a result of the Group's large and divarse customer base. The
Group has an established credit policy applied by each businass under which the credit status of each new customer is
reviewed before creditis advanced. This includes extemnal credit evaluations where possible and in some cases bank
refersnces. Credit imits are established for alt significant or higherisk customers, which reprasent the maximum amount
permitted fo be outstanding withcut requiring additional approval from the appropriate ievel of management.
Qutstanding debts are continually monitored by each business. Credit limits are reviewed on o regular basis, and ai least
annually. Custamers that fail 1o meet the Group's benchmark creditworthiness may only fransact an a prepayment
basis, Aggregate exposures are monitored at Group level,

Many customers have been transacting with the Group for many years and the incidence of bad debts has been low.
Where appropriate, goods are sold subject to retention of title so that, in the event of non-payment, the Group may
hove asecured claim. The Group does nol typically require collaterol in respect of frade and other receivobles.

The Group provides for impairment of financial assets including trade and other receivailes bosed on known evanis,
and makes a collective provision far losses yet to be identified, based on historical data. The majority of fthe provision
comprises specific amounts.,

To measure expected credit losses, gross trade receivables are assessed regularly by each business locally with
reference jo considerations such as the current status of the relationship with the customer, the geographical location of
each custormer, and days past due (where applicable].

Expected losses are determingd based an the historical experience of write-offs compared to the level of trade
receivables. These historicol loss expectations are adjusied for current and forward-looking information where it s
identified 10 e significant. The Group considers factars such as national economic oullooks and bankruptcy rates of the
cauntries in which ifs goods are sold fo be the most relevant factors. Where the impact of these is assessed as significant,
the historical loss expeciations are amended accordingly.

The Group considers credit risk ta have significantly increased for debts aged 180 days or over and expects these debts
10 be provided forin full. Where the Group holds insurance or has o legal right of offsel with debicrs who are alse
creditars, the loss expectation is applied only to the extent of the uninsured or net exposure,

Trade recewvables are wiitten off when there s no reasonabie expactation nf recavery, indicators of wlidlommay include
the faiue ul 1he debfor 1o engage in a payment plan, and failure to make contractual payments within 180 days past
due,

The maximum exposure to credit risk for frade and other receivables at the reporting date by geographic region of
QiGN weas:

2023 2022

£m i
UK 609 506
Eurape & Afiica 398 285
The Americas 214 230
Asta Pacific e o I3
T T T 1,593 1,594

Trade receivables can be analysed as follows:

Consanciaied Group

2023 077
£m im
Not overdue 1,164 1,134
Up to one month past due 124 14]
Between one and two months past due 30 31
Betweaen two and three months past due 10 12
Mare than thrae months past duea 30 30
Expecied ioss provision e w2
i ) D o ' 1,330 132

Trade receivables are stoted net of the following expected loss provision:

Cpening balonce
Increase charged to the income staternent
Amcunts released

Arrounts wrilten off

Effect of mavements in foreign exchange
Closing bolance

No frade receivables were wiitten off directly to the income statement in either year.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continued

The geographical and business ine compiexity of the Group, combined with the fact that expected credit loss
assassments are ail performed locally, reans that it is not practicable to present further analysis of credit losses.

In relation to otherreceivables not forming part of trade receivables, a similar appraach has been taken to assess
expected credit losses. No significant expected credit loss has been identified.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of frade and other receivables approximates fair value.

Cuash and cash equivalents

Banking relationships are generally selected for their cradit status, global reach and their ability to meet the businesses’
day-to-day banking requirements. The credit risk of these institutions are monitored on a continuing basis. Operating
procedures including choice of bank, opening of bank accounts and repatriation of funds must be agreed with Group
Treasury. The Group has not recordad impairments against cash or cash eguivalents, nor have any recoverability issues

been identified with such balances.
h) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial
liakilities as they fall due. Group Treasury is responsible for monitoring and managing liquidity and ensures that the Group
has sufficient headroom in ils committed facilities to meet unforeseen or abnormal requirements. The Group also has

access to uncommitted facilities to assist with short-term funding requirements.

Available headroom is monitored via the use of detailed cash flow forecasts prepared by each business, which are
reviewed at least quarterly, or more often. as required. Actualresults are compared to budget and forecast each
period, and variances investigated and explained. Particular focus is given to management of working capital,

The Board's treasury policies are in place to maintain o strong capital base and manage the Group's balance sheet 1o
ensure long-term financial stability. This includes maintaining access fo significant total ligquidity comprised of both net

cash and undrawn committed credit facilities. These policies are the basis for investor, creditor and market confidence
and enable the succeassful development of the business.

Details of the Group's borrowing facilities are given in section iy on page 62.

The following table analyses the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to financial liakilities at the balance sheet
date and compares them to carrying amounts:

Consodated Graup

2023
Due Due Due
between between between
Dve within & months Tand 2 2and § Due affer  Confracted Carnying
& menths  and 1 year years years § years amount amount
Nole £rn £m £m £m im im £m
Non-derivative financial liabifities
Trade and other payables 22 (2,409) (48) - - - (2.477) (2,477)
Secured loans 21 - (1 - - s nm (1}
Unsecured loans and overdrafts 21 {80} {101) (13) (30) (460} (484) (562)
Lease liatilities 27 {19 {212) {40%) (1.065) {2,100} {3.985) {3,170}
Defered consideration 23 {2) (1} (3} - - (6} (6)
Derivative financial liabilities
Currency derivatives (excluding cross- (4} - - (3} - (7} {10)
currency swaps) (nef payments)
- Commodity derivatives netpayments) - {46) _ (5) () - - B 5
Total financial liabilities (2,740} {388) (424) (1,098) (2,560} {7.212) {5,298}
T - _— T T Conseldated Group o -
- o e 207 - T N
Cue Dug Cuer
bebwesn Liplwecen erween
Due walbin & manths 1 and 7 2anah Jus aer Conbracred Carnyng
& months angl 1 year ey YRR 3 yeors anount cracunt
Nole im £m £ im £m £m £rm
Non-derivafive financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 [2,659) 28] - - - [2.487] [2.687)
Secured loans 21 - {1} 1y - (2) (2}
Unsecured loans and overdrafts 24 {153) {17} (03] 131} {470) {774] 636)
Lease liabifities 27 {200) 217) [413) [¥.127] [2.404} [4,361) {3,275}
Defared considerafion 23 {4] 12 ik 3} - 20} [20)
Derivative financial liabilities
- Currency derivatives [excluding cross- 5] 2] 1} - - 18} (22}
currency swaps) (net payments)
Commodity derivatives {net paymenis) {170] 1 12} - {173) {173}
- Inlerest rate denvatives [nei payments) {3 - - (3) (3}
Total financial liabilities [3.204) {278) [521) {1.161} [2.874) 18,038) 16818}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continved
The above tables do not include forecast data for liabilities which may be incured in the future but which were not
contracted at 16 September 2023,

The principal reasons for differences between carying values and contractual undiscounted cash flows are coupan
payments on the fixed rate debt to which the Group is already committed, future interest payments on the Group's
lease ligbiities, and cash flows on derivative financial instruments which are not aligned with their fair value,

i) Borrowing facilities
The Group has substantial borrowing facilities available to it. The undrawn committed facilities available at 16
September 2023, in respect of which all conditions precedent have been met, amounted to £1.516m {2022 - £1,567m}:

. Gensshaated Cro.p

2023 T
Facility Drawn Undrawn
£m £m Em
Committed Revaolving Credit Facility 1,500 - 1.500
Public Bond due in 2034 390 390 -
US private placernent 81 81 -
llowvo 29 i5 14
Other ... 3 1 2
2,003 487 1,514 2,064 497 1.567
Uncommitted facilities availakle gt 16 September 2023 were:
T Corsolidales Grous e __
2023 2022
Facility Drawn Undrawn Sacilty Drcram Jndrawe
£m £m £m £m £ L
lllove 115 50 45 1883 ?9 89
AZUCOrer 33 1 a2 36 2 34
Chinc 35 - a5 32 - 39
rMoneymarket lines - - - 100 100
Other R 180 25 155 ) 162 40 122
363 74 287 525 141 384

In addition to the above facilities there are also £149m (2022 - £114m) of undrawn and available credit lines for the
purposes ot issuing letters of credit and guarantees in the normal course of business.

The Group has issued a public bond of £400m due in 2034, Included are deferred financing costs totalling £10m which
have been capitaiised against the bond and are to be amortised over its term.

Uncormmitted bank barrowing facilities are normally recffimed by the banks annually, althcugh they can be withdrawn
at any ime.

Refer to note 10 for details of the Group's capital commitments and to note 29 for a summary of the Group's
guarantees.

i} Capital management

The capital structure of the Group is presented in the consolidated balance sheet. For the purpose of the Group's
capital managemeant, capital includes issued capital and all other reserves otiributable fo equity shareholders, totaling
£8,195m (2022 - £8,106m). The consclidated statement of changes in equity provides details on equity and note 21
provides delails of loans and overdrafts. Short- and medium-term funding requirements are provided by a variety of loan
and overdraft facilities, both committed and uncommitted, with o range of counterparties and maturities. Longer-term
funding is sourced from the 2034 Public Bond., the private placement notes and committed syndicated loan facilities.

The Board's policy is to maintain @ strong capital base so as te maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and fo
enable successful fulure development of the business. The Board monitors return on capital by division and determines
the overall level of dividends payable to shareholders.

From time to fime the trusiee of the ABF Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust purchases ABF shares in the market to
satisty awards under ihe Group's incentive plans. Once purchased, shares are not sold back into the market. The Group
does not have a defined share buy-back plan.

There were no changes to the Group's approach to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries is subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.

29. Contingencies

Litigation and other proceedings against the Group are not considered material in the context of these financial
statemenits.

Where Group companies enter into financiat guarantee coniracts to guarantee the indebledness of other Group
companies, the Group considers these 1o be insurance arrangements and has elected to account for them as suchin
accordance with IFRS 4, In this respect, the guarantee contract is freated as a contingent liability until such time as it
becomes probable that the relevant Group company issuing the guarantee will be required to make ¢ payment under
the guaranice.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

29. Contingencies continued
As ot 16 September 2023, Group companies have provided guarantees in the ordinary course of business amounting fo
£1,724m (2022 - £1,754m).

In 2021, a Thai court ruled in favour of ABF's Ovdltine business in Thailand in o legal action 1t brought against one of its
suppliers in respect of @ contractual dispute. The court concluded that between 2009 and 2019 the supplier had
overcharged Ovalline Thailand and should pay compensation of 2.2 bilian Thai baht (£50m; 2022 - £52m). The relevant
contractual relationship between the Group and its supplier terminated at the end of 201%. The Group has not yet
recorded an asset in respect of this matter as the defendant is appealing the judgment. Since the balance sheet dale,
a proclamation from the appeal court in Thailand has been made regarding the appeal by the defendant that reverses
the previous judgemeant thal was given in 2021. We are currently reviewing next steps with legal counsel.

30. Related parties

The Group has a controlling shareholder relationship with its subsidiary company, ABF. with the trustees of the Garfield
Weston Foundation and with certain other individuals who haold shares in the Company. Further details of the cantroling
shareholder relationship are included in note 32. The Group has a related party relationship with its associates and joint
ventures [see note 32) and with its directors. In the course of normal operations, relaled party fransactions entered into
by the Group have been contracted an an am's length basts.

Material fransactions and year end balances with related parties were as follows:

500 2023 TR
noie £000 £200
Dividends paid by Wittington Investments Limited cand Associated British Foods plc ["ABF)
and received in a beneficial capacity by
li} frustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation and therr close family 1 15,964 16,217
lii) cirectors of Wiltington Investments Limiled whao are not ustees of the Foundation and
their close family 2 3,405 3.334
Sales to and commissions paid to companies with commeon key management personnel on
romnal frading terms 3 9,912 14,891
Amounts due from companies with common key managemeant perscnnel 3 1,028 2.8%8
Sates to joint ventures on nomnal frading terms 40,645 54,111
Sates fo associates on nomal frading tems 88,753 73,380
Purchases from joint ventures on normal frading tenms 482,267 436,467
Purchases from associates on normal trading terms 97.844 13.879
Amounts due from joint veniures 45,065 43,655
Amounts due from associates 9,045 2,451
Armounts due To joint venturas 17.609 30214
Amounts due to associates 7,161 594
Provision for doubstful debts on amounts due from associales (300} (300}

1. Tne Gaield Weston Foundation {'-he Foundatian’] s an Enghsh cnaritable trust. estaklishad in 1758 by the late W. Garfield Weston. Tne
Foundatian ias no dirsct ineres: in tne Company, but as at 16 September 2023 was 'ne bene’icial owner of 683073 snares {2022 - 483,073
shores) i wittingten Investmenrs Limited represenving 79.2% (2022 - 79.2%) of the Company'sissued share caoital and s, thererore. the
Company's ultirate controling party. At 16 Seotember 2023 frustees of the Foundarion comprised nine grandchitd-en of the late wW. Garfield
weaston of whom five are chitdren of the lare Gerry H. Weston.

2. Details of the direciors of Wirting*on Inves*man's Limited are given on page 7. Directors' remuneration is disclosed in note 5.

3. The comeany with comman key management oescnnel is the George Weston Limited groun. in Canada.

Armounts due from joint ventures include £32m {2022 - £29m) of finance lease receivables (see note 18). The remainder
of the balance is trading balances. All but £4m (2022 — £4m) of the finance lease receivables are non-current.

Details of the Group's subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and associates are setf out in note 32.

31. Post Balance Sheet Event

On 12 December 2023 the Directors declared an Interim dividend. The dividend of £86.50, total value of £74.6m, will be
paid on 23 January 2024 to sharehoclders on the register on 12 December 2023,

32. Group entities

Control of the Group

The trustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation ['the Foundation’ jare controlling sharehotders of the Company. Cerain
other individuals, including certain members of the Weston family who hold shares in the Company are, under the Lishng
Rules, treated as acting in concert with the trustees of the Foundation and are therefore also treated as controling
shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

32. Group entities continued

Subsidiary undertakings

Alist of the Group's subsidiaries as at 16 September 2023 is given below.

ABF aonnounced g share buyback programme of £500m in November 2022, In the fingncial vear, ABF purchased 23.7
millicn ABF shares for £448m and the shares bought back were cancelled. Since the financial year end. o further 2.8
milicn ABF shares were purchased. completing the total £500m buyback programme. ABF has announced the
continuation of a buyback programme, targeting an additional omount of £500m over the next 12 months.

Given the Group owns 56.2% of the share capital of ABF plc at 14 September 2023, the effective ownership of
subsidiaries is 56.2% except where ownership percentages are shown. These percentages give the Group’s ultimate
interest and therefore allow for sitbations where sulsidiaries are owned by partly owned intermediate subsidiaries. Where
subsidianes have different classes of shares, this is largely for historical reasons and the effective percentage holdings
given represent both the Group's voting rights and equity holding. All subsidiaries are consolidated in the Group's
financial statements. Al subsidiaries with an effective holding of less than 50% are subsidiaries of ABF plc. Since ABF plc
has greater than 50% effective ownership of these subsidiaries, and the Group owns 56.2% of the share capital of ABF

plc. the Group has effective control of these subsidiaries.

% eflectve holdicg

Sabsichary underakngs P not 56.2%

Subsidhary Lnaerakings

% effectve holdirg
if et 54.2%

United Kingdom

weston Cenfre, 10 Grosvenor Streef, London,
WIK 4QY. United Kingdom

A.B. Exploration Limited

AB.F. Holdings Lirmited

A.B.F. Nominges Limited

A.B.F. Properfies Limited

AR Agri Limited

AR Foods Australics Limited

AR Ingredients Limited

AB Maur (UK Limited

AB Mawri China Limited

AB Maoun Europe Limited

AB Sugar China Holdings Limited
AB Sugar China Limited

AB Sugar China MNorth Limifed
AB Sugar Limited

AR Technology Limiled

AB World Foods (Holdings) Limited
AB World Foods Limited

ABF [No. 1] Limited

ABF [No. 2) Limited

ABF {Mo. 3) Lmited

ARF BRL Finance Lid

ABF Energy Limited

ABF Europe Finance Limited
ABF European Holdings Limited
ABF Finance Limited

ARF Food Tech Investments Limited
ABF Funding

ABF Grain Products Lmited
ABF Green Park Limited

ABF Grocery Limited

ABF HK Finance: Limited

ABF Ingredients Limited

ABF Investments plc

ABF Investrments [No.2) Limited
ABF Jopan Limited

ABF MXN Finance Limited

ABF CQverseas Limited

ABF plc

ABF PM Limited

ABF UK Finance Limited

ABF US Holdings Limited

ABF ZMW Finance Limited

ABN [Overseqs) Limited

ABMNA Feed Company Hmited
ABNA Limited

&4 Wittington Investments  Financial Stalement: 2023

Aceturn {UK) Limited {previously Alied
Technical Centre Limited)

Agrilines Limited

Alled Bakeries Limited

Alied Grain (Scetland] Limited
Alled Grain (Scuth) Limited

Adied Grain [Southem) Limited
Allied Grain Limited

Allied Mills [No. 1) Limited

Alled Mills Limited

Allinson Lirmited

Associaled British Foods Pension Trustees
Limited

Alrium 100 Properties Lmited
Adnom 100 Stores Holdings Limited
Atrium 100 Steres Limited

B.E. International Foods Limited
Banbury Agriculture Limited

British Sugar [Overeas) Limited
British Sugar plc

BSO {China) Limited

Cerenl Indusiries Limited

Cergform Limited

Dairy Consulting Limited

Davion Food Limited

Dorset Cereals Limited

Eastbow Securties Limited
Elsenham Quality Foods Limited
Fishers Feeds Lmited

Fishiers Seeds & Grain Limiled

Food Inveslmenis Limited

G. Costa (Holdings) Limited

G. Costa and Company Limited
Germaoin's (UK.} Limited
Greencoat Limited

Greencoat Farm Limited

H 5 Limited

llova Sugar Alrica Heldings Limited
John K. King & Sons Limited
Kingsgote Food Ingredients Lmited
KQ2Z Limifed

LeafTC Limiied

taur Products Limited
Mountsfield Park Finance Limited
Natural Vetcare Limited

Nufrition Trading {Iniernational} Lmited
Nutilion Trading Limited

Potak [Spices) Lmited
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for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

32. Group entities continued

% ellective hoidng

% ef'ectve holdng

Sabaidian, underlagngs il nel 56 2% Subsichiary undeg badings if ~ot 56 2%
Patak Food Limited Northern Ireland
Patak's Breads Limiled I College Place Narth, Boffast, BTT 6BG.
Patak’s Foods 2008 Limited United Kingoom
Premier Nutrfion Products Limited i}OTjS;?‘Ll:‘:UT”eRd o Runecid -
; : ' - nif 4, astle Road, Randafsiown, Co,
?de ?ISUP: b“f L,'Tged Cormpany Antrim, BT4] 268, Uniled Kingdlam
fimerk LK) Lmite Jordan Bros. (N.1.) Limited
Primark Austia Limited . h . .
. - Nutition Services (Infernational) Limited
Primairk Mode Limited . .
. . L . . o vistavet Lmited
Primcrk Pension Administration Services Limited fand
(dissolved 24 October 2023) co on B
Prirmark Stores Limited 32 Kelvin Av‘enue: Hilingfon Pork, Glasgow,
) . o G52 4LT, United Kingdom
Primary Diefs Limited e | Mik Laboratories Linited
Primary Nutnhion Lirmited anonal Milk Laboratones Lmie
. - . 180 Glentanar Road, Glasgow, G22 7UP.
Pro-Active Nutrtion Limited . .
R. Twining and Company LUmited United Kingdom
o Ngnmn L'm'rp . Y ABN (Scofland] Limited
1 L] .
R XN UT ‘r Lt e Miller Samue! LLP, RWE House,
wses Ruintion ) 3 Renfield Street, Glasgow, G2 5EL
Seedcole Systems Limifed United Kingdom
Serpentine Securities Limited (dissolved 26 Korway Foods Lmited
September 2023) Qraan F0 .S m. e.
Shen Fair Producls Limiied Korway Holdings Limited
Sp-rar Froducls Lmie Patak's Chilled Foods Limited
Spectrum Aviafion Limited . .
) L Patak’s Frozen Foods Limiied
Speedibake Limited e e e e e — e e
B United Kingdom — Non ABF
Sunblest Bakeries Limited
The Bakery School Limited (dissolved 3 Oclober weslon Centre, 10 Grosvenor Sheet, Landon.
2023}0 = i WIK 4Q)Y. United Kingdom
The Bilington Food Greup Limited Ciinfon Farms Limited 100%
. {dissolved 19 Sepiemizer 2023)
The Home Grown Sugar Company Limited .
. - George Weston Limited [dormant) 100%
Ihe Jordans & Ryvita Company Limited , ! ) -
. Richmond Hil Hotel {Operations) Limited 100%
The Natural Sweetness Company Limited .
o WINDL Offices Limited 85%
The Readmaop Company lmied . -
The Silver Spoan Company Limited wittington Inveslimenis [Ahren) Limited 100%
, Poon Lompany Witfingion Investrrants (BPA 1] Linited 100%
Tip Top Bakeries Limited {clomant)
Trident Feeds Limited , Witlingtor Investments (BSPF} Limited (dormant) 100%
Twining Crosfield & Co. Limited Witfingron Investments (BV 1) Limited {dormant] 100%
Viverga Fuels L'm”e,d . wittington Investmenls [Careplaces) Limited 100%
W. Jordan & Son (Silo} Umited {dorrmant)
W. Jordan (Cerecis} Limifed wittington Investments (FAPY) bimited (ciormant] 100%
wersham Gravel Company Limited (The) wittington Investments (FARIII) Limited 100%
wWestmill Foods Limited [{dormant)
waston Biscuit Company Limited (The) wittington Investmenls (FIPLY Lirmited [domand) 100%
Weston Foods Limited Withington Invesiments (Next wave] Limited 100%
weston Research Laboratories Limited {dormant]
Worldwing Investments Limited wittington Investments [Properlies) Limited 100%
Veornon House 40 New North Road, wittington tnvestments [Reof] Limited {demont] 100%
Huddersfield, West Yorkshire HD1 5LS, United wittingtan investments [Richmond Hill Hotel) 100%
Kingdorr Limited
Proper Nutty Limited witlington investments finance Limited 100%
Fox Talbol House, Unit 4 Greenways Business 196 Tottenham Court Road, London, WIT 7LQ
Pork. Befinger Close, Chippenham, Wiltshire, Heal & Son Limited 100%
iJN :5 IB:" U,‘””Ed Kf”gdL‘?”Tf y Heal's Holdings Limited 100%
. !onoa M'k Iiec;):?ds "T; eL' Hed Hedl's Pension Fund Trusiees Limited 100%
rrjcﬁ!orlo1 tw’l\.f‘isRoc decTor rs m(w:\ £ — Heal's ple 100%
orgn% |Udecor s Trustee Company Limite Heals {1810) Limited 100
Nordlic: Star 181 Piccodily. London, W1A 1ER
F. & m. Limited 100%
Fortnum & taason (Bxport) Limiled 100%
Fortnum and Mason [London) Umited 100%
Fortnum and Mason Hospitality Limited 100%
Fortnum & Mason Pic 100%
Forinumes Limited 100%
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32. Group entities continved

% effecive hot

Subsiclany underakngs ilnol 56 2%

Subsicliary urdortakings

United Kingdom - Non ABF - audit exempt

The following subsidiary companies of Wittington Invesiments
Limited [note that wittington Invesiments (BSP} Limited is a
subsidiary of Wittingten Investments (Finance) Limited) have
availed themselves of the audil exemptlion for subsidiary
company under s479A-479C of the Companies Act 2004 for the
financicl year ending September 141h 2023,

As the parent company [or ulimate parent company in the
case of Wiltinglon invesiments (RSP} LUimited), Wiilington
Investments Limited guaranieas all oulstonding liobilities to
which each subsidiary company listed below 15 subjecl as at
September 16th 2023

Weston Contre, 10 Grosvencr Street London,
WIK 4QY, United Kingdom

wittington Investments [Apolio) Limited 100%
(Company number DB437983)
Avery Row Management Limited 100%
(Company number 11399508)
Listergate Student Holdings Limited) 100%
ICompany numper 11289745)
Howard Investments Limited 100%
{Company number 03729125}
WILH [Invesiments) Limited 100%
{Company number 04224010}
witlinglon Investmenis [Bestpon) Lirmited 100%
{Company number 05724605)
wittington Investrments {BSP Vill) Limited 100%
[{Company numiser 0558380646}
wittington Investments (BSPY Limiteq 1007%
(Compaony number 10122727}
wittington Investments (Developments} Limited 100%
{Company number 07721700}
wittington Investiments {Dunedin i) Limiled 100%
[Company number 08307734}
wittinglon Investments (Duneding Uimiled 100%
[Company number 0587524%)
witlinglon Investments {(Graphite) Limited 100%
{Company number 08643407)
witlinglon Investments (Harbourvest) Limited 100%
(Company number 0663227 1
wittington Investments (OCP) Limited 100%
{Company number 064322835)
wittington Investments PEF (Euro) Limited 100%
{Compoany number 08334015)
Wittington Investments PEF {GBP) Limited 100%
[(Company number 08111797)
witlington Investments PEF {USD} timited 1005
[Company number 05024375]
Wittingion Investrments {Private Fquity) Limited 100%
[Company number 09973685]
wittington Investrment (Sand Aire) Limited 100%
{Company nurmber 04615376)
witlington Investments (VO Limited 100%
[Company number 06576342)
wittington Investments {(WHEB) Limited 100%
(Company number 06576301)
wittington Investments (WPX) Limited 100%

[Company numbar 063463087)

Australia

Buildling A, Level 2, 11 Tolovero Road,
Norfh Ryde, NSW 2113, Austratia

AB Mo Cverseas Holdings Lmited

AB Mauri Pakistan Pty Limited

AB Maurt ROW Holdings Py Limited

AB Maour South America Pry Limited

AB Mauri South Wesh Asic Pty Limited

AB Mowri Technology & Development Py
Uirrited

AB Mauri Technology Py Limited

AB World Foods Pty Lid

Anzchem Pty Limited

AusPac Ingredients Pty Lid

CCD Animal Health Pty Lid

Dagan Trading Phy. Lid

Food Investments Pty Limited

George Weston Foods [Victoria) Pty Ltd
George Weston Foods Limited
Indonesian Yeast Company Ply Limited
Maun Fermentation Bragil Pty Limited
Mauri Fermentation Chile Pty Limiled
war Femmentation China Py Limited
mMaur Fermentation India Py Limited
mMaur Fermentation indonesical Py Limited
Maur Fermentation Malaysia Pty Lirmiled
rMaur Fermentation Philippines Pty Limited
Mauyr Fermentritinn Vietnam Py Lmited
mauri Yeos! Australia Phy Limited

N&C Enterprises Py Lid

Sermol Ingredients Pty Limiled

The Jordans and Ryvita Company Australia Pty
Ltd

Yumi's Guality Foods Phy Lid

35-37 South Corporate Avenue, Rowvilie,
VIC 3178, Australicr

AB Food & Beverages Australia Py, timited
170 South Giopstand Highway, Dandenong.
VIC 3175, Austrolio

ABF Wynyard Park imited Partnership

< effeclive nolding
ifrat 52 25

Austria

wolizelle 11/2. OG. 1010 Vienna, Ausiria
Prmark Austna Lid & Co KG
Krottenbachstrasse, 82-88/5tg 1/Top 5. 1190
Vienna, Ausinia

Nutrilabs GmibH

Bangladesh

Level 13 Shanta Western Tower,

Bir Uttam Mir Showkat Rood, 186 Tejgaon /A,
Dhaka 1208, Bangladesh

Twinings Ovdltine Bangladesh Limited

Argentina

mMarscat Anfonio Jose de Sucre 32 - 2nd Floor,
Buenos Afres 1428, Argentina

AB Mauri Hispanoamerica S.A.
Surgras 5.A (in liquidation)
Compania Argentina De Levadurgs S.A LC.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 Seplember 2023

32. Group entities continved

Sussidiary Lndertakings
Belgium
industiiepark 2d, 9820 Mercibeke, Beigium

AB Mo Belgiurm NY

Choussée de la Hulpe 177120, 1170 Bruxelios,
Belgium

Primark SA

Brazil

Avenida Tietd, L-233 Baranco do Rio Tieté,

City of Pederneiras, State of Sao Paulo,

CEF 17.280-000, Brazi

AB Brasil Inddsina e Comércio de Aimentos Ltda
Alamedo Madeira 328, 20h Floor, Room 20045,
Alphoville — Baruer, Sao Poulo 06454-010, Braz!
AR Enzimas Brasl Comercial Lida

Avenica Dra, Ruth Cardoso, n® 7221, 11° Foor,
Room 1101 {partef, Condomimo Edificio
Birmann 21, Pinheiros, CEP 05425-902, City of
Sao Paule, State of 5Goe Paula, Brazil

AR Vistar Brasil Comercie De AlimentacGo
Animal Ltda
Canada
Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP. 199 Bay Sheef,
Suite 4000, Toronto, Ontario MSL LAY, Canada
AB Mo [Canada) Limited

Chile

Miraftores Street No. 222, 28 Floor, Sanfiaga,
Chife

Calsa Chile mversiones Limitacia

China

Mo, 1 Tongoheng Sheel A Cheng LIS,
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province, China

AB {Harbin} Food Ingredients Co.. Lid. (in
liquidaiion)

North Huong He Rood. Rudang

New Economic Development Zone,

Nantong City, Jiangsu Pravince, China

AB Agr Arimal Nytiton (Nantorg) Co., Lid

AB Agri Animal Nulmtion (Rudong) Co.. Lid.

No 28. South Shunjin Road, Yintar Distict,
Tongchuan, Shaanxi Province, China

AB Agri Animnal Nulrition (Shaanx) Co.. Lid.
Room 7-1068, No. é8 Shiiu Hubei Road, Chunx
Street, Gaochun Distict, Nanjing City,  diangsu
Frovince, China

AB Agri Pumeixin Tech [Jiangsu) Co. Lid.
Chuangxin Road, Tonggu Indusfry Zone, Sandu
Town, Tongagu County, Jiangx Province, China
AB agr Pumeixin Tech [Jiangx) Co. Lid.

Room 2802, Raoffles City Changning.

No. 1189 Changning Rood, Changring Distict,
Shanghot, 200051, Chino

AB Enzymas Trading [Shanghay Cao., Lid

Room 2803, Raffles City Changning,

No. HE2 Changning Road, Changning District,
Shanghai, 200051, Ching

ABNA Management [Shanghai) Co. Lid.

ABNA Trading [Shanghai) Co.. Lid

Room 2906 Raffles City Changning,

No. 1189 Changning Road, Changning District,
Shanghai, 200051, China

Associcited Bitish Foods Holdings {China) Co.. Lid
Unit 006, Room 401, Floor 4, Building 1. Mo 15
Guanghua Road, Chooyang Disirict, Bejing,
China

AB Mauri [Beijing) Food Sales and
marketing Company Limited

e effect™wa haldng

Subsmdicny urdettarngs

Building 1, 35 Chi Feng Road . Yangpu District,
Shanghai 200092, Ching

AB Mauri Foods (Shanghai) Company Limited 51%
868 Yongpu Road, Puiang Town.

Minharg District, Shanghai 201112, China

ABNA (Shanghai) Feed Co., Lid.

14 Juhoi Road., Jinghai Development Zone

Tianjin, Ching

ABNA (Tianjin) Feed Co, Lid

Shu Shan Modern industrial Zone of Shou

County, Hudinan City, Anhui Province, Ching

ABNA Feed [Anhui] Co., Lid.

145 Xincheng Road, Tengao Economic

Development Zone, Anshan,

Liconing 114225 Ching

ABNA Feed (Liconing) Co.. Ltd.

17 Xinngyang Streel, Tu Townshin. Chayot

Cyani, inner Mongolia. China

Boticn Sugar industry (Chayou Qiangi) Co., Lid,

No. 1 Botion Rood, Economic Development

Zone, Zhangbol County, Zhongpakau City,

Hebel Province, China

Botian Sugar Industry [Zhangbei} Co., Lid.

Roor 1110, No.368, Changjiung Road,

Nangang Concentrafed District, Fconomic
Development Zonc, Harbin, China

Botian Sugar Industry Co.. Lid.

I Inclustict North Street, Zhangfiakou, Zhonghbel
County. Hebel Province, Ching

Hebhei bdnur Food Co., Lid,

8 Lancun Road, Economic and Technical
Development Zone, Minhang, Shanghoi

200245, China

Shanghci AB Food & Beverages Co., Lid

No. 68-1, Shuanglong Road. Fushan District.

Yanfar City, Shandong Province, China

Yantai Maun Yeast Co., Lid. o 57%
Colombia T

Cro 354 34A-64, Palmira, vale, Colombic

Fleischmann Foods S.A )
Czech Republic -
Nadraizni 523, 349 01 Stitro, Czoch Republc

Bodit Tachov s.r.o.

Palladiom, MNa Pofci 1079/3a, Prague 1. 11000,

Czech Repubiic

Primark Prodejny s.r.o.

Denmark -

Skjerrive) 42, Trestrup, 6920 Videbaek, Denmark

AB MNeo ASS

Middelfortveg 77. Baring, 5466 Asperup,

Denrmark

Cowconnecl ApS e
Ecuador

Medardo Angel Siva 13 y Ponamid, Manzana

12, Bl Recreo, Floy Affare, Durdn, Guavas,

Ecuador

ABCALSAS.A. o

Eswatini '

Ubombo Sugar Limited, Old Main Road,

Big Bend, Eswahm

Bar Circle Ronch miled 4%
lovo Swaziand Lirmited 34%
Moyent Ranch Limited 34%
Ubombo Sugar Limited 34%
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32. Group entities continved

Subaidiory Lnderlakings

- "}, é?e_cwr: holding

i not 56.2%

Finlend

Tykkimdentio 150 (PO Box 24}, Rajamdiki,
Fi-35200, Finland

AB Enzymes Oy

Tykkirndentie 150 (PO Box 57}, Rajamdaki
Fi-05201, Finland

Enzymes Leasing Finland Oy

Koskelontie 19 B. Espoo, F-02920, Finland
Alimetics Research Oy

AB Vista Finland Oy

France

40/42. avenue Georges Pompidou, 69003,
alyon, France

AB Mauri France

25 Rue Anatole France. 92300 Levaliois-Perret,
France

Twinings & Co SAS

11T Rue de Milan, 75009, Paris. France

ABFI France SAS

Centre Commercial Regional Craleif Sofeil,
Niveau 3. 101 Avenue du Général de Gaulle,
94000. Crefell, France

Primark France SAS

845 Chemin du Valon du maire, 13240,
Septemes les Vallons, France

5P Pharma SAS

JAE Via Europa, 3rue d Athénes, 34350 Vendres,
France

Fytexia Group

Fytexia

Gemany

Feldbergshrasse 78, 64293, Darmstadt, Germany
AB Enzymes GmbH

Schauenburgersirasse 116, 24118. Kiel, Germany
ICFN AG

wandsheker Jolistrasse 59, 22041,

Harmburg, Germany

ABF Deutschland Holdings GmioH

Ohly GmibH

Ohly Grundbesitz GmbH

Rheinische Presshefe- und Spritwerke GmioH
Kennedyolaiz 2. 45127, Essen, Germany

Pimark Mode Lid. & Co. KG

Primark Property GmioH

Aousinger  Strasse 4-8,
Germany

Vital Solutions GmbH

Westendsirasse 28, 60325, Frankfurt am Main,
Germany

Wander GmioH
Mane-Kohle-Allee 2, D-53113, Bonn, Germany
Westmill Foods Europe GrmbH

40764, Langenfeld,

Greece

28, Diritriou Soufsou Sir, Athens, GR 11521,
Greece

PSH Teat Single Member 5 A,

Guernsey

Doray Courd, Admiral Park, St Peter Part,
GY1 2HT, Guernsey

Taisman Guernsey Limited

&8 Wittington Investments  Finarcial S-atements 2023

Subsichary underigkings
Hong Kong

5/F. Manulife Flace. 348 Kwun Tong Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Associated Brifish Foods Asia Pacific
Haldings Limited
Hungary

Kdrokd utca 12, 3. emn., Budapest, 1053, Hungary
Primark Uzletek Kordloll Feleldsségu’ Tdnasag
{Primark Uzletek Kf1.)

Inddia

#218 & #219, Bommasandra — figani Link Road,
Anekal Taluk, Bangalore, 560105, india

AB Mauri India Private imiled

First Floor, Regent Sunny Side, 80 Ff Road, 8ih
Block, Korcmangala Bengalury, Karnataka,
560030, India

SPI Specialties Phama Private Limited

G3/41, New Budge Budge Trunk Road, Oid
Dakghar, Kotkata, West Bengal, 700141, tnclict

Twinings Private Limited
Indonesia

Wisrno GKBI LE39, Suife 390, No.28 I fend,
Sudimman, Jakorta , indonesia

PT AB Food & Beverages Indonesia {in liguiddtion)
Ireland

47 Mary Strect, Dublin 1. reland

Abdale Fincnce Limited

Primark Holdings Unlimited Company

Primark Pension Tnistees Limited

! Stokes Place, §t. Stephen's Greon, Dubiin 2,
frefand

Alied mills Ireland Limited

Unit 5, Hebron House, Macdonagh Junchion,
Kikenny, k95 T91Y, reland

Intellync Technology timited

Arthur Ryan House, 22-24 Pameill Street.
Dubin 1. frefand

Primerrk Lirmited
Prirmark Austic Limited
Primark Mode Lmited

13 Classon House, Dundrum Business Park,
Dundrum, Dubiin 14, D14X9F9 irclond

Nutritional Advanced Formulas (Irelond) Limited

laly
Vicle Monte Nera, 84, 20135, Milan, Hialy

AB Agr liaky Sl

Vicr Mitane 42, 27045, Casteggio, (Pavia). faly
AB Mauri Haly S.o A,

ABF ltaly Holdings Sl

Largo Francesco Richini 27A. 20122, pMilan, ialy
Primciri ftaly Sl

Via Rizzoto 46, 41126, Modena (MO}, lialy
Acetaia Ani Modena Sl

Via Sondro Pertini 440, 401314, Cavezzo (MO,
itaty

Acetum S.p.A. Sociefa Benefit

Vic Garibaldl 84, magenta, 20013, Milan. lfaly
ALP immabificre S,

Via Gran Sasso, 33, Corbetia, 20001, Mian, faly
B Notural Sl




Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplanibber 2023

32. Group entities continued

= oifex thve:

. ‘.Cj,,

L gt hoking 3
Sabaidiary yridertakings ifrect 56 2% Susadicry undertakings ot 5e.27%
Malawi Nigeria
Movo House, Churchill Road, Limbe, Malgw 23 Oha Akinjobi Street, GRA, kaja, Lagos. Migena
Crwangpwa Sugar Corporation Lmded 43%  Twinings Ovaltine Nigeria Limited
llowo Sugar (Molawi) plo 43% Pakistan
Malawi Sugar Limited 21KM Ferozepur Road, 2 KM Hadyara Drain, Lahaore,
Malaysia Pakisian
. . - .
Unit 30-G1, Level 30, Tower A, Verfical Business Suite, AB hMaun Pakistan (Private) Linnited - 1.
Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No.8, 59200 Jalan Peru
Kennchi, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysic Av. Repubilica de Argentina No, 1227, 71 Lo
AB Mauri Mdlaysia Sdn. Bhd. 29%  Chalaca, Collgo, Peru
Malta Calsa Peru §.A.C. o
171 Old Bakery Street, Valetta, VLT 1455 Mafta Philippines
Reiox Limited 39% 86 E Rodrigues Jr. Ave., Ugong Norte, QC, 1604,
Maurifius Pasig City, Metro Manila, Phiippines
10th Fioor, Siandiard Chartered Tower, AB Food & Beverages Phiippines. Inc 567
19 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius 1201-1202 Pime Land Building, Market Sireet,
; : ; Madrigal Business Park, Ayala Alabang,
llovo Group financing Semvices Munlinluoa, 1770, Priiopines
Hlovo Group Holdings Limited .
- - AB Mo Philippines, Inc.

Hlove Group Marketing Services Limited boiand B
Kitormb Holdi Limited . .

! 1o o mgs_ m c Przemystow 2, 67-100 Nowa 506, Lubuskie, Poland
Sucoma Holdings Limited . .

. AB Foods Palska Spdlka z ograniczona
Mexico ] o odpowiedziainoscia [AB Foods Polska Sp. 7 0.0-)
g e ;‘e 2 ‘Re’,@’ me ‘0‘%*"5? 8 Surejciicna Towarowa 28.00-839 Warsaw, Poland
. Colonia Lomoas de Santa Fe, Delegocion Primark Skley spolka 2 6 :
- . . qQrancCzona
Cuaiimatpa de Morelos, Mexico City, 05348, Mexico opewisaiGinoscia [Primark SKlepy sp. 2.0.0}
ABCALSASA. de C.V. N UL Rabowicka 29/31, 62020, Swarzedz — Josin,
Avenida Javier Baros Siera 495, pise 7 elicing 07-102. Poland
(():g‘i gafﬁxr'.:;’ Atvara Obregon, Cludad de Mexico, R. Twining and Company Spdka 7 ograniczona
- Me . odpowiadziainoscia [R. Twining and Company 5p. 7
ACH Foods Mexico. 5. de R.L. de C.V. 6.0
Mozambigue UL Gléwna 3A, Bruszczewo, 64-030, Smigiel, Poland
Km7zs ENL Magiana,  Distito de  Manhica, AB Neo Polska spolka z organiczona
Provincia de Maputo, Mozambigue odpowiedzialnoscia [AB Neo Pokka Sp. 2.0.0)
Maragra Agucar, 5.A. {previously AB Agri Polska $p. 20.0)
Nelherlands Portugal -
Milweg 77, 3316 BE, Dordrecht, Netherfands Avenida Salvador Allende, n.? 99, Lsboa Oeiras,
AB Maun Netherlands BV, Julidio da Barra, Paco de Arcos e Caxias, 2770-157,
AB Maur Netherlands European Holdings B.V. Paco de Arcos. Portugdl
Foods International Holding B.v. AB Mauri Fortugal. S.A. 7 54%
van Oldenbameveltpicats 36, 3012 AH, Rotterdam, Rug Cosiitho 50, 1250-071. Usbon. Portugai
Netherlands Lojas Primark Portugal - Exploracas, Gestac e
Primark Fashion B.Y. Adnministracao de Espacas Comerciais $.A,
Primark Netherdands B.Y. Romania
Primcrrk St B.V. Distrct 1, 165 Colea Floreasca. One Tower, 12th
Weena 505, 3013AL Rotterdam, Netherands Floor, Bucharest, Romania ,
AR Vista Europe BV Primark Magazing S.R.L. {previously PSR indigo)
7122 JS  Adaiten, Dinxperiosesfraciweg 122, Rwanda L
Netherionds Myarugenge Disirict, Myarugenge Sector,
Germains Seed Technology B.v. Kigahi City, RWF’”d_C’ o
Cude Kerkshac 554878 AK. Eftcn-Leur, Netheriands Hlovo Suger [Kigali) Limfed U
mMauri Technology B.V. s'”9°p9’e
Loarderhoogtweg 25, 1101 EB Arnsterdam, 80 Robinson Road!, #02-00, 068893 Singapore
Netherlands AB Mo Investments (Asia) Ple Lid
Westmill Foods Europe B.Y. 112 Rehinsen Road #0501, 068902 Singapore
New Zealand AB Vista Asic Pte. Limited e
Building 3. Level 2. Central Business Pork, ¢66 Great Slovakia
South Boad, Hlershe, Auckiand 1057, New Zcoland Staromestska 3, 817 03 Brafisiova - Stare Mesto,
Alled Foods [NZ)] Ltd Slovakia
AusPac Ingredients MZ Limited Pimark Slovakiasro.
George Weston Foods [NZ) Limited Slovenia
57 Forge Road, Silverdale 0932 New Zealanc! Bleiweisova cesta 30, ublanc, 1000, Slovenic
Dad s Piegs Limited Primark Trgovine, Irgovske podietie. d.o.o.
wittington Investments  Financial Statements 2023 &%



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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32, Group enfities continued

% effective holding

% elecive hoding

Subssidiary anderbakings Vot 56.2% SUb)IG:(J"‘ g aging:
South Africa Tanzania
I Nokwe Avenue, Ridgeside, Umnhianga Rocks, llove Tonzania Limiled o
Kwazulu Nafal 4320, South Afica Kilombero sugar Company Limited }
CGS Investments [Pty) Limited Thailand
tast African Supply (Piy) Limited 11ih Floor, 2535 Sukhurmvil Road, Kwaeng
Glendiale Sugar [Pty) Lid Bonlgchck, Khet Prakhanong. Bangkok, 10260,
. . Thailand
lovo Distnbutars {Ply) Limited .
} ) . AB Food & Beverages [Thailand) Lid.
llova Sugar [South Alfrica) Proprietary Limited : .
. - . ABF Holdings {Thailand) Lid.
llove Sugar Africa Proprietary Limiled . .
i Pyl Limited 1 Empire Tower, 241h Floor, Unit 2412-2413,
prop (Pty) timile South Sathom Road, Yannawa, Safhom,
Lacsa (Ply} Limited 3% Bangkok. 10120, Thoiand
Noodsherg Sugar Company |Pty) Lid AB World Foods Asia Lic
Reynolds Brothers (Phy] Ltd 2294110 Moo 1, Teparck Road, T. Bangsoothong,
S.A. Sugar Distributers (Ply) Limited A. Bangsaothong, Samutprakarn, 10540, Thailand
Spain Jasol Asia Paciflic Limited {in liguidation)
Calle Cardenal Marcelo Spinola, 42, 28016, Turkey
Maalnd, Spain Aksakal Mahallesi, Kavakpinari, Kume Evien
AB Azucarera benic, S.L. Sociedad Unipersonal No. 5, Bandirma- Bolikesir, 10245, Turkey
AB Vistar Iberia, S.L. raur Maya Sanayi AS.
Calle Levadura, 5 14710, Villarubia, Cérdoba. United Arab Emirates
Spain Office 804° Jofza LOB 15, lebel Al Freecone,
AB pMaur Food, § A Dubioi, PO BOX 17620, United Araty Emirates
AB Mauri Spain, S.LU AB Mauri Middle East FZE
ABF ibearia Holding S.L. United States
C/ Escultor Coomonte n°. 2, Entreplantc, CT Corporation Systerm, 818 West Seventh Strect,
Benavenie, Zamora. Spain Suite 930, Los Angeles CA 90017, Untted States
Agroteo S.A. 0% AB Mauri Food Inc.

Calle Comunidad de Murcia, Parcela UE-1-03,
Piotaforma Logistica de Fraga, 22520, Huesca,
Spain

Alternative Swine Nutrtion, 5.L

Calle Escoles Pies 49, Planta Baja, 08017
Barcefona, Spain

DR Hedlthcars Espaha, S.LU

Avienda Virgen de Mentserrat, 44 Costeliol,
08719, Barcelona. Span

Germains Seed Technology. S.A.

Ploza Pablo Ruiz Picasso S/, Tore Picasso,
Plonta 37, Madnd, Spar

{lovo Sugar Espana, S.L.

Gran Vig, 32 5o 28013, Mackid. Spain

Prirark Tiendas, S.L.U.

8 2 Calle Via Serviciod, 2 CP, 19190 Torja,
Guadalcjara, Spoin

Sri Lanka
124 Templers Road, mMount Lavinia, S7 Lanka
AB Mauri Lanka [Private) Limited

Sweden -
Retzius vég 8. 171 63, Solna, Swede
Larodan AB

Switzerfand
Fabrikstrasse 10, CH-3176. Nevenegg, Swiltzerand
Wonder AG

Tafwan
3F-1, No. 161, Sec 4, Nanking E fd, Taipei City
104, Tafwan {Province of China)

AB Food and Beverages Tawan, Inc.

Tanzania
Msotwa Mill Office, Kidatau, Kilornbera District,
Tanzonic

fllovo Distilers (Tanzanio) Limited
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The Corporation Trust Company, Corporafion
Trust Center 1200 Orange Sirect, Wimington DE
19801, United States

AB AGH US, InG.

AB Enzymes, Inc.

AB Vista, Inc.

AB wWord Foods US, Inc.

ABF North America Corp.

ABF North Armerica Holdings. Inc.
Abitec Corporation

ACH Capital Ventures, Inc.

ACH Food Companies, ing.
ACH Jupiter LLC

BakeGood, LLC

Germaing Seed Technology. Inc.
PGP Internctional, inc.

Prirmark US Corp.

Prosecco Source, LLC

SPI Pharma. Inc.

SPI Polyals, LLC

Twinings Morth America. Inc.

C T Corporation System, 155 Federal Stree! Suite
700, Boston, MA 02110, Uniled States

Prirark GCM LLC

C T Corporation Systom, 330 N.Brand 8kd,
Glendale, Cofifornic $1203, Uniled States
PennyPacker. LLC

158 River Road, Unit B, Cliffon, N 07014,

United States

Balsamic Express LLC

158 River Rocd, Urut A, Cliffon, NJ 07014,
United Sfates

Modena Fine Foods, Inc.

251 Lithle Falls Drive, Wilminglon, DE 19808, United
Stotes

Fytexia Corp.




Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 wecks ended 16 Sepleinber 2023

32. Group entities conlinued

T efine v bl
Subsioiary Lnderlakings Tnol 56 25

Subsidigry uncerfakings

T elecine ho\d\ngr
et $5.2%

Uruguay

Cno. Carlos Anfonio Lopez 7547,
Montevideo, Uruguay

Levadura Uruguaya 5.A.

Venezuela

Oficinus Once 3 (N° 11-3) y Once 4 [N 1]-4],
Tarre Mayupan, Centro Comercic San Luis,
Av.Principal Urtxanizocion San Lus, cruce con
Caile Comercio, Caracas, Bolivarian Republic
of Venezuela

Alimentos Fleischmann, CLAL

Compaiic de Almentos Latinoamericana
de Venezuela [CALSA) S.A.

Vietnam

Unit 2, 100 Nguyen Thi Minth Khai Street,

Ward &, Distict 3, Ho Choi Minh City, Vietnam
AB Agr Vietnam Company Limited

La Nga Commune. Dinh Quan Distict, Dong
NG Proviice, Vielnam

AB Mauri Vietnam Limited 3%

Zombia
Nokombala Esiates, Plo Mo, 118a Lubombo
Rond, Off Great North Road. Zombic

llovo Sugar {Zambial Limited

Nanga Fams PLC 42%
Tukunka Agricultural Limited 42%,
Zambia Sugar plc 42%

ABF — audit exempt

In accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act
2006 {the *Act'). and subject to compliance with the
requirements of that section including the provision of a
stululory guarantee trom Asseciated British Foods ple, the
following subsidiaries are exempl from the requirements of
the Act relating to the audit of individual accounls in
respect of the financial year ended 16 September 2023:

= e'lechive hal:
Subisicrary undertakngs Hnol 36 75

ABF Pt Limited

{Company number 00484887)
A.B.F. Properties Limited
{Company number 00483341)
ABF UK Finance Limited
{Company number 07267422]
ABF LS Holdings Limited
{Company number 05659249)
ABF ZMW Finance Limited
{Company numiber 13485724)
ABN {Overseas) Limited
ICompany nurmiser B0F45374)
Atium 100 Properties Limited
{Company number 04502487)

Atrium 100 Stores Holdings Limited

{Company number 04660%9469)
Atriurn 100 Stores Limited
({Company number 05007953)
Biilish Sugar [Overseqs) Limited
ICompany nurmber 02400085)
B3O [Chira) Limited
{Company number 037%%408)
G. Costar (Holdings) Limited
{Company number 03677738}

Mountsfield Park Finance Limited

{Company number 07882348
Twining Crosfield & Co Limited
{Company number 001 44900)
Worldwing Investrments Limited
({Company number 02778854)

AB. Exploration Limited
[Compeany numiber 00487323}
AB Maur China Limited
[Company number 12109070)
AB Maur Curope Limitedd
[Company number 02883738)
AB Sugar Ching Holdings Limited
[Company number 09468364)
AB Sugar China Limited
[Company number 07469163}
ABF (No.1) Limited

{Company number (46468120}
ABF {No.2} Limifed

{Company number 03349799)
ABF {No.3) Limited

[Company numizer 00155305}
ABF BRL Fincnce Lid
{Compary number 11031902)
ABF Finince Limited
(Company number 04659735}
ABF Food Tech Invesiments Limited
{Company number 00172141)
ABF Funding

{Company number 05380813)
ABF HK Finonce Limited
[Cornpany number 077461084)
ABF Japan Limited
{Company number 00492278)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

32. Group entities continued

Joinf ventures

A list of the Group's joint ventures as at 16 September 2023 is given below. All joint ventures are included in the Group's

financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

Jain venlues % holding loint ve-nr-u\esm ” hb\di}@
United Kingdom Room 608, 6th Floor, 1379, Bocheng Road. Pudong
weston Centre, 10 Grosvenor Stroet, London, New District, Shanghai, China
WIK 4QY. United Kingdom AB tni Yibgi Kemy Food mMarketing (Shanghal] Co.
Frontier agriculiure Limited so%  Lid S0%
Boolhmans [Agicutiure) Limited 509, Ta Ha Comprehensive Industriol Park, Fuyu County
) . Economic Development Areq. Qigihar, Hoflonggiang
s
gjf;\;ord A_gr(;fnomyiLu“‘r;\ted 285’ Frovince, China
{A_gn;u‘ ure] tmited e AB Mauri Yibai Kemry (Fu Yu) Yeast Technology Co..
GH Grain Limited 50% Lted 809
GH Grain [No. 2] Limited 0% ¢ Tonggong Rood. Shage Viloge, Nanpu Town,
Grain Harveslers Limited 50% Quangang Areq, Quanzhou, Fujian Frovince, China
Infracrop Lmited 50% AB Mauri Yihai Kery {Quonzhou) Yeast Technolagy
Nomix Limited 50% Co., Lid. 50%,
Morth Waold Agronomy Limiled 50%, Infersection of Jr’qo#ong Avenue and Zhou;hora
Phoerix Agronemy Limited 50, giﬁ»% Gang Distnct, Zhoukou, Henan Province,
L o
SOYLLimited o 0% a8 Mauri Yihai Kemy (Zhoukou] Yeast Techrology
The Agronormy Partnership Limited 50% Co. Ltd. 0%
Berth 34, Test Road, Eostern Docks. Southompton Xincha industicl 7 Mach T Do an
Hampshire. SO14 3GG, United Kingdiom e e, e fomn, ongguan
Southampton Grain Temminal Limited 0% AB Maui Yihai Keny (Dongguan) Food Co,, Lid 50%
Riverside, Wissington Road. Naviand. Colchesier, finland e
4LT, ffed Ki
ESS@T.’ CC? © 4Ll le', ed ,mfdsm s Dkkiméentie 150 (PO Box 57}, RoyomaK.
Anglia Grain Hol qngs I_.\rr‘n = Yo FIN-05201, Fintand
Anglic Grain Services Limited 50% Roal Oy 0%
nNorthants Apc, Rushton Road, Kettering, NNT4 TFL France e
England, United Kingdom 59, Chermin du Moulin, 695701, Camon, Dardily,
Navara Cat miling Limited 50% france
Unit 8 Bumsidc Business Park, Burnsicle Road, Morket Synchronis 0%
Brayton, TF9 30X, United Kingdom gg;;i’;' o .
B.C.W (Agriculture] Limited 50% Brede 4, 59368, Wene, Germany
Witham St Hugts, Lincoin, LNS 97N, United Kingdom UNIFERY\:& Gmb’H 8 CO’KG S
Normix Enviro Lirmited 50% INA Nohmitte] GrbH SOU/“
Eagle Labs Incubator, 28 Chesterton Road, UNIFERM i o 50;
Cambridge, CB4 3AZ United Kingdom ervaiungs tem H
Yagro Lid 50% Brode 8 59368, Werne, Germarny
Kingseot, Newmacher, Aberdeenshire, AB21 OUE UNILGG GmbH e 50%
Froagrem Lmile 0% :REEI:nd Golf & C try Club, Raih Ci th
: ialists Limited b aihcore GOl ouniry Club, Rathcore, Co. Meatfh.
lotionCopSosctntides . % (o
Independent Milk Laboratories L 50%
Prologis House, Blyihe Gaie, Biythe Vailey Park, noep Ik Laboratories Lid %
Sofihull, 890 BAH ;OPGT Greem bt e T bt ar
oF Atago Green Aills Mon Tower, 2-5-1 Afago,
t
Tango Real Estate LLP . 8u% Mingto-ku, Tokyo 105-6236, Japan
Second Floar, 11 Wateripo Street, Birmingharm B2 5T8 Twinings Joman Co Lid o
Nurion Developments [Quintus) Limitec 50% Pol‘a'nj P U d
Ausiralia , .
. %4 L S, , . 318,
Buiding A Level 2. 11 Taiavera Road, Nodh Ryde ‘,ioméa'e,?o&fj lok 9, miegsc, ROD 61315
NSW 2113, Australic ’ -
Fortnum & Masons Pty Limited 33% LSJn\f;ehrrr;hF?olsko SpLOO S
S e e - e oul ica
Chile )
.. , 1 Nokwe Avenue, Ridgeside. Urmhlanga Rocks.
Ave, Bolmc:cec.io 3500, Vaidivia, Chite i Kwazuly Natal 4320, South Aflica
levaduras Colico 8.4, ®%  Glendale Disliling Cormpany 50%
China Spain R
1528 Tisjusshan Road, Huangdae Distict, Qingdao. C/ Roimundo Foermandez, Vilaverde 28, Madnd,
Shandong Province, China Soain
Qingdao Xinghua Cereal Cil and Foodstufl Co., Lid 25% Compania de Melazas, A (in liquidation) 50%,
1 East Ren min Road, Regiment 66, Cocodala, United Stales
Xiniang. China . .
e The Corporafion Trust Company, Corporation Trust
AB Maur Yihai Kery (Cocoddla) Food Co. Lid. Center, 1209 Crange Streel. Winington DE 19801,
{previously Xinjang Maun Food., Lid) 50% United Siates
floomDQ(;Z, flg}hﬂoo% Iﬁghgocheng Road, Fudong siratas Foods LLC 0%,
B DISIIEL SAangnal. &hnd . Strates Receivables | LLC 50%
AB Maur Yihai Kery Investment Company Limifed 50% T T T S e e e S
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

32. Group entities continued

Associates

A list of the Group's associates as at 16 September 2023 is given below, All associates are included in the Group's
financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

Associafos % 'l‘.;\:iiﬁ;; ) Asocales s rolding
United Kingdom PT Indlo Fermex 49%
Paciofi House, Duncan Clase, Moulton Park Industriol P.T. Jaya Fermex 49%
Estate, Norfhampton, NN3 WL United Kingdorn BT Sama Indah 497,
Bakers Basco Limited 205 sraed 7 - 7~ T
Potemoster House. 65 31 Pauls Churchyard 26, Harokrmim st, Holon Azirel Center Bulchng B.lsraet
London, EC4M BAB, United Kingdom Sucaim (CAST] Lid 43
C. Cramikow Limiled % =R
Cromikow Group Limited 43% ; ) .
C. Czamikow Sugar Futures Limited 43% é’o BC_’LQOQSG"_ 25210 122, titan. lialy 43
C. Czamikow Sugar Limited 43% k%’E’”ﬁL Cw lTara oIt A
Sugarworld Limited 43% enyd
Uﬁ?fgd Kingdom - Non ABE 1 & M Bank House, Second Ngong Avenue,
e 9 °d‘ r 2; e Ro, < P.Q. Box 10517, Nairobi 00100, Kenya

arker Cavendish, urch Road, Stanmare, . . o o
Midcletex HAZ 4XR ;zdrrj:'kow Fast Africa Limited 45
Vanneck Residential LLP 1% aut ""s,
Unit 1 Woodlioy Park Estate, 59-69 Reading Rocd, Rf;i{ﬁ; fss‘do’"’ f John Kennady Street, Porf Lous,
Woodley, Reading, RGS 3AN Sukpak Lirmited 30%
Davidson Holdings Limited 28% Mexico — —
?Sr‘;fjegg?;;{em Range. Beverley Way. New Malden Jaime Baimes #8 Loc 3-A, Los Morales Polanc, Mexico

o ' i - City, 11510, Mexico

The Adventure Experience Limiled 447, C. Cramkow Sugar IMexico), S.A de CV 37
7 Savoy Courd, London, WC2R 0EX ﬁ‘e_wﬂab?d_” N T e e ’
London Tnearire Company Holdings Limited 7% Cfo KPMG, 18 Vigduc! Horbour Avenus, Martme:
Ausfralia ‘ ) Square, Aucklond, New Zeglond
283 Ficgstaif Road, Binkley SA 5253, Ausfralic New Food Coalings {New Zeciard) Limited 50%
Big River Pork Pty Lid 205 Phiippines = - - - LR
M riclr)e Rrtron Py L 2078

Ve Firicig . o ; ’ Unit A, 103 Excellence Avenue, Carmelray
32 Dawis Road, Wothor! Park, Sydney NSW 2164, Austratic McustiGl Pork 1, Caniubong, Calamba, Laguna
:}?r\:\{iggdgggmgi PlylLtd — - e New Food Coatings (Philiopires) Inc. 0%

anrain _ , o 5F Don jacinte Buiding, Dela Rosa cor. Salcedo
Suite: No, 1939 Liplomatic Commearticl Office, Tawer B Streets, Legasm Vilage, 1229 Makali City. Philippines
Building No. 1565, Road 1722, Diplomahc C7 Philinines. In 437
Area/Manoma 317, Barran =2 TTeeInes, e . 7o
Cramikow Supply Chain Sales for Food & Beverage Singapore o
Ingredients Bahrain $.P.C. AT, ng’hm‘;p SfreOe!‘{é;JEZI—OI Royal Group Building,
e T T Sinaaoore 04,
Brazil . } . C. Cearmikow Sugar Ple, Limited
Av Oos Vinhedos, 71, fioor 11 room 1107, Uberandia, South Africa -
Mings Gerais, Braal
2C Energia 5.4. 0% | Gledhow Mill Road, Gledhow, K'w‘c.dukuzo, 4450
Averida Presidente juscelino Kubitschek, n.® 2041, 117 Gledhow Sugar Company [Ply) Limited (0%
andar- Vit Olimpia, CEP 04.543-011. 5&o Paulo, Brosil Tanzania
Czarnikow Brasi Lida 3% 7th Foor Amani Place. Ohio Street, PO Box 38368, Dar
Av Pres Juscelino Kubifschek, 2041, fioor 11, SGo es-Salaarmn, Tanzania
Paulo, Brazi Cramikow Tanzania Limited 43%
CzEnergy Comercializado Ra De Elanol 5.A 21% Msolwa mMil Office. Kidatau, Tanzonio
China Kilombero Sugar Distributors Limited 20%
Room 17A01, 232 Zhong Shan &th Road, Guangzhou Thailand - - T

: . ;
City. Guqmgdomg Frovince, 510180, China " 909 Moo 15, Toparak Road, Tambaol Bangsaothong,
C. Czamikow Sugar ([Guangehou) Company Lid. —— 43%  king amphur Banasaothond, Samuiprokam, Thoiland
Columbia MNewly Weds Foods (Thalland) Lid 5008
Ci. 16 Sur #43a-49, £ Poblado, Medellin, B Pobiado, 1203. 12th Fioor, Metropolis Building,
Medelin. Anlioguio, Colomiia 725 Sukhumvit Rd, North Klonaton, Wattona, Bangkok
Czarnikow Colomia S.A S, 43%  Czomikow (Thailand) Limiled 43%
ndia - United Stales
India
Plof No Nas, House No 4-9-10, Hmi Nagar, Hyderabad 333 SE 2nd Avenue, Suite 2880, Miami, FL 33131, USA
TG, 500076, incio C. Czarnikow Sugar inc. 43%
Huoban Energy ¢ Private Limiited 34% Vietnam
House No. 1-8-373/4, Chiran Forl Lanc, Bogumipet, Sth Floor, IMC Tower, 62 Tan Quang Khai, Tan Oinh
Hyderaberd, 500003, india Waord, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnom
C. Czamikow Sugar {India) Privale Limited - 43% Czamikow {Vietnam] Limited - 43%
Indonesia
Kampiex Pur Muticrcr Blok AZI-ZZ. AL Griva Ulcma,
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Company balance sheet

at 16 september 2023

2023 2072
|Restales]) |
ke £m im
Non-current assets
Investment property 1 - 3
Investments in subsidianes 2 1,042 1.042
Investments In associafes 3 2 3
Deferred tax assets 4 2 2
Trade and other receivables 5 1,045 18
) T 2,091 1.268
Currenl assels e
Tracle and olher receivables 5 5 2
Other investments ] 31 28
Income tax - 9
Cash and cash equivalents ~ o ? s
- o - 45 26
Current liabilifies B
Trade and olher payablas 7 (27) (18)
ncome fax ) m o
Netcurrenl assets - - 17 78
Non-cument liabilities
Employee benefits liubiilies o - (6} 71
Net assets e _ 2,102 2.03%
Equity
Called up share capifal 2 - -
Share premiurm account 382 382
Retaned earnings 1,720 1.657
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders 2,102 2039
“aabar b oter aip e e e b = Foorear g Fora it
it st 2 e st a g gr e bese C ot fan oo samor oot 6o Toe Soneyp oI

The Company’s profit for the 52 week pernod ended 14 September 2023 was £190m (52 week period ended 17

September 2022: £284m}.

The tinancial statements on pages 74 to 79 were aporoved by the Board of directors on 15 Decermiper 2023 and were

signed onifs behalf by:

A
!

M

Sir Guy Weston
Cherirman
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Company statement of changes in equity

for the 52 weeks ended 14 Sepltember 2023

Shicre: Tara
premey ety
I 11
Balonce ot 18 Seplember 2021 . - 382 1.856
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the period 284 284
Remeaasurements of defined bhenefit schemes - 4 z
Deferred tax associated with defined beneflil schames - (1) ()
IO1her comprehensive income - items that will not be reclassified to profit or - 3 3
035
Total comprehensive income for the period ) ) - - Y 287
Trﬁﬁs&dh’orﬂ\; withowners
Dividends paid to equity sharehaolders - {104y {104)
Bolance af 17 September 2022 _ - 7 1,657 2039
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the period R o - - 190 190
Remeasuraments of defined benefit schemes - - 1 1
Defered lax associoted with defined benefit schemes - - - -
Other comprehensive income - items that will not be reclassified to profit or - - 1 1
loss
Total comprehensive income for the period . 191 1
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid fo equity shoreholders - - (128) (128)
Balance at 16 September 2023 - - 382 1,720 2,102
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Company accounting policies
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in sterling.
rounded o the nearest million {except where otherwise
indicated). They are prepared under the historical cost
basis, excepl that Other Investments are stated at their
fair value, and in accordance with FRS 101 and the
Companies Act 2006.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken
advantage of the disclosure exemptions avdilable in
refation to financial instruments, capital management,
presentation of thied balance sheet for refrospective
restatements. presentation of a cash flow staterment,
standards not yet eftective, impairment of assefs and
certain related party transactions. Where required.
equivalent disclosures are given in the consclidated
financial stafements.

As permitted by section 408(4) of the Companies Act
2004, a separate income statement and statement of
camprehensive income for the Company has not been
ncluded in these financial statements. The principal
accounting palicies adopted are described below. They
have all been applied consistently to all years presented.

Going concern

The conclusion to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing these financial statements is outined in the
Directors’ report on page 8 and in the consofdated
accounts on page 18.

Investment property

Investment properties are held at cost less provision for
impairmeant. impairment is determined by reference to
the fair value of property estimated either by
independent valuers or by the directors. Depreciation is
provided where the directors consider that the residuat
value of major components of the praperty is less than
current book value.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates
Investments In subsidiaries and associates are stated at
cost less any provision Tor iImpaiment.

The carrying amount of the Company's investments in
subsidiaries and other assefs are reviewed at each
balance sheel date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Animpairment
charge isrecognised in the income statement whenever
the camying armount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
ameount.

The recoverabte amount of assets is the greater of their
fair value less costs to sell and their value inuse. In
assessing value inuse, estimated future cash flows are
discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate
thett reflects current markel assessments of the ime value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Animpairment charge is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount, but only to the exient that the new
camying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined. net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment charge had been
recognised.
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Financial assets and liabilities

The Company recognises financial assels and liabiiities
when it becomes a parly to the contractual provision of
the relevant financial instrument.

Trade and other receivables

The Company records trade and other receivables initiclly
at fair value and thereafter at amortised cost. This
generally results in recognition at nominal value less an
expected credit loss provision, which is recognised based
on management's expectaton of losses without regard to
whether or not a specific impairment trigger nas
occurred,

Trade payables

The Company records trade payables initially at fair value
and thereafter at amortised cost. This generally resulls in
recognition at nominal valye.

Other investments

Equity investments where the Company does not have
significant influence, control or joint control are measured at
fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL], and are camied in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in profit and loss.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits
The Company operates one defined contribufion and
one untundad post-employment plan, For the unfunded
plan, the amount charged in the incame statement is the
cost of benefits accruing to employees over the year, plus
any benefitimprovernents granted to members by the
Company during the year. It also includes interest
experse calculated by applying the Yability discount rate
to the pension liability. The present value of liabilities is
disclosed as a liability in the balance sheet. Any related
deferred tax (1o the extent recoverable) is disclosed
separately in the balance sheet. Remeasurements are
recognised immediately in other compreheansive income
Contributions payable by the Company in respect of
defined contiibution plans are charged to operating
profit as incurred.

Income tax

Income fax on profit or loss for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates fo
iterms taken directly to equity. Curent faxis the tax
expectad to be payable an taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted during the
period, together with any adjusiment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet habiltty
method, using fax rates enacied or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, providing for lemporary
differences between lhe canying amounts of assets and
liakilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. A deferred tax asset is
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be availoble against which the
asset can be uliised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash
balonces, call deposits and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less.



Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Investment Property

i

Al 18 Seplember 2021 3
Addfitions -
Al 17 September 2022 3
Dsposas . B 3]
Al 16 Seplember 2023 _
2. Investments in subsidiaries

Lizea Uril 5 =8 ;:111
Al 18 Septembear 2021 345 697 1.042
Additions - .
AL 17 September 2022 345 497 1,042
Addtions o B - - -
At16 Seplember 2023 T 345 597 1,042

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are shown af cost less amounts written off. Investments include 403,341 215
ordinary shares of 5 15/5p (2022 - 403.341,215) each in Associated British Foods ple, equivalent to 52.5% of the issued
share capital of that company, which is listed on The London Stock Exchange. At 14 September 2023 the market value
of the holding was £8.3%4m (2022 £5,342m). Associated British Foods plc is incorporated in Great Britain and registered
in England. Through its subsicliary, Howard Investments Limited, the Company halds a further 28.173.893 (2022 -
28,173,893} shares in Associated British Foods plc, representing 3.7% of the issued share capital of that company. A list of
trading subsidiary undertakings is given in note 32 of the Company's canselidated financial statements, The holding
company structure is complicated and doeas not necessarly reflect the management Grouping in which the companies
are listed.

3. Investments in associates

M
Al 18 September 2021 2
Additions |
At 17 September 2022 3
Impairment o I
A6 “Septer‘ﬁber 2023 ' S 2
A list of associate undertakings is given in note 32 of the Company's consolidated financial statements.
4, Deferred tax assets
e . — — i
Al 18 September 2021 3
Effect of changes in tax rate on income statermeaent M
AL 17 September 2022 Z

Effect of changes in tax rate on income statement o -

Al 16 September 2023

Finaince Bill 2022 which was substantively enacted on 24 May 2022 increased the main rate of corporation tax in the UK
to 25% with effect from 1 Aprit 2023, Deferred tax liability on the balance sheet has been measured at 25% which is the
rate expected to apply when the tax liabiiity is settled.

5. Trade and other receivables

2022
2023 |Rebered)
£m £
Non-current

Amounts owed by subsidiony underakings | 1,043 218

Other debtors e 2
1,045 218

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings ! 5
Cther debtors - 2
et - . e T = . 5

[he  arsr e angl rlecoepon, ra Ihe conant yaa Mmoo o serl Do eelor rne

SO Ao C oy et

hrcng ned 1200 Ibs o0z shoae asy SrTAnTe e AN The T

The directors consider that the carryving amount of deblors approximates fo their fair value.
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Notes to the Company financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

6. Other Investments

Talal
Lstedt onlyted Olbwer
T I A Rl ireestmanty rarmanly
FAN £ L
At 18 September 2021 27 1 30
Fair vaiue loss (1 (n {2)
Al 17 Seplermber 2022 28 - 28
gl 3 3
At o S 3 - 31
The Group classifies these financial instruments using o fair value hisrarchy outlined on page 52. The table below
analyses the level in the far value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement metnod is categorised for
Investmerts held at fair value through profit and loss:
o ) 2023 - 2077
Llevel 1 Level 2 level 3 Tatal Levesl © _ovel 2 _evsl 3 "ot
£m £m £m £m £ i iT im
Investments designated FYTPL 31 - - 3 28 28
7. Trade and other payables
T - - 2023 2072
£m I
Amounts falling due within one year
Accrual and defered income - ]
Amnounts due 10 subsidiary underakings 27 V7
T 27 13
The directars consider that the carrying amount ot creditors approximates fo ftheir fair value.
8. Employee benefits liabilities
T P . e
Al 12 Seplemibber 2021 10
Chrent service st - 1
Actiarial gain (4}
Ab17 Seplemper2022 i o B 7
Curent service cost T -
Aclugnolgain U
Al 16 septemter 2023 B o 6

The Company operates one unfunded post-employment plan which is accounted for in the same way s the Group's
defined benefit retirement schemes delailed in note 14 of the consclidated financial statements. Applicable actuarial
assumptions are stated on page 3% The Company's unfunded liabi ity forms part of the Group's £26m (2022 £29m)

unfunded UK liabilities disclosed on page 41.

9. Share capital and dividends

Share capital

Dnznary st
a’ 30y eace

o n Valng

3

Authorised - At 16 Seplermber 2023 and 17 September 2022

Issued and fully paid - At 16 September 2023 and 17 September 2022

F00.000
862.022

450,000
431,031

Dividends

Details of dividends paid are provided in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Company financial statements

for the 52 weaks cndod 14 Seplember 2023

10. Related parties

The Company has a controlling shareholder relationship with the trustees of the Garfield Wesion Foundation and with
certain other individuals who hold shares in the Company. The Company has a related party relationship with its
subsidiaries, associales and joint ventures and directors. In the course of normal operations, related party transactions
entered into by the Company have been contracled on an arm's length basis.

raterial transactions and year end balances with related parties {excluding wholly owned subsidianes) were as tollows:

T T E
£000
Dividends paict by withington Investrmeants Limited cind received in a beneficial copacity by
1] Tiustees of The Garlield Weslion Foundahon 4,745 3,854
fi} Directors of Wittington Investments Limiled who are not Trustees of The Foundation 1,246 1.012

See note 30 to the consalidated financial statements for further defaiis.

11. Other information
Emoluments of directors
Note 5 to the caonsolidated financial statements of the Group provides detais of Directors remuneration.

Employees
The Company had an average of 32 employees in 2023 (2022 - 32). Remuneration was £3.2m (2022: £4.2m).

Auditors’ fees
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements of the Greup provides details of the remuneration of the Company’s
auditors on a Group basis.

12. Post Balance Sheet Event
On 12 December 2023 the Directors declared an Interim dividend. The dividend of £86.50, total value of £74.6m, will be
paid on 23 January 2024 to shareholders on the register on 12 December 2023.
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